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Chairman'’s Statement
FEHRE

I would like to present to the shareholders the audited
consolidated results of Hong Kong Finance Investment Holding
Group Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

We are pleased to see that, despite the unstable global economy
and the downturn of the Chinese economy due to multiple
factors, in particular the Sino-US trade friction, the Group’s
property development segment posted a strong segment
profit growth during the year. However, changes in the macro
environment created a sluggish business climate and dampened
market sentiment, adding uncertainties to the Group.

In 2020, the Group commenced a new page in diversifying the
Group's business. On 17 April 2020, the Group entered into
an exclusive operating agreement (the “Agreement”) with the
Kikori District Development Authority of Papua New Guinea (the
“District Authority”). Pursuant to the Agreement, the District
Authority has granted an exclusive operating right to HKFB for
conducting continuous and effective sand mining and export
business in the waters and rivers of the Kikori Delta in the
Gulf of Papua (the “Kikori Delta”). The Company considers that
the exclusive operating rights for conducting continuous and
effective sand mining and export business and port and terminal
facility construction and operation in the Kikori Delta shall
place HKFB at an immensely more advantageous position for
developing such business.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to explore other
business opportunities to diversify and enhance its product
range in order to capture new opportunities. We believe that the
Group will achieve better results and hence optimize return for
shareholders.

I would like to express my gratitude to all shareholders,
customers, suppliers and business partners for supporting the
Group over the years and contributing to the Group’s healthy
development. In appreciation of your support, we will remain
committed to moving our business forward to achieve even
greater success in the future.

For and on behalf of the Board
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, cBs,, P
Chairman

13 May 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's revenue
amounted to approximately HK$538.0 million, compared to
approximately HK$942.5 million for 2018, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$404.5 million. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the decrease in the sales of electronic products during the year.

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company substantially
increased to HK$677.7 million, an increase of HK$517.7 million
from the profit of HK$160.0 million recorded for the year ended 31
December 2018. The increase was primarily due to the increase of
the fair value of investment properties of approximately HK$1,011.7
million (2018: HK$289.0 million).

BUSINESS REVIEW
Investment property
Zhanjiang

The Group owns the land use rights of five land parcels located in
Donghai Dao, Zhanjiang Economic and Technological Development
Zone, Zhangjiang City, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC") with total site area and total planned gross floor area
of approximately 266,000 sg.m. and 1.3 million sg.m. respectively
(the “Smart City Project”). The lands are divided into two portions: the
portion held for sale (non-commercial portion) and the portion held
for investment purpose (including the commercial portion and the car

parking spaces).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEWED

According to the valuation report issued by a recognised valuer at
the end of the year, the gross development value and the value of
the lands of the Smart City Project were approximately RMB10.9
billion and RMBS5 billion respectively. The lands of the Smart City
Project had been valued approximately RMB1.9 billion higher than
the value of the lands of the Smart City Project at 31 December 2018.
The portion of lands at approximately RMB3.4 billion will be used for
residential purpose which are classified as properties for sale and
another portion of lands at approximately RMB1.6 billion will be used
for commercial building development purpose which are classified
as investment properties in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019. Therefore, the fair value gain of
approximately RMB931 million of the investment properties were
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2019.

With the commencement of the operation/construction of large-
scaled projects in Donghai Dao such as the steel industrial projects,
refinery and petrochemical projects, Donghai hospital project,
Donghai secondary school project etc., it is expected that there
are great demands for quality residential property. BASF had also
commenced its construction of fine chemical industry base in
Donghai Dao, with a total investment of US$10 billion. BASF's chemical
industry base plan has a very positive impact on the Group's property
development project in Zhanjiang.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Lands are located at the central business district of Donghai Dao,
being a part of Zhanjiang Economic and Technological Development
Zone ("ZETDZ") established in 1984 with the approval of the State
Council and combined with Zhanjiang Donghai Dao Economic
Development Test Zone in 2009 with a total area of 469 square
kilometer. ZETDZ comprises three zones, including the established
zone located in the center of Zhanjiang City and the industrial zone
and the tourist zone of Donghai Dao. According to “Zhanjiang City
Master Plan (2011-2020)" approved by the State Council in June 2017,
Donghai Dao is one of the seven key strategic development areas of
Zhanjiang City. Donghai Dao is aiming to develop into a modern city
favourable for industrial, commercial as well as residential with six
major functional areas, namely steel industry zone, petrochemical
zone, hi-tech industrial zone, modern manufacturing zone, central
business district and tourism and leisure zone. Central business
district, being one of the major functional areas, is located at the
center of Donghai Dao and an aggregate of 500 acres of land of which
has been planned for hotel, residential and commercial integrated
projects.

Beijing

The rental income of leasing the property covers an area of
approximately 16,300 sg.m. at the Rong Ning Yuan Community of No.
60 Guang An Men Nan Jie, Xicheng District, Beijing, the PRC. The rental
income recorded by this Beijing property was approximately HK$9.0
million (2018: HK$20 million) for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEWED

Financial Business

The revenue of financial business of the Group generated from
securities, futures and options broking business, underwriting
commission, advisory for financial management business and interest
income from securities margin loan portfolio. The performance during
the past year suffered loss mainly attributing to the risk aversion of
investor in the extreme volatile and uncertain trading environment.
In the fiscal 2019, the market experienced wide trading range of
about 5,000 points. The investors remained highly sensitive to the
development of social unrest in Hong Kong, the interest rate trend,
and the Sino-America trade negotiation and confrontation. In the
second half, the market witnessed some monetary easing policies in
both China and USA. The global equity markets started to rebound in
early December on the news of reaching a partial agreement on the
Sino-USA trade deal. Hang Sang Index rebound headed upward across
the year end. Nonetheless, the market was soon overshadowed by
the worries of global economic slowdown on the widespreading of
the coronavirus outside China especially in Korea, Iran and Italy and
the sudden outbreak of oil price war. Dow Jones slid more than 20%
points in few days triggering panic sell off in Asia and Europe in the
end of February of 2020. Despite the surprised emergency Fed cut of
interest rate by half percentage and 1% consecutively coupled with
massive US$700 billion quantitative easing program in early March,
the investors remained bearish and liquidation of assets was decisive.
Both equity and economic outlook look gloomy in period ahead.

Trading Business

The Group owns 60% interest in Shenzhen Qianhai Jiameijing
Industrial Company Limited CRYIT AT ER=EFE X AR A H) which
principally engages in the business of trading, importing and exporting
of electronic products. The trading business recorded revenue of
approximately HK$508.8 million (2018: HK$896.1 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Oil and gas and mineral mining business

The Group owns 100% of the exploration, exploitation and operation
rights as well as the profit sharing right of Madagascar Oilfield
Block 2101 which is an onshore site with total area of 10,400
square kilometers in the northern part of Madagascar. Pursuant
to the exploration, exploitation and oil and gas production sharing
contract and depending on the rate of liquid petroleum production of
Madagascar Qilfield Block 2101, the Group will share the remaining
petroleum profit after government royalty and recovery of petroleum
costs according to the sharing ratios in the range of 40% to 72.5% as
set out in the profit sharing right.

The Group owns 65% interest in the rights granted under the Licence
253 in respect of Kenya Mine 253, an area of approximately 1,056
square kilometers situated in Kitui District Eastern Province, Kenya,
and the Licence 341 in respect of Kenya Mine 341, an area of
approximately 417 square kilometers situated in Nandi County, Kenya.
Pursuant to the Licence 253 and relevant provisions of the Mining
Act of Kenya, the Group is authorized to prospect, explore and mine
industrial minerals (including but not limited to copper) in Kenya Mine
253. The Group was also granted the Licence 341 for prospecting and
exploration of gold, iron ore and non-precious minerals in Kenya Mine
341.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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PROSPECT

2020 is a year of challenge for the property industry in China, At the
beginning of 2020, following the epidemic outbreak of Coronavirus
Disease 2019 (the “COVID-19 outbreak”) spread from Wuhan, the
whole country has united together to fight against the epidemic. The
Group has responded quickly with comprehensive arrangements and
collaborated with regional offices, subsidiaries and joint ventures,
to stand in the frontline of epidemic prevention and control.
However, the industry would also be exposed to a new opportunity
of transformation and upgrade into a modern industry in pursuit of
high-quality property development. The Company believes it will
enjoy more development opportunities after such a challenging
time. The Group will continue to expand its business into property
development and investment alongside its existing trading, energy-
related and financial services businesses. Especially, the new property
development business in Maoming, China. It will be the growth
factor of the Group in the years to come. The Group's enlarging
and strengthening property development business will benefit
the Company's future business development beyond the energy-
related sector and is in the best interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the financial year, the total revenue for the Group was
approximately HK$538.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$404.5 million as compared with HK$942.5 million
in 2018. This was mainly due to the decrease in sale of electronic
products during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administration expenses

Administrative expenses decreased to approximately HK$63.9 million
in 2019 from approximately HK$65.7 million in 2018, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 2.7%.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

On 8 March 2020, the Group conditionally agreed to acquire 100%
of the issued share capital of Dongguan Sanhe Industrial Investment
Limited (the “Target Company”) and its subsidiary (the “Target Group”)
at the total consideration of RMB1.0 billion, which will be satisfied
as to (i) RMB330 million by cash; and (ii) RMB670 million by the issue
and allotment of the new shares of the Company (the “Consideration
Shares”) at the issue price of HK$0.85 per Consideration Share by the
Company to the vendors.

The Target Group is principally engaged in industrial investment,
property investment and real estate investment. The Target Company
owns the land use rights of three parcels of land (the “Lands”) for villa
use granted on a term expiring in August 2068.

The Lands are located in Shuidong Development Zone, Maogang
District, Maoming City, the PRC (A Bl & T /58 1@ /K R [ ) with
a total site area and total planned gross floor area of approximately
166,000 sg.m. and 414,000 sg.m. respectively. The Lands are expected
to be developed for high-end sea-view villa and serviced apartments
project.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
(excluding the restricted cash) were approximately HK$20.7 million
(2018: approximately HK$41.2 million).

The net current assets of the Group were HK$1.5 billion (2018: HK$1.8
billion), which consisted of current assets of HK$2.1 billion (2018:
HK$2.3 billion) and current liabilities of approximately HK$568.5 million
(2018: HK$483.3 million), representing a current ratio of 3.70 (2018:
4.76).

The Group manages its capital structure to finance its overall
operation and growth by using different sources of funds. As at 31
December 2019, the Group's other borrowings and corporate bonds
amounted to approximately HK$334,531,000 (2018: HK$340,090,000).

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2019 (defined as
total interest-bearing liabilities divided by the Group's total equity)
was 0.09 (2018: 0.11).

CORPORATE BONDS

In 2019, the Group has issued corporate bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$8 million and as at 31 December 2019, the
accumulated principal amount of corporate bonds was HK$29 million
bearing interest rate of 7% per annum with maturity between 2021
to 2025. Such bonds are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using effective interest method. Imputed interest of approximately
HK$2,061,000 was recognised in the profit or loss during the year
(2018: HK$1,718,000). The issuance of the corporate bonds will not
result in any dilution on the shareholding of the existing shareholders
of the Group.
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EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk, mainly to
the risk of fluctuations in the Hong Kong dollar and U.S. dollar against
RMB. We have not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates
and considering hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
such need arise.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s finance costs consisted mainly of interest expenses
on corporate bonds, borrowings, amounts due to directors and
lease liabilities. The aggregate amount of interest incurred was
approximately HK$30.6 million (2018: HK$30.2 million) for the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has given guarantee to bank in respect of the securities
margin financing facilities granted to subsidiary. As at 31 December
2019, no such facilities were utilised by the subsidiary to facilitate daily
operation (2018: nil).
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

In 2019, the term loan of HK$250 million were secured by (i) the
guarantee from Guangdong Gangyue Financial Holdings Real Estate
Development Company Limited (ER B E XS ERZEBR A
7)) ; (i) the personal guarantee from the Guarantor (Dr. Hui Chi Ming)
and Beijing Yinghe Property Development Limited (4t 3 £ 1 5= i 2=
RE R EBBR A A) respectively; and (ii) the charge/pledge to be
granted by several subsidiaries of the Company.

On the other hand, the Group held banking facilities from various
banks as at 31 December 2019. The Group’s banking facilities were
secured by guarantees given by the Group's bank deposits and the
Company. As at 31 December 2019, bank deposits amounting to
approximately HK$5.3 million (31 December 2018: HK$5.3 million)
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to a subsidiary.

PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Company obtained a term loan facility in an aggregate amount
of HK$250,000,000 for a term of 36 months in 2017. Pursuant to the
terms of the facility agreement, the occurrence of change of control
event constitutes an event of default which the lender may cancel the
facility.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 174 staff
(2018: 153) of which 20 were commission based (2018: 20) and
the total related staff cost amounted to HK$34,159,000 (2018:
HK$33,431,000). The Group's long-term success rests primarily on
the total integration of the company core value with the basic staff
interest. In order to attract and retain high caliber staff, the Group
provides competitive salary package and other benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical schemes and bonus. The future
staff costs of the sales will be more directly linked to the performance
of business turnover and profit. The Group maintained organic
overhead expenses to support the basic operation and dynamic
expansion of its business enabling the Group to respond flexibly with
the changes of business environment.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 24 October 2019, the convertible bonds have been redeemed with
the aggregate principal amount approximately of RMB91,170,000.

As at 31 December 2019, the total number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company was 4,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each (2018:
4,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each).

CHANGES OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

With effect from 25 February 2019, Mr. Chan Tsang Mo has been
appointed as an Independent non-executive Director of the Company
and Mr. Chen Wei-Ming Eric has tendered his resignation as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company.

With effect from 10 May 2019, Mr. Ma Kin Ling has been appointed
as an Independent non-executive Director of the Company and Mr.
Yim Kai Pung has tendered his resignation as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company.
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With effect from 19 August 2019, Mr. Tam Chak Chi has been
appointed as an Independent non-executive Director of the Company
and Mr. Ng Chi Kin David has tendered his resignation as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

During the financial year, the Company has adopted the Model
Code under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transaction. All Directors of the
Company have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company
that they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and the Code during the financial year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is aware of the importance that complying with the
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and maintaining good
corporate governance standards are important to the effective and
efficient operation of the Company. The Company has, therefore,
adopted and implemented relevant measures to ensure that the
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements are complied with and
that a high standard of corporate governance practices is maintained.
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”), as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, throughout the accounting period
covered by the interim report except for the deviation from code
provision A.4.2. of the Code which every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. However, according to Bye-
laws of the Company, the Chairman or Managing Director are not
subject to retirement by rotation or taken into account on determining
the number of Directors to retire. As continuation is a key factor to
the successful implementation of any long-term business plans, the
Board believes that the roles of Chairman and Managing Director
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership and
allow more effective planning and execution of long-term business
strategies, that the present arrangement is most beneficial to the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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ESENEREEREEN

HONORARY CHAIRMAN AND SENIOR
CONSULTANT

Dr. Hatoyama Yukio, aged 73, was appointed the Honorary Chairman
and a senior consultant of the Company on 21 March 2013. With
the amicable relationship with renowned global energy groups from
Japan, China and Africa, as well as the successful experience and
leadership in cooperative development and operation of international
energy projects, Dr. Hatoyama is deeply confident of participating and
guiding the Group’s energy development business.

Dr. Hatoyama, first elected to the House of Representatives of Japan
in 1986. He held office as a member in the House of Representatives
for the eighth consecutive term. Hatoyama became the President
of Democratic Party of Japan, the main opposition party in Japan, in
May 2005. He then led the party to victory in the August 2009 general
election and was appointed as the 93th Prime Minister in September
2009. Dr. Hatoyama graduated with a Bachelor of Engineering from
the University of Tokyo in 1969 and received a PhD in Industrial
Engineering from Stanford University in 1976.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Dr. Hui Chi Ming GBS, 1P, aged 55, was appointed the Chairman and
an executive director on 15 November 2012 of the Company. He is
responsible for the implementation of the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. Dr. Hui received a Doctor Honoris
Causa in Economics and IFES Doctoris Honoris Causa from the
Institute of Far Eastern Studies, The Russian Academy of Sciences in
2002. The Department of Social Sciences of The Russian Academy
of Sciences had also awarded Dr. Hui the scientific degree of Doctor
Honoris Causa in 2005. Dr. Hui had over 10 years of experience in
the investment, exploration and exploitation of oil and gas business.
He has been the chairman of the board of over 20 companies such
as Hoifu Petroleum Group Limited (Sl @ AMEE AR 2 7)),
Madagascar Southern Petroleum Company Limited ( 5 2 hn &7 N =
7 AR AR A ) and Madagascar Northern Petroleum Company
Limited (f5 2 hnrpndt 75 A B R 2 &) . From 2004 to 2010, Dr.
Hui was the chairman and an executive director of Sino Union Energy
Investment Group Limited, which was subsequently re-named as
Yanchang Petroleum International Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (stock code: 346) and engaged in the investment, exploration
and exploitation of oil and gas business. Dr. Hui was a member of the
9th, 10th, 11th and 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He is the chairman of the Confucian
Academy of Hong Kong, a standing committee member of the All-
China Federation of Industry & Commerce, the honorable president of
the Beijing Federation of Industry & Commerce, a standing committee
member of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, the president
of Hong Kong Xian Trade Association Limited, the president of the
Hong Kong General Association of International Investment and
the chief president of the Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong
Community Organisation. Dr. Hui is also the Honorary Consul in Hong
Kong of the Republic of Madagascar. All these years, Dr. Hui has been
actively participating in promoting poverty alleviation and charity,
and he has been awarded the China Glory Society Medal for Poverty
Alleviation (91 B J¢ ¥ % % £k & #8 &) and accredited as China Top
Ten Poverty Alleviation Contributor (2 B + X & #k 7t ) by the
government of the PRC. In recognition of the outstanding contribution
of Dr. Hui to poverty alleviation, the International Minor Planet Naming
Committee (BURR/NMTEmHZE 8E) approved permanently naming
the minor planet No. 5390 as “Hui Chi Ming Planet”.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Neil Bush, aged 65, was appointed the Deputy Chairman and
an executive director on 15 November 2012 of the Company. He is
responsible for the implementation of the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. Mr. Bush graduated from Tulane
University with a bachelor’s degree in International Economics
and from the Tulane University Freeman School of Business with
a master’s degree in Business Administration. Mr. Bush had over
30 years of experience in domestic and international energy and
real estate business development. He formed oil companies which
explored oil resources in various states in the United States of
America and overseas. Mr. Bush has engaged in various international
business development activities with a focus on the PRC and Middle
East. Since 1975, Mr. Bush has traveled to the PRC over 140 times
and worked with numerous entities on a variety of projects including
real estate development, energy, automobile parts, sheet rock
manufacturing and paint production. From 7 December 2010 to 20
July 2012, Mr. Bush was a non-executive director of China Resources
and Transportation Group Limited, a company of which the shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 269). Since 22 April
2013, Mr. Neil Bush has been serving as the Non-Executive Chairman
on the board of SGX-ST Mainboard-listed SingHaiyi Group Limited, a
Singapore based real estate company. He is also the Chairman of the
Points of Light, a national charitable organisation formed by President
George H.W. Bush in 1989 that promotes citizen service through
volunteerism in communities all across America and increasingly
overseas. Mr. Bush serves as Chairman of the Barbara Bush Houston
Literacy Foundation, and on the boards of the Houston Salvation Army
and the Bush School of Government and Public Service.
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Executive Directors (Continueq)

Dr. Chui Say Hoe, aged 71, was appointed as the Managing Director
and an executive director of the Group. He is responsible for overall
strategic planning and operations and in charge of the execution and
further development of the Group’s expansion plan. He has been
the executive director and general manager of Sun Hoe Company
Limited, a company engaged in medicine distribution and trading
business, since 1978. Dr. Chui is also a director of the Honourable Mr.
Tsui Sze Man (GBM) Foundation For the Development of Technology
and Education in Myanmar Ltd., since 2000. He is also a director
of the Mirror Post Cultural Enterprises Co., Ltd., since 2009. Before
joining Sun Hoe Company Limited, Dr. Chui worked in commercial
bank in Hong Kong for about 5 years. Dr. Chui has more than 30
years experience in commerce and general business management.
He was granted Honorary Doctorate of Management from Morrison
University, Nevada, U.S.A.. Dr. Chui was a member of Post-Release
Supervision Board, HKSAR, from November 2005 to November 2007.
He was an adjudicator of the Registration of persons Tribunal from
June 2007 to June 2013. Dr. Chui was awarded The World Outstanding
Chinese Award by World Outstanding Chinese Association. Dr. Chui
was an executive director of Sino Union Energy Investment Group
Limited (Stock code: 346, currently known as Yanchang Petroleum
International Limited) from 2 November 2004 to 6 October 2010.

Mr. Ren Qian, aged 60, was newly appointed as Executive Director on
5 July 2017. He graduated from the North China University of Water
Conservancy and Electronic Power majoring in Agricultural Water
in 1983 and obtained a Master of Business Administration from the
Beijing Normal University in 2001. He has over 30 years' experience
in the water resources management industry, the housing and
urbanrural development industry and the real estate industry in the
PRC. Mr. Ren was the secretary of the office minister of The Ministry
of Water Resources of the PRC and The Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development of the PRC respectively. He has extensive
experience in planning, usage, development and operation of water
resources and land resources in the PRC. Mr. Ren was also the deputy
mayor of The People’s Government of Hebei Province, Langfang
City (mainly responsible for urban development), the deputy general
manager of China Housing and Urban-Rural Development Huatong
Real Estate Limited# (R BIZZFEBE X ER A F) and the
chairman of Beijing Yinghe Property Development Limited. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Ren served as an executive director of China
City Infrastructure Group Limited (Stock Code: 2349) (formerly known
as China Botanic Development Holdings Limited) from 30 July 2009 to
2 December 2016 and was responsible for strategic development and
properties management.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Xu Jun Jia, aged 31, was appointed as an executive director on 1
January 2016. He graduated from Institute of International Relations
of Moscow University in 2014 with an expert degree. He is currently
the general manager of Siberian Energy Group, Inc. ( 7814 Fl 38 8¢
JRE2 ) , the general manager of Far East Oil Group Limited (& 2
FmEBE AR A ) and the general manager of Africa Resources
Group Limited (3EM B REBE B R A F) . Mr. Xu is currently the
vice president of Hong Kong International Foundation for Poverty
Alleviation (HBEIEHBESE ) , and head of the Youth Committee
of Hong Kong General Association of International Investment (&
BRI EAEE) . Inrecent years, he has played an active role
in professional investments in a number of deals in various sectors
such as oil and chemical, metal mining and financial securities, as
well as negotiations and decision making in merger and acquisition,
equity participation and controlling deals. As a result, he is fully
equipped with relevant professional knowledge and operating
experiences. Mr. Xu is fluent in English, Russia, Mandarin and
Cantonese. He is very familiar with oil and gas businesses between
Russia and the international market. Mr. Xu is the son of Dr. Hui Chi
Ming, the Chairman of the Company. He has been appointed as an
Administration Manager of the Company since 1 September 2014.

Mr. Cao Yu, aged 41, was appointed as an executive director on 1
January 2016. He graduated from CERAM Sophia Antipolis with a
master degree in management. Mr. Cao has been the project manager
for listed companies and he was specialized in the operation and
coordination of the drilling and seismic engineering projects with
famous petroleum companies in China. Meanwhile, he was also
responsible for identifying suitable investors to establish joint venture
company for petroleum exploration projects. He has also worked in
the world's largest energy efficiency management company and was
responsible for providing energy efficiency strategy in China region for
the group. Besides, Mr. Cao was the analyst in the headquarter of BNP
Paribas in France. His main duty was to provide financial and strategic
advice in the area of energy technology and he was responsible for
the merger and acquisition activities as well as financial planning
service. Mr. Cao has been engaged in management and analytical
work for many years and possesses the appropriate and professional
experience. He has been the manager of the development
department of the Company since September 2012.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, aged 56. Mr. Lam is the founder of the Group.
He has extensive experience in the securities, futures, options, fund
management and financial advisory industry. His primarily focus
is to further develop the financial business in the Group. He is the
Chairman, Executive Director and Managing Director of Asia Tele-Net
and Technology Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 679). He is the
brother of Mr. Nam Kwok Lun.

Mr. Nam Kwok Lun, aged 61. He is a co-founder of the Group and is
in charge of the stockbroking, futures and options broking, securities
margin financing business, fund management and financial advisory
business. Mr. Nam has extensive experience in the securities, futures
and options, securities margin financing, fund management and
financial advisory industry. Mr. Nam is also the Deputy Chairman
and Executive Director of Asia Tele-Net and Technology Corporation
Limited (Stock Code: 679). He is the brother of Mr. Lam Kwok Hing.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Tsang Mo, aged 35, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 16 March 2020. He has over
10 years of finance, accounting and treasury experience. Mr. Chan
assumed various positions in professional accounting and financial
firms. He worked as a senior auditor of RSM Nelson Wheeler from
December 2009 to January 2011, as a supervisor in the corporate
services division of Intertrust Resources Management Limited from
June 2011 to June 2013, and as an accounting manager of Reignwood
International Investment (Group) Co., Ltd. from October 2013 to April
2016. Mr. Chan served as an executive director of Ares Asia Limited
(stock code: 645) from June 2014 to March 2016, shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He served as
the financial controller of Wan Cheng Metal Packaging Company
Limited (stock code: 8291) from May 2016 to October 2017, shares of
which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. He has served as an
independent non-executive director of each of Geotech Holdings Ltd.
(stock code: 1707) and Rentian Technology Holdings Ltd (stock code:
885), since January 2019 and Mar 2020 respectively. The shares of
both companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan is currently the director of Morton CPA & Co., Morton
Professional Services Limited and Synergy Morton Corporate Services
Limited.

Mr. Chan has been admitted as a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in January 2010 and currently a
practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan graduated from the City University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in
Accountancy in November 2006.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Ngan Kam Biu Stanford, aged 42, holds a Master degree of Arts
in Quantitative Analysis for Business and a degree of Bachelor of
Accounting and Finance with Honours. He is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Ngan has
over 15 years of experience in corporate management and finance,
accounting and company secretarial practice. He was a Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of Code Agriculture (Holdings)
Limited (Stock Code: 8153) previously.

Mr. Tam Chak Chi, aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 19 August 2019. He holds a bachelor’s degree
of commerce from the University of Toronto. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a member of each
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Global Management Accountant. Mr. Tam has more than
15 years of experience in providing accounting, auditing and financial
services and has served various senior positions at various private
and listed companies. Mr. Tam is currently an executive Director of My
Heart Bodibra Group Limited (stock code: 8297), an independent non-
executive director of Wealth Glory Holdings Limited (stock code: 8269)
and AL Group Limited (stock code: 8360), which are listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ma Kin Ling, aged 37, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 10 May 2019. He is currently the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Xinyang Maojian Group Limited
(stock code: 362), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and the independent non-executive director of SunCorp
Technologies Limited (stock code: 1063), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ma is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He graduated from
City University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor degree of Business
Administration (Honours) in Accountancy and Law. Prior to the joining
of the Group, he worked in reputable international accounting firms
and has over 10 years’ experience in auditing and accounting.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing, aged 50, is the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary. He is responsible for the financial and secretarial
affairs of the Group. Mr. Fu joined the Company in December 2012.
He holds a bachelor degree in science with major in accounting of
Bemidji State University, USA and is a member of both American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 25 years of experience in

auditing and accounting field.
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Lap Kwan, aged 46, is the Director of Karl-Thomson
Securities Company Limited and is responsible for the daily operations
and implementation of the internal control procedures of the
Kwun Tong branch. He holds a Bachelor of Business (Banking and
Finance) degree from University of South Australia. He has extensive
experience in the securities, futures and options industry. He joined
the Group in July 1997.

Mr. Sung Wing Yiu, aged 63, is the Director of Karl-Thomson Securities
Company Limited. He is responsible for the management and
development of internet trading services, securities, futures and
other derivatives business of the Group. He holds a Bachelor of
Social Science degree in Government & Public Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Sung
has extensive experience in the securities and futures industry and
held senior positions in regional financial institutions in Hong Kong. He
joined the Group in February 2001.
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The Directors would like to present to shareholders their annual report
("Annual Report”) and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are (1) the trading of natural resources and
petrochemicals; (2) mineral mining, oil and gas exploration and
production; (3) the provision of financial services and (4) property
investment. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal activities
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in
the Group's business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 7 to 19 of this Annual Report. This
discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review, financial performance and future
development of the Group’s business are set out in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section from pages 7 to 19.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five Year Financial
Summary on pages 231 to 232 of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties including business risks,
capital risks and financial risks that may have different levels of impact
on the Group’s financial performance, operations, business as well as
future prospects.

The business risk faced by the Group is set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report and the capital risk and financial risk
are set out in Note 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We are attentive to consumption of natural resources and reduction
of pollution during the course of managing our businesses. It is our
goal to minimize our environmental impacts through recycling of
materials, encouragement of resources savings and reduce wastes.
The Group is committed to ensure our compliance with relevant
environmental protection laws and regulations. For further details on
performance of the Group on environmental aspects during the Year,
please refer to our Environmental, Social and Governance Report
which will be published within one month.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group requires operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
to comply with the relevant laws and regulations in the territories in
which we operate. During the Year, the Board was not informed of any
events on violation with laws and regulations.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
legal risks possibly faced by its Directors, Supervisors and senior
management during their duty performances.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. During
the year, there were no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its key stakeholders that have a significant impact on the
Group. The Group will continue to ensure effective communication
and maintain good relationship with each of its key stakeholder.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 71 to 73 of the Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years ended 31 December 2015, 2016, 2017,
2018 and 2019 is set out on page 232 of the Annual Report.

FIXED ASSETS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in the fixed assets and investment properties of
the Group during the year are set out in note 20 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the convertible notes as disclosed in notes 37 to the financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to the shareholders.

DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 26%
—five largest suppliers in aggregate 77%
Sales

- the largest customer 53%
—five largest customers in aggregate 95%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest suppliers and its five largest customers.

32

AR Ik

RZB-NER_ZF-AF+_A=+—H &
NREAEAHED IR T ERRZ G-

B

AEERBE_T-NF+_A=T—HLFE
WEELREERR (ZT—\F &)

FEREFRHAER

AEETEHERREFERAEFARBERIKEE
BotwT:

RBE

-~ AHEREG 26%
—hAHEEA G 77%
HE

—B&ATFH 53%
—hARTFA KA 95%

MEEEINF 2 EMBEAREMARR (BE
B EEARRBEHEITRASWA L) RAE
EAAEERERREPPHAEEMNELDE

Eo



DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this Annual Report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Hui Chi Ming 6B, 1.P (Chairman)
Mr. Neil Bush (Deputy Chairman)

Dr. Chui Say Hoe (Managing Director)
Mr. Ren Qian

Mr. Xu Jun Jia

Mr. Cao Yu

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing MH., 1P

Mr. Nam Kwok Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford
Mr. CHAN Tsang Mo

(appointed on 25 February 2019)
Mr. CHEN Wei-Ming Eric

(resigned on 25 February 2019)
Mr. MA Kin Ling

(appointed on 10 May 2019)
Mr. YIM Kai Pung

(resigned on 10 May 2019)
Mr. TAM Chak Chi

(appointed on 19 August 2019)
Mr. NG Chi Kin David

(resigned on 19 August 2019)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from all
of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of them are independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Bye-laws 99 and 102 of the Company’s Bye-
laws, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation (save any Director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director) at each annual general meeting and any additional
Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
reelection at the meeting. Therefore, Mr. Xu Jun Jia, Mr. Cao Yu, Mr. Ren
Qian, Mr. Chan Tsang Mo, Mr. Ma Kin Ling and Mr. Tam Chak Chi retire
from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment for a term of three years until terminated by not
less than three months' notice in writing served by the Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company or in accordance with the
terms set out in the respective letters of appointment. Each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors is entitled to a director’s fee.

The Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting does not have a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical information of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 20 to 28 of the
Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a three-year term which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation. These service
contracts shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by
either party with not less than three months’ prior written notice.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration committee of the Board considers and
recommends to the Board the remuneration of all Directors is subject
to regular monitoring by the remuneration committee to ensure that
the levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company was entered or existed.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2019, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (with the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ"), as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each of the Company

EERRHG 2 ES

RZB-NF+-_A=1+—H8 EFhEF2H
BARKRRABREBBEE (EELBHFRHE
3 ([FEHF MGG ) BEXVED) 2B - %
BRARAREES M EGIIE3526FE M
B XRBEEBHERXZMBERAA
(MR @Es LR (TEMRA]) Ema
AEFETESFR 2L (MREETA)
SITHEARRR R ZESMT :

1. RAQTESREE0I10BTEER
ZRE

Percentage of
Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of

Name of Directors Capacity shares held the Company

e 17 RN

EEHA &4 LZERHEE CSRITREEIL

Dr. Hui Chi Ming (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 2,665,962,542 66.65%
FRESRE L (A1) REHIERE 2 s

Note 1:  These shares included 262,016,000 Shares held by Hong Kong Finance
Investment Limited, 973,639,143 held by Hong Kong Finance Equity
Management Limited Shares, 924,734,284 held by Hong Kong Finance
Equity Investment Limited and 505,305,115 Shares held by Hong Kong
Finance Equity Holding Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited,
Hong Kong Finance Equity Management Limited, Hong Kong Finance
Equity Investment Limited and Hong Kong Finance Equity Holding Limited
are directly or indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

2. Ordinary shares in subsidiaries which are
wholly-owned

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors of the Company,
chief executive or their associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, at no time during the year
was the Company, its ultimate holding company or any subsidiaries of
its ultimate holding company a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

(@  During the year, the Group received commission income and
other securities dealing income from securities and futures
dealing of approximately HK$16,000 and HK$Nil separately
(2018: HK$6,000 and HK$1,000 separately) from Director Mr.
Nam Kwok Lun and his close family (2018: two directors, Messtrs.
Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
(Continuedq)

(b)  During the year, the Group received commission income and
other income from securities dealing of approximately HK$7,000
(2018: HK$8,000) from ATNT, in which two Directors, Messrs. Lam
Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun, have controlling interests.

(c) At 31 December 2019, an executive Director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun,
advanced approximately HK$51,897,000 (2018: HK$65,789,000)
to the Group. During the year, the Group paid finance costs of
HK$3,237,000 (2018: HK$3,484,000) to the executive Director, Mr.
Nam Kwok Lun.

(d At 31 December 2019, an executive Director, Dr. Hui Chi Ming,
advanced approximately HK$57,395,000 (2018: HK$19,702,000)
to the Group. It is unsecured, repayable on demand and non-
interest bearing.

Other than as disclosed above, there was no other transaction which
need to be disclosed as a connected transaction in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules and no contract of significance
to which the Company, its ultimate holding company or any
subsidiaries of its ultimate holding company was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 31 May 2013, the Group leased from Gahood Holding Company
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Dr. Hui, the office space located
at Unit 9 (portion) and Units 10-12, 19th Floor, China Merchants
Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong for an initial term of two years at a monthly rent of
HK$180,000. Such agreement was renewed in May 2015 and May
2017 respectively to extend the tenancy period for two years expiring
on 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2019 respectively at a monthly rent of
HK$200,000 and HK$210,000 respectively. The tenancy agreement
was further renewed and extended with the tenancy period expiring
on 30 November 2020 and the monthly rent was adjusted to
HK$210,000.

Four of these agreements were arm’s length transactions which were
valued by an independent valuer and in the usual and ordinary course
of business of the Company and on normal commercial terms which
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

The annual cap amount for each of the financial years ended/
ending 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 are HK$2,460,000
HK$2,520,000, HK$2,520,000 and HK$2,520,000 respectively. The total
amount of the transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
HK$2,520,000 (2018: HK$2,520,000).

Gahood is indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, an executive
Director of the Company. Therefore, Gahood is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

According the Tenancy Agreements between Gahood and Shiny
Future constitutes continuing connected transactions for both
Gahood and Shiny Future under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to Rule 14A.76 (1) of the Listing Rules, such Extended
Tenancy Agreement is fully exempt from shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 December 2019, the register of substantial shareholders R-ZT—AF+-_A=+—8 REXQFILE
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO 5 R EIEI&HIEI36IEEFEE 2 T EREZ L MAT
shows that the following shareholder had notified the Company of 28 TR BAARQAGIFFEE NN E D3
relevant interests in the issued share capital of the Company:. TR Bk

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 RAQATRSREEC.10EBTEERZ
each of the Company RE

Percentage of

Number of the share
issued ordinary capital of the
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held Company
g 817 AR
RRAHE &4 ZERHE RAEABDL
Hong Kong Finance Equity Beneficial owner 973,639,143 24.34%
Management Limited (Note 1)
BEREERREETEERAR (HiE1) EmREAA
Hong Kong Finance Equity Beneficial owner 924,734,284 23.12%
Investment Limited (Note 1)
EEERBRERERRAR (HiE1) ERBEA
Hong Kong Finance Equity Beneficial owner 505,305,115 12.63%
Holding Limited (Note 1)
BEEERREERERAR (1) EREAA
Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited Beneficial owner 262,016,000 6.55%

(Note 1)
BREERMIBREBRRR (AF1)

Note 1: The entire issued share capital are directly or indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui

Chi Ming.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continueq)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each of the Company (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, no person (other than the Directors of the
Company whose interests are set out under the heading “Directors’
Interests in Shares” above) had an interest or a short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had any business or interests in business, apart from the
business of the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the date
of this Annual Report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group's retirement benefits scheme are set out in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules during the year. The details of the Group's
compliance with the Code is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report from pages 43 to 63 of this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

The Environment, Social and Governance Report will be published
within one month.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to the Company to re-appoint Elite Partners CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Dr. Hui Chi Ming, G8s,, 1P
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 13 May 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital to
the success of the Group and sustains development of the Group. The
Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and practices with an emphasis on integrity, transparency
and independence. The board of directors (the “Board”) believes
that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the financial year of 2019, the Company has complied with
most of the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules"), save for the following:

1. The Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director of the
Company is not subject to retirement by rotation pursuant to
Byelaw 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure they continue to meet the requirements of the Code during
the year ended 31 December 2019. The key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company are summarised in this
report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transaction.

To the specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed
that they had complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises of eight
Executive Directors, being Dr. Hui Chi Ming (Chairman), Mr. Neil Bush
(Deputy Chairman), Dr. Chui Say Hoe (Managing Director), Mr. Ren
Qian, Mr. Lam Kwok Hing and Mr. Nam Kwok Lun, Mr. Xu Jun Jia, Mr.
Cao Yu; four Independent Non-Executive Directors, being Mr. Ngan
Kam Biu Stanford, Mr. Chan Tsang Mo, Mr. Tam Chak Chi and Mr. Ma
Kin Ling. Biographical details, which include relationships among
members of the Board, are provided in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section of the Annual Report. The composition of
the Board is well balanced with the Directors having sound industry
knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning experience
and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The Executive
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a variety of
experience and expertise to the Company.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-
level guidance and effective oversight of management while day-
today management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking the Board is
responsible for:

o Formulating the Group's long term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof

o Approval of interim and year end dividend

o Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports
o Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

o Monitoring the performance of the management

o Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

o Developing and reviewing the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Responsibilities (Continued)

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing
day-to-day operations, business strategies and management of the
Group’s businesses to the Executive Directors, senior management
and certain specific responsibilities to the Board committees. The
Board is committed to making decisions in the best interests of both
the Company and its shareholders.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a true and
fair view of the Group's consolidated financial position in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The statement by the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is set out on pages 64 to 70 in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and service of the Company Secretary to
ensure Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

Composition
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience

necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
composition (Continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised twelve
members, including eight Executive Directors and four Independent
Non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Directors:

Dr. HUI Chi Ming GBS, 1P (Chairman)
Mr. BUSH Neil (Deputy Chairman)

Dr. CHUI Say Hoe (Managing Director)
Mr. REN Qian

Mr. XU Jun Jia

Mr. CAO Yu

Mr. LAM Kwok Hing MH., JP

Mr. NAM Kwok Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford

Mr. CHAN Tsang Mo (appointed on 25 February 2019)
Mr. CHEN Wei-Ming Eric (resigned on 25 February 2019)
Mr. MA Kin Ling (appointed on 10 May 2019)

Mr. YIM Kai Pung (resigned on 10 May 2019)

Mr. TAM Chak Chi (appointed on 19 August 2019)

Mr. NG Chi Kin David (resigned on 19 August 2019)

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 20 to 28.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board complied
with the Rules 3.10 and 3.10 (A) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors,
one of the independent non-executive directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related finance
management expertise and the independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the board.
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THE BOARD (Continuead)
Composition (Continued)

Following on the resignation of Chen Wei-Ming Eric, Mr. Yim Kai Pung
and Mr. Ng Chi Kin David on 25 February, 10 May and 19 August 2019
respectively as independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Chan Tsang
Mo, Mr. Ma Kin Ling and Mr. Tam Chak Chi subsequently appointed
as an independent Non-Executive Directors on the same days
respectively.

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a
specific term of three years. They are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election provisions of the Bye-laws.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out within Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

The Bye-laws of the Company requires that one-third (if the number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) of the Directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) shall retire by rotation each year. The Directors to retire by
rotation shall include any Director who wishes to retire and not to
offer himself for re-election and those of the other Directors who have
been longest in office since their election or re-election. A retiring
Director is eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next general meeting
of members after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting and be eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed
pursuant to the aforesaid Bye-law shall not be taken into account in
determining which particular Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation.

Under the code provisions A.4.2. of the Code, every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. However, according to
Bye-Laws of the Company, the Chairman or Managing Director are not
subject to retirement by rotation or taken into account on determining
the number of Directors to retire. This constitutes a deviation from
code provision A.4.2. of the Code. As continuation is a key factor to
the successful implementation of any long-term business plans, the
Board believes that the roles of Chairman and Managing Director
provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allow
more effective planning and execution of long-term business
strategies, that the present arrangement is most beneficial to the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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THE BOARD (Continuea)
Board Meetings and General Meeting
During the year ended 31 December 2019, 8 Board meetings and

one annual general meeting ("AGM") was held with details of the
Directors’ attendance set out below:

Exg(#
EXEERRRRAE

REEZT-AF+ZA=+— B LSRR
SREFEEHR—RBRRAETAE ([RRAT
X&) EWEE 2R RRERIMT

Annual
General
Board Meeting
BEEg BRRBEFAE

Executive Directors: HITESE:
Dr. HUI Chi Ming (Chairman) HESEL (FE) 8/8 1N
Mr. BUSH Neil (Deputy Chairman) EBemthE (FFE) 1/8 0/1
Dr. CHUI Say Hoe (Managing Director) RAE LT (EFELE) 8/8 1/
Mr. REN Qian FRIEE 3/8 0/1
Mr. Xu Jun Jia FEELE 4/8 0/1
Mr. Cao Yu BEFERE 8/8 01
Mr. LAM Kwok Hing EBRELE 2/8 0/1
Mr. NAM Kwok Lun ERfmLE 2/8 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BYFHTES:
Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford BRI 3/8 0/1
Mr. CHAN Tsang Mo BREREE (RZE—NEF 3/8 0/1
(appointed on 25 February 2019) “AZ+HRBEZME)
Mr. CHEN Wei-Ming Eric BRERLE (RZZE-NEF 0/8 N/A*
(resigned on 25 February 2019) “A-t+REBHEMT) TEA-
Mr. MA Kin Ling SExE (RZE-—NF 1/8 1N
(appointed on 10 May 2019) RATREZEE)
Mr. YIM Kai Pung BERLE (RZE—NEF 2/8 N/A*
(resigned on 10 May 2019) RATHEL TEA-
Mr. TAM Chak Chi BEIEE (RZE-NEF 1/8 N/A*
(appointed on 19 August 2019) NE+HhBEZE) TER
Mr. NG Chi Kin David hERBEE (RZZE-NEF 2/8 11
(resigned on 19 August 2019) NA+TNBEHE)

Directors’ Training

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company would provide a comprehensive introduction
package covering the summary of the responsibilities and liabilities
of a director of a Hong Kong listed company, the Company’s
constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’ Duties issued
by the Companies Registry to each newly appointed Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

*  The AGM was held before appointment.
+  The AGM was held after resignation.
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THE BOARD (Continuead)
Directors’ Training (Continued)

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the latest changes
and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other regulatory regime to the Directors with written materials, as
well as organizes seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties
and responsibilities.

During the year of 2019, there were one in-house seminars conducted
covering the topics of director’s duties under Appendix 10 and
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. All Directors attended the seminars.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, each of the newly appointed
Directors participated in the director’s induction training conducted
by the lawyer.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer are held separately by two individuals to ensure their
respective independence, accountability and responsibility. The
Chairman is responsible for overseeing the function of the Board
and formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company. The
Managing Director is responsible for managing the Group's business
and overall operations. The day-to-day running of the Company is
delegated to the management with divisional heads responsible for
different aspects of the business.

The Chairman shall ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that Directors receive
adequate information, which must be complete and reliable, in a
timely manner.
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TERERHRE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders for the wellbeing and success of
the Company.

To enhance the effectiveness of the management of the Company,
the Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee to oversee corresponding aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company have defined written
terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on August 2000 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same term of
reference, which describes the authority and duties of the Committee,
as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the Code. The written terms
of reference which describe the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee were adopted on August 2000 and revised on 1 March
2012 to conform to the provisions of the Code, a copy of which is
posted on the Company'’s website and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:

o to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the audit fees and the terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of their resignation or
dismissal,

o monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards, and to discuss with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations
before the audit commences,

o to monitor integrity of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, annual report, accounts and the half-year report,
and to review significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continueqd)
Audit Committee (Continued)

o to oversee the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures; and

o to review compliance with regulatory and legal requirements by
the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least four times each year. In 2019,
the Audit Committee held 4 meetings which include considering the
annual results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2018 and the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended
30 June 2019, discussing with the Company’s auditor on the existing
internal control and the re-appointment of the external auditor. The
Audit Committee also provides in important link between the Board
and the Company'’s auditors in matters coming within the scope of
its terms of reference and keeps under review the independence and
objectivity of the auditors.

Subsequent to the financial year end, the Audit Committee has
reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019, including the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and recommended
them to the Board for approval.
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There were two meetings held during the year, details of attendance FR BERZE@LRITMASH LEFEH
are set out below: N UNNE
Number of meetings SRRY 4
Audit Committee members: EZLZBEEKE:
Mr. NG Chi Kin David (Resigned on 19 August 2019)3 HEBEE (RZE-—NAFENATNBET) 3/4
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (BERZEEEE)
Mr. Tam Chak Chi (Appointed on 19 August 2019) mEZEE (RZE-—NFNATNLBEZT) 1/4
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (BEEZEEFE)
Mr. YIM Kai Pung (Resigned on 10 May 2019) BREBLE (RZE-NFRATHHEHT) 3/4
Mr. Ma Kin Ling (Appointed on 10 May 2019) Bzt (RZE-—NFREATHEZT) 1/4
Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford EASRIZ ST a/4
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Ccommittee”) was established on 27 March 2012 and is composed of
one executive director and two independent non-executive directors,
namely Dr. Hui Chi Ming (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr.
Tam Chak Chi and Mr. Ma Kin Ling.

In order to comply with the Code, the Board adopted terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee on 27 March 2012 and the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size, composition and diversity (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy; to identify and nominate qualified
individuals for appointment as additional directors or to fill Board
vacancies as and when they arise, and to make recommendations to
the Board on matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession plan for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy to set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. According to the Board
diversity policy, the Board takes into account various elements
of diversity including but not limited to age, gender, cultural and
educational background, skills, professional knowledge and industry
experience in determining the appointment and reappointment of the
Directors and proposed candidates. All Directors appointments are
based on meritocracy and due regard is given to the Board's diversity
to ensure the Company can obtain the benefits of such diversity. The
nomination committee is responsible for the monitoring and review of
the policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

During the year, the nomination committee reviewed the composition
of the Board. After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and
experience to the Company’s business, the Nomination Committee
confirmed that the existing Board was appropriately structured and
no change was required.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once per year
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according to its terms of reference. Two Nomination Committee ZBHRAIEBFRIT—AEZF - RBLZESCERERN
meetings ware held during the year, details of attendance are setout RiTMA & LEFBHINWOT
below:
Number of meetings EERY 3
Nomination Committee members: REZBEKE:
Dr. HUI Chi Ming, .85, 1P #*”%T@i GBS, 1P 3/3
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (1EEZEEF/E)
Mr. NG Chi Kin David (Resigned on 19 August 2019) AEREE (RZE—AFENATNLABE) 3/3
Mr. Yim Kai Pung (Resigned on 10 May 2019) BRENSEE (RZE—NFRA+THET) 2/3

Mr. Tam Chak Chi (Appointed on 19 August 2019)
Mr. Ma Kin Ling (Appointed on 10 May 2019)

During the year, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board of Directors of the
Company and the retirement and re-appointment arrangement of the
Directors in the Company's forthcoming annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 28
July 2005 with terms of reference substantially the same as those
contained in paragraph B.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code.
The written terms of reference which describe the authority and
duties of the Remuneration Committee were adopted on 28 July
2005 and revised on 1 March 2012 to conform to the provisions of
the Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange. A majority of the members of the Remuneration
committee is Independent Non-executive Directors and members of
the Committee are listed as below.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

In accordance with the code provision B.1.2 (c)(ii) of the Corporate
Governance Code, the Remuneration Committee is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group and the desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for the
following duties:

54

to determine the policy for the remuneration of executive
directors, assessing performance of executive directors and
approving the terms of executive directors’ service contracts;

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration and to place recommendations before the Board
concerning the total remuneration and/or benefits granted to
the Directors from time to time;

to review and approve the senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time;

to performs an advisory role to the Board and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management, with
the Board retaining the final authority to approve executive
directors” and senior management’s remuneration;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration on
independent non-executive directors;
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o to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair

and not excessive; and

o to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation payment

is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

The overriding objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that
the Company is able to attract, retain, and motivate a high-calibre

team which is essential to the success of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once each year.
During the year, one meeting was held to consider and approve the

remuneration of all Directors and senior management.

Three Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the year,

details of attendance are set out below:

Number of meetings

Remuneration Committee members:

Mr. Yim Kai Pung (Resigned on 10 May 2019)
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Ma Kin Ling (Appointed on 10 May 2019)
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee)

Dr. Chui Say Hoe

Mr. NG Chi Kin David (Resigned on 19 August 2019)

Mr. Tam Chak Chi (Appointed on 19 August 2019)
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During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed

the existing remuneration policies of the Company.

PR -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i  To develop and review the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations,

(i) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(i) To review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

(iv) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
directors of the Group; and

(v)  To review the Group's compliance with the code of corporate
governance and disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year, the Board approved the terms of reference of the
Board and the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, the
shareholder communication policy, shareholder enquiry procedures
and special request procedures.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditors of the Group, Elite Partners CPA

Limited, is set out as follow:

Services Rendered

AN e pm S
ERERWE

P BUET BB =
BE-Z-NF+-A=t-BLFE BF/
R A R B B BB TR R A BB
RAEZMERIIMT :

Fees paid/payable

FriR IR 7% e ENER
HK$'000

FET
Audit services EiT AR 1,450,000
Other assurance services H b 4B RS 350,000

The audit committee has expressed its views to the Board that the
level of fees paid/payable to the Company to the Company's external
auditors for annual audit services is reasonable. There has been no
major disagreement between the auditors and the management of
the Company during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok Ewing, the secretary of the Company whose
biography details are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this Annual Report, confirmed that he had
attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has appropriate directors and officers liability Insurance
in place for its Directors and senior management, in order to
safeguard them from any legal and compensation liabilities arising in
the course of discharging their duties.
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DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibilities for:

() overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and

(i) selecting suitable accounting policies and applying the selected
accounting policies consistently with the support of reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates.

The statement by auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 64 to 70 of the
Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group established
and maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external advisor
of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group's assets and stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors and
events which include political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed and prioritised
based on their relevant impact and occurrence opportunity. The
relevant risk management strategy would be applied to each type of
risks according to the assessment results, type of risk management
strategy has been listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk or
allocate to different location or product or market; and

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the Group
and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks. The risk
management and internal control system are design to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has engaged an
external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit function to
ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group. There is no significant deficiency
and weakness on the internal control system has been identified by
the external advisory firm for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2019, the
risk management and internal control system and procedures of the
Group, covering all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions were
reasonably effective and adequate.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

An annual general meeting shall be held in every year. General
meetings which are not annual general meetings are known as special
general meetings (“SGM”) as referred to in the procedures described
below. These procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the Company,
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”) and
applicable legislation and regulations.

Convening of SGM on requisition of shareholders

In accordance with the Companies Act registered Shareholder(s)
holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit of the requisition shall have the
right to submit a written requisition requiring a SGM to be convened
by the Board.

The written requisition (i) must state the purposes(s) of the meeting,
and (i) must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
Company's registered office in Bermuda, and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists. To
ensure that the requisition is received by the Company at the earliest
opportunity, the requisitionists are urged to deposit also a copy of
the signed requisition at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong (for the attention of the board of directors or the company
secretary).

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene an SGM within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s) (or any
of them representing more than one-half of their total voting rights)
may himself/themselves convene an SGM, which must be held within
3 months of the date of deposit of the requisition. The SGM must be
convened by the requisitionist(s) in the same manner as nearly as
possible as that in which SGM is to be convened by the Directors.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting forward proposals at general meetings

In accordance with Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act, the
registered Shareholders are entitled to putting forward a proposal at a
general meeting if:

(@) they represent not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of the Company as at the date of the deposit of the
requisition; or

(b)  there are not less than 100 registered Shareholders.

The written requisition stating the resolutions is duly signed by the
registered Shareholder(s) concerned, accompanied by a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in the proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company.

Upon receipt of a valid written requisition, the Company shall take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and the
Shareholders concerned shall be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company's branch share registrar, Tricor standard Limited at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may send written enquiries, either by post, by facsimiles
or by email, together with his/her contact details, such as postal
address, email or fax, addressing to the head office of the Company at
the following address or facsimile number or via email:

Address: Units 1910-12, 19/F China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587-7807

Email: pat@hkfihg.com
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting forward enquiries to the Board (Continued)

All enquiries shall be collected by the Company Secretary who
shall report to the Executive Directors periodically on the enquiries
collected. The Executive Directors shall review the enquiries and
assign different kinds of enquiries to appropriate division head/
manager for answering. After receiving the answers of all enquiries
from the relevant division head/manager, the Company Secretary will
collect the answers for the Executive Directors’ review and approval.
The Company Secretary shall then be authorized by the Executive
Directors to reply all enquiries in writing.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its activities to
those with a legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. In
addition, questions received from the general public and individual
shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases great care is taken to
ensure that no price-sensitive information is disclosed selectively.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No significant changes to the Company’s constitutional documents
were made during the year.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board is responsible for ensuring shareholder communications
are adequate and appropriate and based on transparency and
sound corporate governance principles. The Company adopted a
Shareholders Communication Policy on 1 March 2012 which aims
to present a clear, balanced and comprehensive assessment of our
financial position and operational status by providing shareholders
and other stakeholders with information in a timely and transparent
manner. The Company will communicate to shareholders through
written information and electronic communication as follows:

Annual and interim reports

o Disclosures made to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

o Notice and circular of general meetings

J Annual general meeting, where the external auditor is available
to answer questions about the audit

o Corporate website: www.hkfihg.com

o Direct enquiry sent to the Company
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elite
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF HONG KONG FINANCE INVESTMENT
HOLDING GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Bermuada with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Finance Investment Holding Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to 230, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter
BREVEE
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FAREZER
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How the matter was address in our audit
RMETEXBNMNEEZEER

Valuation of investment properties
REWMEMLE

As disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties measured
at fair value amounted to approximately HK$2,387,597,000
as at 31 December 2019. The fair value was determined by
management with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent professional valuer (the “valuer”) engaged by the
Group.

B A EREMF2IMFERE R —F+=
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The valuation of investment properties involved significant
judgements and estimates, which mainly included the
determination of valuation techniques and the selection of
different inputs in the models.
KEMELBESRBERAG R TEBEECHERE
MR R REE) R A BUE -

Considering the above mentioned significance of judgement,
estimates and the financial impacts of the valuation, we
considered the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matters.

ER EMHE A EZERGENTBZE BB
BEMEMERE-IBRREEZEIRE

Our major procedures to address the valuation of
investment properties included the following:
BMERREMEGHENETZRFERENTEEA:

o We assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the valuer.
e HMETEMEEMNERE HREEML-

J We communicated with the Group’s management
about the valuation techniques adopted by
the valuer, and assessed the relevance and
reasonableness of valuation technigues used by the
valuer.

. BME S5EETEESRGERMMAEANGESE
EITBABI A E M ER TR A ERENEE
AT

o We evaluated the appropriateness of judgements
and assumptions made by the valuer, in particular
the comparable properties and discount rate.

o BME T EEEMELHE RRENSEE  LE
RAIBELBRYERITERE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
BREZEE

RREZSHE (&)

How the matter was address in our audit
BRMETERRNMNEEZER

Assessment of the net realisable values of properties
for sale
FESEVEZTERFE

As disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had properties for sale (“PFS”) of
approximately of HK$1,809,871,000 as at 31 December 2019.
The Group's assessment of the carrying values of PFS, being
the lower of cost and net realizable value (“NRV"), takes into
account the fair value of the properties for sales and costs
necessary to make the sale.

PR E B mERMFLAER ESERZ=-Z—h
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The management of the Group determines the fair value of the
PFS with reference to valuation performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer (“valuer”) engaged by the Group.
EEEEEEECHEVENGGEER 2% B8EZE
B & B REEMER ([FHEA]) EITH-BEMET

Based on the management estimation of the NRV of the
PFS and after taking into consideration the fair value of the
properties for sale and costs necessary to make the sale, no
write-down of properties for sale was considered necessary
for the year ended 31 December 2019.
BEEBEHSEYHE AR FEELNMG  WEEERF
EMENRTEMETHEMBTHRARE  KMRR/NEBE
ZE-NFTZ AT RIEFEEFTMBEEME-

Considering the above mentioned significance, estimates
and the financial impacts of the valuation, we considered the
assessment of the NRV of PFS as a key audit matters.
EREMEEN A REENTBEZE BMETHES
MEFERFERIE-BRREZEE
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Our major procedures to address the assessment of the
NRV of the PFS included the following:
EMEEGTEMENAERFEN N EZERFBEEN
T&IE:

o We assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the valuer.
o BB EHEMNERE e R EE -

o We communicated with the Group’s management
about the valuation techniques adopted by
the valuer, and assessed the relevance and
reasonableness of valuation technigues used by the
valuer.

e MR BEETEESMGEAMEANMGESE
EITABI A E G ER T ERA R EERENEE
LA

o We evaluated the appropriateness of judgements
and assumptions made by the valuer, in particular
the comparable properties and discount rate.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

68

B ERGS M B RRAERREN
BfE

BB R EBRGAMBHREARS M7 EH
RIERFF SR R T G B A5 R B VS & 2R
F W HEFARMELENZEERS - ARE
TIRBE—NN\—FBRERREAEOKER M
T (EREE)EL Rt 2N EEMBE K -]
IR AR E AT FHEME A LB _EFok
REFT-6BREBRKTZRE WL TRE
RIFEBEEFTERETHEZBEZRRENER
PR - $5 3R BR AL 7T LA sy BRFF S AR 5l 2 - fin & 12
BB BN ERERAETERAVBRERER
ERBZEFEAVBRR]AMELOLERE - A
BRASERRA AT HRIEEAN

ERREBEF LB ENETETEST R &M
ERBEAE Y EREARTBRETREBEIER
REE - TAPIIR -

o R R Al B RO EREF SRR RR T B BUR & B
BHRERFAEBAHERRAN R - Rt M8
TEAEFAREZERR  UEBSRER
REENEZERER FREMABERNER-
MRS RRR -BE E2ER-
BB SR B R AEESZ £ FiR
REEIRNAMGFM B HRERERBLEN
[z = 0 R 5 AR T 48 B 3R R ER AR IR
BB o

s THEBRZMBEOANIEE URFTESR
REATBEENEZIZF BEMIF
4 BEEEANEENERMERRER -

o FEEFMRASHBRRNEEMEREL
SRR REERENSEE-



Annual Report 2019 « —ZE—hFEFR

Independent Auditor's Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continuead)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse conseqguences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Yip Kai Yin with Practising Certificate number
P05131.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10th Floor

8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

13 May 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GeEmkEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-)N\HF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHEx FHT
continuing operations BESEER
Revenue W zs 7 538,006 942,475
Cost of goods sold and direct cost BMEEKARBEEKA (509,163) (890,984)
Gross profit EH 28,843 51,491
Other income HaA 8 1,162 1,811
Other gains or losses E bl as ok B 18 9 (11,219) 8,391
Fair value change on investment HEMERNFEES
properties 1,011,747 289,004
Impairment loss of financial asset BHERAGECSREEY
at amortised cost, net VEREY R i=be=5 1 (4,470) (592)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBER (1,102) (913)
Administrative expenses ITERE M (63,893) (65,675)
Profit from operations BT 961,068 283,517
Finance costs Wi%sE R 12 (30,632) (30,216)
Profit before taxation FR B A& 930,436 253,301
Taxation I8 13 (252,953) (73,665)
Profit for the year from continuing FEEE S 2 F N A
operations 14 677,483 179,636
Discontinued operations ERIEREEK
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIEEEER 2 FAEE
operations 15 - (20,905)
Profit for the year F R 677,483 158,731
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEBEmkHEMEEKEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHEx FHT
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income  Ha2m (X H) A
ltems that may be reclassified HigngEmosBzEay
subsequently to profit or loss: A :
Exchange reserve arising on BMEBINEG 2
translation of financial statements MgmERMEEZ
of foreign operations P& 3 1
Exchange loss arising during FRNEEZERERE
the year (76,799) (245,556)
Reclassification adjustment for PSS INETS R
the cumulative loss included in FFAEm RETER
profit or loss upon disposal of ER 2B D ERAE
foreign operations - 19,135
(76,799) (226,421)
ltems that will not be reclassified to TeEMsEEBmEE -
profit or loss:
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial BATEEARMEE
assets at fair value through other WAZCREEZ
comprehensive income NEE (F8) e (342) 468
Other comprehensive expenses FAEMEAZ N
for the year (77,141) (225,953)
Total comprehensive income/(expense)  FRZEMEWA (S H)#E%58
for the year 600,342 (67,222)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEmRkEMZEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to "R B A A BIEFEREF,
owners of the Company (B#E)
from continuing operations REEEET 677,713 180,887
from discontinued operations BRI EETE = (20,905)
Profit for the year attributable to KA BB AEMLFERRF
owners of the Company 677,713 159,982
Loss for the year attributable to IR R (R NS
non-controlling interests
from continuing operations B CEET (230) (1,257)
from discontinued operations BRIEEEETR = -
Loss for the year attributable to =R (R NS
non-controlling interests (230) (1,257)
677,483 158,731
Total comprehensive income/(expenses)  FE/E 2 WA, (i) 4258 :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PINNETEF =N 600,795 (66,097)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R 41 (453) (1,125)
600,342 (67,222)
Earnings per share FlRAF
From continuing and SEICE X RER I EER
discontinued operations
- Basic —EK 18 HK$0.169438 7t HK$0.0455/% T
- Diluted -8 HK$0.16387% 7T HK$0.04027% 7t
From continuing operations FREREED
- Basic — &K 18 HK$0.16945% 7t HK$0.05147 7T
- Diluted —#E HK$0.16388 7t HK$0.0456/% 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR &R

At 31 December 2019 R=—Z—hF+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-AE ZE-)N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt &E FEx FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BB k&G 20 94,255 116,648
Investment properties "EYHE 21 2,387,597 1,416,547
Right-of-use assets FREEE 22 5,693 -
Intangible assets BmVEE 23 - -
Investment in equity instrument BAFEFAEMEERA
at fair value through other ZBATERE
comprehensive income 25 1,224 1,566
Deposit paid for construction BRIz e 74,946 160,000
Statutory deposits EERE 26 4,030 4,075
Loan receivables FEWE K 27 1,992 12,993
2,569,737 1,711,829
Current assets REBEE
Properties for sale FEWE 28 1,809,871 1,846,586
Accounts receivable FEUAR K 29 106,684 273,689
Loan receivables FEUW B 3K 27 - 7,513
Other receivables, H e U AR5 -
prepayments and deposits ENRERERS 30 76,063 43,162
Pledged fixed deposits EEBE AT (—REP)
(general accounts) 31 5,264 5,251
Bank balances (trust and RITEET (EERBELERRP)
segregated accounts) 31 83,766 104,231
Bank balances (general accounts) RITET (—REERP) KRS
and cash 31 20,680 41,155
2,102,328 2,321,587
current liabilities nEEE
Accounts payable FERTRR 32 155,160 303,524
Other payables and accrued expenses HEfb A BRA LR E A 33 38,779 26,393
Lease liabilities HEAR 34 2,377 -
Contract liabilities aHAEE 35 6,643 -
Amounts due to Directors JEfE E 58 36 109,292 85,491
Borrowings EP=i 38 255,910 66,021
Tax payable FERHLIE 339 1,868
568,500 483,297
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e g R R

At 31 December 2019 R=—F—h&E+-A=+—H

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

iog=a FHET FHETT

Net current assets REBEETFE 1,533,828 1,838,290

Total assets less current liabilities EELERABERE 4,103,565 3,550,119
Non-current liabilities FERBEE

Lease liabilities HEBE 34 3,392 -

Deferred tax liability FERIBEE 24 349,227 102,224

Corporate bonds NAEFH 39 29,621 19,560

Convertible bonds MR ES 37 - 104,055

Borrowings BE 38 49,000 254,509

431,240 480,348

Net assets EEFE 3,672,325 3,069,771
Capital and reserves B R #

Share capital fi% 7 40 400,000 400,000

Reserves 1 3,267,376 2,666,684

Equity attributable to owners of the AKRAHEE AR

Company 3,667,376 3,066,684

Non-controlling interests FEIz e = 4,949 3,087

Total equity SR 3,672,325 3,069,771

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 230 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13
May 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Hui Chi Ming, 6Bs, i

FrE#E oS, P
DIRECTOR

EF

FTMAE20BEMNGEVERERR_E_EFH
At+ZHEESSHEREERZ THUTRK
REE:

Dr. Chui Say Hoe
HrEMEL
DIRECTOR
BFE
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HONG KONG FINANCE INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « FE&mMREEREBER LT

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
meEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KDRREAEE
Non- Capital Currency Non-
Share Share  distributable  Contributed  redemption  AFSreserve/ translation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve surplus reserve  FVTOC! reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
THEERE/
RAFEHA
Rh2ERA
B& ROEE FUAREE E4ER EXEERE #E  NEREERE iR M FERER &
HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 H(S'000 H(S'000 H(S'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thn Thn TEn TR T L TR TEL TR ThL ThRL
(noted) (note ) (otec)
(Wista) (#ib) (Hiite)

At31 December 2017 WoB-tE %18 691,085 g 31154 5587 (101 18,708 (t2459) 83692 2867 838359

tZA=t-A

New adopton of HKFRS 9 HRMERNBRE LRSS - - - - - - - 877 877 - 877

A1 lanuary 2018 Restated) W=3-N\E-F-A(885) 518 691,085 = 3154 557 (101 18,708 (158) 837,369 21867 859236

Proitfor the year EFRA - = = = = = = 159982 159982 (1251 158731

Bxchange differences EXZE - - - - - - (45450 o (45450) (104) 245,556)

Reclassification adjustment for the cumulativeloss — #\E & 85N E B RsstaT AR 2

ncluded in profitorloss upon disposal of foreign ~~ B3t BEEL 2 EFH B AR
operation = = = = = = 19,135 = 19,135 = 19,135

Fair value gain on investment in equity instruments - RAT A5 & 2 ATERE - - - - - 2 - - 28 20 %8

Total comprehensive expenses for the year FRRAERAEE - - - - - 2 (26317) 159982 (66,097) (1,125) (67222

Deerned contribution from controlling shareholders  BfERRREE - - 1,260,308 - - - - - 1,260,308 - 1,260,308

Disposal of subsidiary HERBAR - - - - - - - - - (17,655) (17,655)

Conversion of convertible bonds BRTERES 147872 887,32 - - - - - - 1,085,104 - 1,085,104

At31 December 2018 RZE-N§

t=A=t-8 400000 1578317 1260308 30150 557 13 (207,609 (81600 306668 3087 3069771

New adoption of HKFRS 16 HEMERNHRS R 6R - - - - - - - (108) (109) - (103

A1 lanuary 2019 Restated) W=E-nE-A-A (58] 400000 1578317 1260308 31154 5587 13 (207,609 B0 306581 3087 3089668

Proitfor the year ERER - - - = = = = 67713 67713 23) 877483

Exchange differences 3831 - - - - - - (76,744) - (76,744 (55) 7679)

Fair value loss on investment in equity instruments - RAT AR E 2 ATEER - - - - - (174) - - (174) (168) (342)

Total comprehensive income for the year FRRAERAEE S S S S 3 (174 (76,744) 611,713 600,795 (453) 600342

Capital injection from non-controlling interests SRERTE - - - - - - - - - 2315 2315

At31 December 2019 RZF-1%

+=A=t+-8 400000 1578317 1260308 31154 557 @) (281353 6010 3667376 199 3672305

Notes: et -

(@  The non-distributable reserve represents the aggregate of deemed contributions  (a) PN RFEHEEBEEZE-ZS—/\F+A=+—HILFE
by the controlling shareholder in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries during BRAWEENE R RRFERR T E @
the year ended 31 December 2018.

(b) The contributed surplus represented the aggregate of: (i) the difference of  (b) BERBBETINSEEN: FTRERBARRKRGOEE
HK$29,140,000 between the nominal value of shares of the acquired subsidiaries HARNRRAEESERRYEMBRIT2ROHEENE
and the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued for the acquisition 2 Z=%29,140,000 7T ; (MBEAABIRRAZZE—=4F
at the time of the reorganisation of the Group; (i) the credit arising from the TAZTHRABITZREFINARAE LBBZFIIARSR
reduction of shares premium of HK$359,162,000 transferred to the contributed B R BR 19 V5 B E A 2 #E BR §E359,162,00078 7T (A AR
surplus account of the Company pursuant to the special resolutions passed RAIEHARE) RN =—Z2—=F+—AtAD KB
by the shareholders of the Company at a special general meeting held on 20 A A A& 1976,758,0007 7T ©
October 2012; and (iii) a distribution of shares of a subsidiary of an amount of
HK$76,758,000 on 7 November 2012.

() The capital redemption reserve arose from the repurchase of shares. The amount  (c) BEAERBERERMEL - ZLBIEMERRN ZE

76

represents the nominal amount of the shares repurchased.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hAE ZZEZ-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Operating activities KESTE
Profit before taxation B 56 AT 7 930,436 232,396
Adjustments for: BT SBEEL AR
Impairment loss of financial assets of RBEN A ECEREEY
amortised cost, net WEEEFE 4,470 592
Impairment loss of property, Y% RE MR 2 REEE
plant and equipment 17,679 -

Fair value change on investment properties KEYENFEES (1,011,747) (289,004)

Interest income FIEHA (50) 29)

Finance cost WBER 30,632 30,216

Depreciation weE 7,489 4,971

Amortisation s = 1,401

(Gain)/Loss on early redemption of REELTBERES

convertible bonds (Wz), B8 (2,072) 267

Change on fair value on convertible bonds AR ES 2 A EE S - (3,655)

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBRARZEE - 20,502
Operating cash flows before EEESHIN 2 RERERE

movements in working capital (23,163) (2,343)
Increase in properties for sales FFEWELM - (7,367)
Decrease/(Increase) in statutory deposits EERERL () 45 (18)
Decrease in loan receivables JFE W E SR 18,547 2,908
Decrease/(Increase) in accounts receivable FEWBR SR 2, (35 n) 165,498 (152,095)
Increase in other receivables, Huh AR - B RIER

prepayments and deposits iz Ylll (38,307) (76,328)
Decrease in bank balances WITEETRL (ErERBYERP)

(trust and segregated accounts) 20,465 58,988
Decrease/(Increase) in accounts payable FERFBRFR A (38n) (146,274) 118,626
Increase in contract liabilities AHEEEM 6,643 -
Increase /(Decrease) in other payables and HEMENERREREA

accrued expenses #m, Crd) 13,169 (14,287)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &&f78, (FifA)RE 16,623 (71,916)
Tax paid RN 2 (1,499) (29)
Interest paid EFLE (23,933) (24,397)
Net cash used in operating activities RETEBFARSFE (8,809) (96,342)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hFE ZZEN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHEIT
Investing activities RETH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BMEREHE (311) (1,062)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EE B B A &) = 419
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary LEMB QRS HKIE - 158,750
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (1,671) (6,628)
Placement in pledged fixed deposits FELERTEHER (13) (12)
Payment for deposit of constructions BEZRENR (74,946) (160,000)
Refund of deposit of constructions REBRERS 160,000 -
Interest received on bank deposits RITERBEWFBE 50 29
Net cash from/(used in) RETEBME (A RELFHE
investing activities 83,109 (8,504)
Financing activities MEEY
Proceeds from issuance of corporate bonds BITARIESFTB R
(net of issuance cost) (FOBRBEITAA) 8,000 -
Drawdown of borrowings REEE 99,000 36,000
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (116,021) (30,000)
Repayment of convertible bonds BETBRKRES (101,983) (90,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEaE (2,507) =
Increase/(Decrease) in amount Eff—REZHEEMN (RD)
due to a Director 20,564 (1,860)
Contribution from non-controlling interests JEFEIRRERT R 1,656 =
Net cash used in financing activities REFEHRARSESE (91,291) (85,860)
Net decrease in cash and ReRERRELEEZ
cash equivalents WA R (16,991) (190,706)
cash and cash equivalents FUOzHRERERARELER
at beginning of the year 41,155 209,809
Effect of exchange rate changes INETERNB 2B (3,484) 22,052
Cash and cash equivalents FRZESRERARELER
at end of the year 20,680 41,155
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRERRESEBELEHRIN
cash equivalents
Bank balances (general accounts) RITHET (—REP) KRS
and cash 20,680 41,155
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”). The Company
is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are (1) the trading of natural resources and
petrochemicals; (2) mineral mining, oil and gas exploration
and production, (3) the provision of financial services and (4)
property investment.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and most of its subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong.

—KREH

ARBIRBARE-NN—FREA (&
IR MK AR AR EROHRE
BBMAXZMERLAR ([BRAM])ERLE

T o

AEEHE-_ZT-NAFT-_A=+—H1t
FREZEEMBERREBEARAREWNEB
RE) (R TAKE]) AR REREER
DA AKEZEBEHRBORREREA
LEME S QRE  AaEXARYER
HE: QRESBRE: RAOWERKRE-

KR M BRRIAETZEY) BARRRE
RBEBETMKRIL 2 KB DB R R 2T
EHEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

80

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures
Amendments to HKFRSS Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current period has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior periods and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

FERR] RAMER] BRI ELE
A (EEMBREER])

REFBRFNERZHT REERTE
RS 2R

RAFERN  AEEEHERERA T HER
FrthiAg ([FESMAE ) B/MmZH

I RBIER] B AT G &R

BEEMBHREERN HE

E16%

B4 (EBRMBERE MEHEBNTHETH
REBZEY)
—RBER

BEAMBRMEEN FTHABEREN
E9% (183]) 5

BA G FHENERT RSk B
F19% (1837)

BEA G ER REERARAEDEY
285 (1537) R

EAMBREEN —T-AFE_T—+F
(183]) BEREBA RS A

2 FEBUE

BR TPt S - TR AN HATE 8 AR 3 AT Mg (g
AIREMBRELENHAEERAHE L
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continuead)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases ("HKAS 17"), and
the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as containing a
lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts which
already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance
with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether
a contract contains a lease.

AS @ lessee
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the

cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application, 1
January 2019.

FERFR] RAMER] BRI E L
A (TEEMBREE]) (&)

REFBFNERZHT REERTE
BMBHREER (&)

BBUBHREERE165HE

AEEERAFEERRBEEY B RS
ZERIF165% - BBV BERE LR F 165K
FRGEUF17REE ([FESTER
F17R) RAERE-

HETE#

AEBOEERATREDE SEAHNERE
BEENE7TRLEE (BRPHERSE
REZES) RERIETLHREEE
RHEEBNREENSNERE LY H
FEAF 165 MIELERALRBHSE
RHENAOEAZEL - FH - AEEY
BEFFIEREREABRMCFENSG
#) o

RR_FT-NE—-A-BRZRFTLHE
HNEHME AEERFHEHNREER
MERRIER BV HRE LRI F 165 AT
MREERMAEENTES-

TERAA
AEBECENERBEY B RS ERFE6

5 R ERERERBH_T-NF—
A—R#®R-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs") (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continuead)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
AS a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following practical
expedients to leases previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant
to the respective lease contracts:

)} relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous
by applying HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets as an alternative of impairment review;

i) elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12 months
of the date of initial application; and

i) used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at
date of initial application in determining the lease term
for the Group's leases with extension and termination
options.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
AS a lessee (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at
the date of initial application. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied is by the relevant group
entities range from 5.125% t0 6.12%.

FERFR] RAMER] BRI E L
A (TEEMBREE]) (&)

REFBFNERZHT REERTE
BMBHREER (&)

BBUBHELERE165HE (&)
1ERAHNA (B)

RIS BAEEREHEERRRE
B &R AREDRERERANRAEE
EEEEOEBERNE ANEDEE
AN NEFEE B RAENT
5.125%%£6.12% °

Note HK$'000
Bt FHET
Operating lease commitments disclosed ~ RZ=ZZE—N\F+_A=+—HEEZ
as at 31 December 2018 4R AR 42 3,137
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term 1k : ERF 2 — LA E
leases (1,919)
Add: Non-lease components o FEEEAK IS 163
1,381
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H
discounted at relevant incremental ZAEEAEEEFAERR2HEARE
borrowing rates 1,377
Analysed as EIv=
Current Vi) 1,225
Non-current FEMRBD 152
1,377

83



HONG KONG FINANCE INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « FE&mMREEREBER LT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs") (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continueaq)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
AS a lessee (Continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 January 2019
comprises the following:

FERFR] RAMER] BRI E L
A (TEEMBREE]) (&)

AEERFERZHTREBITE
AR ERER (&)

BB BRELRF16HERE (4)
(EREHA (&)

R-E-—NE—-A-BNEREEERE
EEEATEE:

HK$'000
FET
Right-of-use assets relating to operating ERB ARG LR B 165 1% MR
leases recognised upon application KEHERENEREEE
of HKFRS 16 1,274
By class ZE R
Office /N 1,274
As a lessor TERL A

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16, the
Group is not required to make any adjustment on transition
for leases in which the Group is a lessor but account for these
leases in accordance with HKFRS 16 from the date of initial
application and comparative information has not been restated.

(@ Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts
entered into but commence after the date of initial
application relating to the same underlying assets
under existing lease contracts are accounted as if the
existing leases are modified as at 1 January 2019. The
application has had no impact on the Group's condensed
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1
January 2019. However, effective from 1 January 2019,
lease payments relating to the revised lease term after
modification are recognised as income on straight-line
basis over the extended lease term.
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BRIMMERERERBRERAKZE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continuead)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
AS a lessor (Continued)

(b)  Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental deposits
received were considered as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applied. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are
not payments relating to the right-of-use assets and were
adjusted to reflect the discounting effect at transition.
However, the adjustments to reflect the discounting
effect at transition. However, the adjustments to present
value is insignificant to be recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

The application of HKFRS 16 as a lessor does not have a material
impact on the retained profits at 1 January 2019.

No adjustments have been made, in the application of HKFRS 16
as a lessor, on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2019 and its consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and cash flows
for the current year.

FERFR] RAMER] BRI E L
A (TEEMBREE]) (&)

REFBFNERZHT REERTE
BMBHREER (&)

BBUBHELERE165HE (&)
TERLENA (B)

(b)) REREBMBREERFE165A
RO RERRARABELEG
ERFE17REE TN REE
REBEBFABMBREEAF165 THIH
ERRZTER RTHRSAIFEHE
FREEENTIE  WARKLHABARR
RBEBOERTZE R ZXFH
ENRRBREESOHBRTZE A
m-RERERBH (B —-NF
—A—B) RRENAEEI/LT
EXR-

EREBAARBEEW B RE EF165
HR T NF-A-BZREBHILE
BERFE-

RIESHEARBEBMBERELRIF16
B WEHAKER_-_FT-NAF—A—H
ZEHEABUBRAREEGERERAEME
HBERARRANEREZREREEHT
o
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FERFR] RAMER] BRI E L
A (TEEMBREE]) (&)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs") (Continued)

REFBFNERZHT REERTE
BMBHREER (&)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continuead)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BB IREERE165EHE (52)

ASs a lessor (Continued) TEAMHTA (&)
R-E—NE—F—BNEAMBRIR
BRANESHEELAUTARZ TERERTE
B ENIER -

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.
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Carrying
amount Carrying
previously amount under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
31 December 1 January
2018  Adjustments 2019
R=ZB-1F
BATR —B—H
—E-N\E EBNBRE
+=-A=+-R ERIE165%
ERWEEE AR BETWREAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Right-of-use assets EREEE - 1,274 1,274
Current assets REBEE
Lease liabilities HERE - 1,225 1,225
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE - 152 152
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10and  Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKAS 28 between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Ventures
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material*
HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

d Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2.

FERFR] RAMER] BRI E L
A (TEEMBREE]) (&)

E MBI RERZHET RAEBET
BRMBHREER

EAMBHREEN RRAY

BT

EAMBMELL EBITER

35 (1&7])

EAUBHRELD REZHEHABZERFN
FI0RRES AENEREELE
2RI E 285 FIAZ

(188T)

EAQHEAFIH BEAUZTER
REBGF AR

85 (1&7])

BAMBHREER FEREERE
EO% BB

S H 2RI 395

KB AU GRS 4R

E75% (BR])

! KRB —$—-A—-BRdEERBZFEHRE
23

? HRRERMA T T - A - AxHERAR
ZEAFERRRBRRCRZEBAFREE

U B A 2
B RAFETE ARG 2 FEBRER
¢ R-E-TFE-A-RSEERBZFESNRE

23
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSS,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company consider that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs
is unlikely to have a material impact on the Group's financial
position and performance as well as disclosure in foreseeable
future.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
The amendments:

. add an optional concentration test that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The election on
whether to apply the optional concentration test is
available on transaction-by-transaction basis,

. clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set
of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs; and

° narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by
focusing on goods and services provided to customers
and by removing the reference to an ability to reduce
Costs.

“NEFTZA=+—-RLEE

FERFR] RAMER] BRI E L
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E MBI RERZHET RAEBET
BRMBRERER (&)

B EX 2Rl RSB RT BB I i £ R
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KRR FEREER
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EJ
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Continued)

The amendments are applied prospectively to all business
combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition
date is on or after the first annual reporting period beginning on
or after 1 January 2020, with early application permitted.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations in
making materiality judgments. In particular, the amendments:

. include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating the
information;

o replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”; and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than
simply referring to “users” which was considered too
broad when deciding what information to disclose in the
financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSS
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group but may affect
the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

FERFR] RAMER] BRI E L
A (TEEMBREE]) (&)

E MBI RERZHET RAEBET
BRMBRERER (&)

BB EEREIN (155]) ¥ B2 EH
(%)

ZEETRNRERBNMERERRAR
R CEF-A-HIIZEHBOHEESF
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I s FFHERTER A ©

BEBEERIE1RREBETERIESH
(1BET) EAMZEZE

% F BB BB AL E A H I
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HERRER:

e BEREIEZEMNMS HHEE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSSs in issue but

not yet effective (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the

“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References to

the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

. reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

° introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights
and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader
than the definition it replaces, but does not change the
distinction between a liability and an equity instrument;

° discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a

measurement basis for a particular asset or liability,

° states that the primary measure of financial performance
is profit or loss, and that only in exceptional circumstances
other comprehensive income will be used and only for
income or expenses that arise from a change in the

current value of an asset or liability; and

° discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the

reporting entity and combined financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards (Continued)

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSS have been updated to the New
Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to the
previous versions of the framework. These amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020, with earlier application permitted. Other than specific
standards which still refer to the previous versions of the
framework, the Group will rely on the New Framework on its
effective date in determining the accounting policies especially
for transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise
dealt with under the accounting standards.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 (Since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17
(before application of HKFRS 16) Leases, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS
36.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transferred at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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BrEE SRR MY EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liguidation.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest; and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

uUnder HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
g00ds or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group'’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Details of the Group's performance obligations for revenue for
contracts with customers resulting from application of HKFRS 15
are set out in note 7.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
fixed assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of fixed assets is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Effective from 1 January 2019, investment properties also
include lease properties which are being recognised as right-of-
use asset upon application of HKFRS 16 and subleased by the
Group under operating lease.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Effective from 1 January 2019, a leased properties which is
recognised as a right-of-use asset upon application of HKFRS
16 is derecognised if the Group as immediate lessor classifies
the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or l0ss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which
the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
trading rights is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effective of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately. Alternatively, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the assets are
derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
asset

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible asset with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible asset are estimated individually,
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
asset (Continueqd)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or, its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties for sale

Properties for sale which are intended to be sold upon
completion of development and properties for sale are
classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold land
element which is measured at cost model in accordance
with the accounting policies of right-of-use assets upon the
application of HKFRS 16, properties for sale are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a
specific identification basis including allocation of the related
development expenditure incurred and where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated cost to
completion and costs necessary to make the sales.

Properties for sale are transferred to properties for sale upon
completion.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from the amount as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continueq)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continueqd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the year, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of currency translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interest as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—T—hFE+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception or modification date. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both leasehold
land and non-lease building components, unless such allocation
cannot be made reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of leasehold properties that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option.

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases, the Group recognises right-of-use
assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
and

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Taxation

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include fixed lease payments (including in-
substance fixed payments).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using
the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the date of reassessment;

. the lease payments change due to changes in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect
to its investment properties to other parties.

Rental income from leases is recognised in other income on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging a lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Under HKAS 17 (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in other
income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-Z

“NEFTZA=+—-RLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17 (prior to 1 January 2019) (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the combined statements of financial position as obligations
under finance leases. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits scheme

are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—T—hFE+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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HONG KONG FINANCE INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « FE&mMREEREBER LT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"). except that at the date
of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in OCI if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

3. XEEFBE(E)

$HITH(Z)
SREE (&)

EHMEEDEREETE (B)

ATtz eMEEERZ QA FER
AHRMEEEA ([EAFEFARGBER
WAL FHE:

e NUEBANREREMHEEHRR
ZEBRATHABBEZERHEE &

s ANBFRREEEMELAZRERE
ERAXNARERREEZAENE -

PEEMEREELRRAFEF ARG
(TRAFEFAER]) RIFEERER
ST EREMEEE B AEEA A
HEERNE2EBAT2IRERE
ZEBRAFERE  AREZERERER
HFEEEMFURBIRERAHTHER
ZHEARRE (EZBRT  BAMBHREE
RIEIREF A GHER)

115



HONG KONG FINANCE INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « FE&mMREEREBER LT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term;

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

()  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.
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HONG KONG FINANCE INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « FE&mMREEREBER LT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-Z

“NEFTZA=+—-RLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in OCl and
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transfered to accumulated
losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the other income
line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 (Investment in equity instrument at
FVTOCI, statutory deposits, loan receivable, accounts receivable,
other receivables and deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—T—hFE+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/or
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the 10ss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBK(E)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SEIA(Z)

Financial assets (Continuea) SHEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) EHEEEE (&)

()  Significant increase in credit risk () EERBAELEM
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased R EVERREEERREE®E
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares EENE AEBEERREDHESR
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument THEBEAZEORRSEYGER B R
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default ERMIAZEEENRRETHR
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of EHETZAER FAEBEeEEREE
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group BAZHEsEFERTHER  BIEE
considers both quantitative and qualitative information FERNETVEZRASE MG
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical BELEBREAEEELR -

experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into BERmE A EERRELTEE
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased I @EEUTER:
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in BRI A ZIE (E)HRE

the financial instrument’s external (if available) or EEAHS-ERRTEHEES
internal credit rating; t:

e significant deterioration in external market o NS EERBIERECEER
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in b EEF ZKIBEN E5
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for AZEEENERER:
the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, o HIBSEAN 2 RB IR
financial or economic conditions that are expected MEH EHREEREBABT
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability HEEBET KRR TR

to meet its debt obligations;
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—T—hFE+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continuea)

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definitions.

TESHEE (&)

$RMITAE(Z)

EHEE (&)

EHMEERE (&)

(i)

SERBRAEE N (&)

s EBAREXECERXEHE
REft:

s EHAEE KLBEIRMRRZ
ERNERAERTHES B
BEBARBTEEBEEZENAN
N

T LR 2 B ROA ARER
BB A3 tﬂﬂtﬂma e

5@3F$%.ﬁéi¥ﬂ7§%2§ﬂa&
BRI JE QAL ©

BENME BRAEEREMEBIA
THREHHEREAEBREEFEER
B AIEB TAEBVIRERURZE
i’?ﬂ % 0 R A8 00 o i IR T HIE
AEBITAewHETAEERR
fWEE NEZ DRI  iNERAR
REBTENREREERZE A
K RN B R E BN 2 RHEAF
BETREET - EEHBERABT
AHBEESREBEETZEN -AEER
B WEBEIARNBRINBEEFTR
BEAREEZ [RER] MBEES
MEEZEERBRIE-

121
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(if)

122

Significant increase in credit risk (Continuea)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower,

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due
event,

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

124

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of accounts receivable, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
trade receivables are each assessed as a separate
group),

] Past-due status; and
o Nature, size and industry of debtors.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-Z
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or 10ss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of accounts
receivable where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other payables
and accrued expenses, borrowing and amount due to Directors
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (i) held for trading or (iii) it
is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—T—hFE+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
or contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. For financial liabilities that
contain embedded derivatives, such as convertible bonds, the
changes in fair value of the embedded derivatives are excluded in
determining the amount to be presented in other comprehensive
income. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they
are transferred to accumulated losses upon derecognition of the
financial liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds contain debt and derivative components

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a
conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods,
the entire convertible bonds are designated as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are remeasured to their fair
value as at the end of the reporting periods and changes in fair
values are recognised in profit or loss. Upon conversion of the
convertible bonds, the convertible bonds are remeasured to their
fair value as at the date of conversion and changes in fair values
are recognised in profit or loss. Transaction costs that relate to
the issue of these convertible bonds are charged to profit or loss
immediately.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or 10ss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

@)

(o)

132

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the company are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others),

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member),

(i) the entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continuea)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself such
a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group;

(viy  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity; and

(vii) the entity, or any member of the Group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity or to the parent of
the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of person are those family
members who may be expected to influence by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Group are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Group have made in the process of applying the Group's

4.

RS R AT RRERE
ZEBRR (&)

st REERR VIR EREEERA -
WA 2 ERTER EMAEET M
A Al EH R 2 JEAEKHHF'ﬁ%LME

i fis & AT 52 28 35 05 R R SR HAR - A E.aﬂéﬁaJr
ZAERTIMERT R R R EARE A F LA RE 77

RIER ST B 2 ERH

UTRASEEFTERAEBETERAB
RAPEL ZBRAE S REFE(RT
X BRIN) - L‘A&H“ﬂ?é%ﬁ%i&%ﬁﬁ%

accounting policies and that have the most significant effect CEHAARERZTE
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

Measurement of ECL FTEFEAEEEE

A number of significant judgements are also required in
applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such
as:

= Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

- Selecting appropriate models and assumptions for the
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measurement of ECL; and &
- Establishing the relative probability weightings of forward- — RYAEUERZMEBEMER-

looking scenarios.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

ECL of different financial assets is measured by the Group on
either a 12-month or lifetime basis depending on whether they
are in Stage 1, 2 or 3 as defined in note 6. A financial asset
moves to Stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, and it comes to Stage 3 when it is
credit-impaired (but it is not purchased original credit impaired).
In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
significantly increased, the Group takes into account qualitative
and guantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information with significant judgements involved.

Models and assumptions used

The Group uses various models and assumptions in estimating
ECL. Judgement is applied in identifying the appropriate model
for each type of financial assets, as well as the assumptions
used in these models. Please refer to note 6 for more details on
ECL.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
each reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BRSTHERMGTTAEERE
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION ZEERR (Z)

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL

Impairment assessment under ECL for trade and other
recelvables (except for cash clients and margin clients)

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
trade receivables (except for cash clients and margin clients)
that result from transactions within the scope of HKFRS 15. The
provision rates are based on debtor’s aging as groupings of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group's historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable and available without undue costs and effort.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
is considered. In addition, accounts receivable with significant
balances and credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL is disclosed in note 6.

Impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at
amortised cost other than accounts receivable (including cash
clients, margin clients, statutory deposits, other receivables and
aeposits, and bank balances)

The impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at
amortised cost (including cash clients, margin clients, statutory
deposits, other receivables and deposits, and bank balances) is
an area that requires the use of models and assumptions about
future economic conditions and the credit risk of the respective
financial instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—T—hFE+_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at
amortised cost other than accounts receivable (including cash
clients, margin clients, statutory deposits, other receivables and
deposits, and bank balances) (Continued)

(i) Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques

ECL is the discounted product of expected future cash
flows by using the Probability of Default (“PD"), LosS
Given Default (“LGD") and Exposure at Default (“EAD"),
of which PD and LGD are estimates based on significant
management judgement. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the management perform individual assessment
for each client by considering various factors, including
the realisable value of securities or collaterals from
clients and their guarantors which are held by the Group
and subsequent settlement and additional collaterals
received.

(i Forward-looking information

In measuring ECL in accordance with HKFRS 9, it should
consider forward-looking information. The calculation of
ECL incorporates forward-looking information through
the use of publicly available economic data and forecasts
based on assumptions and management judgement
to reflect the qualitative factors and through the use of
multiple probability weighted scenarios.

Details of the impairment assessment of financial assets
at amortised cost is disclosed in note 11.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BRSTHERMGTTAEERE
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION ZEERR (Z)

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Valuation of investment property

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by the independent professional valuer.
The valuers have determined the fair value based on a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying on
the valuation report prepared by the valuers, management
has reviewed the valuation including the assumptions and
estimates adopted.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists
of equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, accumulated losses and other reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a continuous basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with capital. The Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares as well as the issuance of new debts or
the redemption of existing debts. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission and are required to comply with
the financial resources requirements according to the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(the “SF(FR)R"). The Group's regulated entities are subject to
minimum paid-up share capital requirements and liquid capital
requirements under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors,
on a daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements under
the SF(FR)R. The Group's regulated entities have complied with
the capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R throughout
both years.
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e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EWMTAE
Categories of financial instruments ERITEER
2019 2018
—E-AF ZZ=—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Financial assets TREE
Investment in equity instrument at FVTOCI &2 A F{E&t A Hith
FHBAZEERIARE 1,224 1,566
Financial assets at amortised cost BHEERATTECREE 251,838 480,991
253,062 482,557
Financial liabilities — amortised cost = =Nk £ ) 0N 637,762 755,498
Financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL 1§ & Bz A FETABRZEHMEE - 104,055

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's financial instruments include investment in equity
instrument at FVTOCI, statutory deposits, loan receivables,
accounts receivable, other receivables and deposits, pledged
fixed deposits, bank balances and cash, accounts payable,
other payables and accrued expenses, amount due to Directors,
convertible bonds, corporate bonds and borrowings. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner. The Group's overall strategy substantially
remains unchanged from prior year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial
assets and financial liabilities that:

. are offset in the Group’s statement of financial position; or

o are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial
instruments, irrespective of whether they are offset in the
Group's statement of financial position.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC"), and brokers, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligation
receivable and payable with HKSCC and brokers on the same
settlement date and the Group intends to set off on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the same
date which are being offset, amounts due from/to HKSCC,
brokers and cash clients that are not to be settled on the same
date financial collateral including securities received by the
Group, deposit placed with HKSCC and brokers do not meet
the criteria for offsetting in the statement of financial position
since the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only
enforceable following an event of default.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EWMIE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERKBEEEEREE (£)
policies (Continueq)
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities BiiemEERSHERE (&)
(Continuead)
The amount offset and the net balance are shown as follows: H IS B R AT RO T
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Accounts Accounts Accounts Accounts
receivable payable receivable payable
FE W BR K FEfHEBR R FE W BR 3K FET BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FEx FET FET

Gross amounts of cash client REFFPREBPREH

and Hong Kong Securities BRARIERE

Clearing Company Limited 36,993 (110,565) 25,425 (108,397)
Amounts offsetting HiHSHE (29,393) 29,393 (12,137) 12,137

Net amount of cash client ReBEPREBRRLEH
and Hong Kong Securities BRARER

Clearing Company Limited 7,600 (81,172) 13,288 (96,260)
Balance not offsetting REHETT 99,129 (73,988) 261,068 (207,264)
Allowance of provision of FHREIRE

bad debt (45) - (667) -

Net amount presented inthe R A BN KRR
consolidated statement of 252558
financial position 106,684 (155,160) 273,689 (303,524)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

As the Group’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities are
mainly in functional currency of respective group entities, the
currency risk resulting from daily operations is considered
not significant. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate pledged fixed deposits, loan receivables, corporate
bonds and borrowings. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate of bank balances,
loans to securities margin clients and amount due to Directors.
The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate arising
from the Group's variable-rate loans to securities margin clients
and amount due to Directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continueq)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate loans
to securities margin clients and amount due to a Director
mentioned above at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of assets and
liabilities recorded at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point (2018: 50
basis point) increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point (2018: 50 basis point)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$350,000 (2018:
HK$360,000).

The effect on bank balances has not been taken into account in
preparing the sensitivity analysis because the effect involved is
not significant.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTOCI. For equity
securities measured at FVTOCI quoted in the Stock Exchange,
the management manages this exposure by closely monitoring
the risk. The Group will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date. For sensitivity
analysis of equity securities the sensitivity rate is increased to
20% in current year as a result of the volatile financial market.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 20%
(2018: 20%) higher/lower, the other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2019 would increase/decrease
by HK$244,000 (2018: increase/decrease by HK$313,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of investments at FVTOCI.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—T—hFE+_A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continueq)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group's credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to accounts receivable, loan receivables,
other receivables and deposits, pledged fixed deposit, bank
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets, except that the credit risks associated
with loans to securities margin clients included in accounts
receivable and loan receivables of HK$72,361,000 and
HK$1,992,000 is mitigated because they are secured over
properties or listed securities.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets under ECL model. Information about the Group’s credit
risk management, maximum credit risk exposures and the
related impairment assessment, if applicable, are summarised
as below:

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures over
the customers to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts for securities cash clients, securities
margin clients and advising on corporate finance. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
allowances are made for irrecoverable amounts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 on accounts balances individually
or based on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the
Group consider that the credit risk is significantly reduced.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Accounts receivable from cash clients arising from the business
of dealing in securities

As described in more details in note 29, the credit risk on
cash clients arising from the business of dealing in securities
are managed through daily monitoring of the outstanding
exposures from individual clients and realisable values of
individual client’s securities. The Group has concentration of
credit risk to five largest cash clients’ exposure representing
31% (2018: 39%) of the total cash clients as at 31 December
2019. The balances due from the five largest cash clients
were approximately HK$2,203,000 (2018: HK$4,167,000). Apart
from the exposures to five largest cash clients’ exposure
mentioned above, the directors of the Group consider that the
concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base
being large and unrelated.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continueq)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Accounts receivable arising from loan to securities margin
clients

As described in more detail in note 29, the credit risk on loan to
securities margin clients is managed through daily monitoring
of the outstanding exposures from individual clients, margin
values and realisable values of individual client’s securities. The
Group has concentration of credit risk to ten largest securities
margin clients’ exposure representing 83% (2018: 83%) of the
total loans to margin clients as at 31 December 2019. The
balances due from the ten largest securities margin clients
were approximately HK$60,150,000 (2018: HK$56,620,000) as at
31 December 2019, of which the amount is secured by clients’
securities with an aggregate fair value of HK$150,834,000
(2018: HK$142,209,000) as at 31 December 2019. Apart
from the exposures to ten largest margin clients’ exposure
mentioned above, the directors of the Group consider that the
concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base
being large and unrelated.

Accounts receivable from the business of advisory for financial
management and properties investment

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the directors of the
Company consider that the concentration of credit risk on
business of advisory for financial management and properties
investment are limited due to the customer base being large
and unrelated.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Accounts receivable from trading of electronic proaucts

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 68% (2018:
96%) and 100% (2018: 100%) of the total accounts receivable
was due from the Group's largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively within the trading of
electronic products. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.

Loan receivables

As described in more details in note 27, the credit risk on loan
receivables is managed through regular analysis of the ability of
borrowers to meet interest and principal repayment obligations
and by changing the lending limits where appropriate. Exposure
to credit risk is also managed by obtaining collateral. As at 31
December 2019, apart from the exposures to the concentration
of credit risk from one independent counterparty amounting
to HK$1,992,000 (2018: three independent counterparties
amounting to HK$20,506,000), the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk on loan receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continueq)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Accounts receivable arising from HKFECC & HKSCC

The credit risk of accounts receivable from HKFECC & HKSCC is
considered as not material taking into account the good market
reputations and high credit ratings of the counterparties.

Pledged bank deposit/Bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
authorised credit-rating agencies.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The directors of the
Company believe that there are no significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group assessed the ECL for
other receivables and deposits were insignificant and thus no
loss allowance was recognised.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

Internal
credit rating
ABEEFTR
Low risk

KRk

Doubtful

T 5t

Loss

18

Written-off

150

Description
it

The counter party has a low risk
of default and does not have any
past-due amounts
RGHEFHRARBBEER
I AT (A8 B R IR

There have been significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition
information developed internally or
external resources

B A BBk HNER B IR E K 2 B FHER R

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit impaired
BREBBETNBEHREELREERE

There is evidence indicating that debtor
is severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery

EEBBETESARARENBKEE
B 7R & [F 17 % F R p] Y B 78 2R

6. EWMIT A (&)

BEEREEEERBER (&)

=& mfe R (&)

A& B AEE B R R AR R G EE T

Al

Accounts
receivable
PR BR X

Lifetime ECL -
not credit impaired

EHEREEER-
AHBEERE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit impaired
HRAEEBE -
RHEREERE
Lifetime ECL -
credit impaired
>HIEBEEBE -
HIREERE

Amount is written off

WK A B R

Other
financial assets
HE@mEE

12-month ECL
1218 A 78 28
EEEE
Lifetime ECL -
not credit impaired
2HEHREEBE-
REREERE
Lifetime ECL —
credit impaired
>HIEHEEEIE -
HIREERE

Amount is written off

WA B R
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SRT R (£)

Financial risk management objectives and HMERKMEEEEREE (£)
policies (Continueq)

.

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EER R EEFEG (&)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's

financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment:

TRAMAEEALETEBEEEEN G
ZEBMEEZEERRBMO:

2019 2018
12-month Gross Gross
External Internal  or lifetime carrying carrying
Notes  credit rating credit rating ECL amounts amounts
128A =
B A 2HEH —ZT-RF ZT-N\F
B & EEFR EEFE FEEE HEREE BIEEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEL
Financial assets at REHEKAGTEZ
amortised cost PREE
Statutory deposits EEEE 26 N/A (Note 1) 12-month ECL 4,030 4,075
TEA (KIEE1) 12 ATEHER
EEER
Accounts receivable BHEBHEBEPRS 29 N/A (Note 2)  Lifetime ECL 7,060 10,674
arising from dealing FTEE & 2 FEWBR X T A E) S HITEH
in securities-cash clients EEEE
Loans to securities KTEBHRELEP 29 N/A (Note 2)  Lifetime ECL 72,395 68,646
margin clients ZEX TEA (PHEE2) 2 HEATEH
EEE
Accounts receivable BTEMEHEB 29 N/A (Note 2)  Lifetime ECL 24,786 179,912
arising from business FTE4 2 EIER K i (P3E2) 2T
of trading electronic FEEE
products
Accounts receivable ES S e 29 N/A (Note 3)  Lifetime ECL 368 10,031
arising from business 7 AR TEA (PH3E3) 2T
of properties investment EEEE
Accounts receivable HELERAR 29 N/A (Note 2)  Lifetime ECL 1,908 4,458
arising from HKFECC & BRGEREE T A (FiEE2) ZHITEH
HKSCC pd L CE A =EEE
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

External
Notes

SR
k=3 EEFR

EMTA(E)

BEEREEEERBER (&)

EE R R E G (&)

credit rating credit rating

Accounts receivable MBEREAER 29 N/A
arising from business FTEE 4 2 FEWBR 3K i A
of advisory for financial
management

Other receivables Hin B R RE S 30 N/A
and deposits i A

Loan receivables FEWE R 27 N/A

TEA

Pledged fixed deposits BEERTEHFR 31 N/A

TEA

Bank balances RITET (FE R 31 Aa3

(trust and segregated BAERF)

accounts)

Bank balances

(general accounts) and cash
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RITHER (—REP)
LEE

31

Aa3

12-month

Internal  or lifetime
ECL

12BA =

R 2HES

H -6 FEE#E
(Note 2)  Lifetime ECL
(FtEE2) 2 HEATEE
EEEBE

(Note 1) 12-month ECL
(FF&E1T)  12@ B8
EEE

(Note 2) 12-month ECL
(KsE2) 12 ATEHR
EEEE

(Note 5) 12-month ECL
(KIEE5)  12{B ATEHR
FEEE

(Note 5) 12-month ECL
(Ff3E5)  12@ B8
EEE

(Note 5) 12-month ECL
(KI5E5) 12 ATEHR
EEEE

2019
Gross
carrying
amounts
—E-NF
BEREE
HK$'000
THER

212

29,422

1,992

5,264

83,766

20,680

2018
Gross

carrying
amounts

—E-)N\F
BEEREE
HK$'000
FERT

6

32,084

20,506

5,251

104,231

41,155
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continueq)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

(1M

Included in other receivables and deposits are amounts representing
other receivables and refundable deposits for operating securities dealing
business and for using trading system which the Group is entitled but held
by SEHK, SFC, HKSCC, HKFE and supplier. The Group assessed the loss
allowance for these other receivables and deposits on 12-month ECL basis.
In determining the ECL, the Group has taken into account the historical
default experience and forward-looking information as appropriate. There
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
The Group has considered the consistently low historical default rate in
connection with payments and concluded that credit risk inherent in the
Group's outstanding balances is insignificant.

There is no fixed repayment terms for other receivables as at years ended
2019 and 2018.

SRTITR (&

BHEREEERREE (&)

=&

2 B2 R R AE A A (48D

Hip R A R IZ e BERELESEEEB R
ERRZEG (AREARERERT BN

BEEG BETREE HUXMARREERE) M
EEZHMBEUERR K FTREZRE - AR EZ12
BEATRREREREETHZE A ERIRR R
Bez BREE RETEAERBER A%H
Rt RELENERIAELEES (WER) -8
FIRRERIAR - FERR Y MBEE LN - AR EE
BEERANFZELENERERE BALTE
EREREHZEFERRTEBELN

BE_Z-NFR-ZF-N\FULFEZHMBEK
BR R f (B E AR SRR o
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

154

For accounts receivable (except for business of properties investment) and
loan receivables, the Group has applied the general approach in HKFRS 9
to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the
expected credit losses on these items by individual assessment.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and borrowers are
adjusted for forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
provided HK$11,000 and HK$34,000 impairment allowance for accounts
receivable arising from dealing in securities cash clients and loans to
securities margin clients respectively on the individual assessment.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been

EMTH (&)
MBERERERRBR (&)

EER R EF G (E)

Hrat: (&)

)

LU (T RIEMEREED) REKRE KM
FOAKRECERAESHBHREREAE 2 —K
HERERENEEERTEERRE-ARE
FEREREEEASERA CRAEEER

HFHBBRDRBEFARERAZBFAIRE
M ESPBRENR TG IRBEF B
LRSS NN A S 2 BIE M ERHED AR -
REBE-Z—NE+_A=+—HALEE K&
EERBEFEDNREBLFREEFPRIE
EZRBERRETEFRBSRPZERE
BB 7 #811,0007%8 JT 134,000/ 7T °

TRINFRBEBCIDEREYCE & TP BRRHER

recognised for trade receivables from cash clients under the simplified ZEHEHEEEERES-
approach.
Movement in the oss allowance of cash clients ReBEFEEREESE
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET

Balance at beginning of the year FREH 6 941
Adoption of HKFRS 9 FRANE B B 1 E 2E R ZE 958 - (936)
Impact on adoption of HKFRS 9 HNEBMBREENEI Rz E 6 5
Additional for the year REEIEM 1 6
Amounts written off as uncollectible 85 1S AT e [B] R IE (6) ()
Balance at end of the year FRREEH 1 6




Annual Report 2019 « —ZE—hFEFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSSR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continteq) 6. TRMIA(#Z
Financial risk management objectives and MERREEEEREE (&2)

policies (Continueq)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contintied) =B B b R EF G (&)

Notes: (Continued) Mt (&)

() (Continued) @ (&)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been TRITRIEBE A ERERBFFARESELE
recognised for trade receivables from securities margin clients under the RER AR EEBRES-

simplified approach.

Movement in the loss allowance of securities margin clients EHRERELEEE G ZE
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FiTT
Balance at beginning of the year FHREH 32 57
Adoption of HKFRS 9 RNE B TR AR 595 - 6
Impact on adoption of HKFRS 9 HRMEBMBREENES R E 32 63
Additional/(Reversal) for the year REFEIM (BE) 2 (31
Amounts recovered during the year AEEZWE & = =
Balance at end of the year FREE 34 32
In determining the recoverability of the accounts receivable, the Group AEBRETERBER T RE#ER  2Z &
considers any change in the credit quality of the accounts receivable from APAEEEERSHEERRSE QB2 B
the date credit was initially granted, subsequent settlement and the fair REEER HEZERARBERRBESRZ
value of pledged marketable securities up to the reporting date. In the AEEZEAE - EEZRA BAELREER
opinion of the Directors, there is no further credit provision required in BENIINZE—SEERE-

excess of existing loss allowance.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continteq) 6. TRMIA(#Z
Financial risk management objectives and MERREEEEREE (&2)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contintied) =B B b R EF G (&)

Notes: (Continued) Mt (&)

(2  (continued) @ (&)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been TRITREE A ERERERERZ 28T
recognised for loan receivables under the simplified approach. HMiEEEERE

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit (not credit
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
2HES 2HEY
EEFE FEEFE
12188 (RER (RER
AHEEFE FERE) EERHE) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FHT FiET FET
As at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\5—A—H
Changes due to financial instruments AR =Z—\F—A—B#ER
recognised as at 1 January 2018: SRITAMEE:
- Impairment losses recognised —ERRAEEE 53 - - 53
— Impairment losses reversed -BEERRESE (12) S S 12)
As at 31 December 2018 R-Z—-\F+=ZA=+—H 41 - - 4
Changes due to financial instruments  EARZZT—hF—F—B#R
recognised as at 1 January 2019: SEMIAMEE:
- Impairment losses reversed -BEBREBR 33 S = (33)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-AF+ZA=1—H 8 = S 8
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(3) For accounts receivable arising from business of properties investment,
the Group has applied the general approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected credit
losses on these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by past due
status.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
During the both years, no impairment allowance on accounts receivable
are provided based on the provision matrix assessed individually as the
amounts involved are immaterial.

(4) The credit risk on bank balances (including segregated and general
accounts) are limited because the counterparties are with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. Majority of bank
balances are deposited in reputable large commercial banks with credit
rating of Aa3 or above issued by Moody's.

Impairment assessment policies
The Group's policy requires the review of individual outstanding

amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on
individual circumstances or market condition.
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EERERRRERFG (&)
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BEBREDRBEBAZEAABFHRZESL
BB R TG TR BANEBERASL
LHANAERZ ATEEERMEHBE - RMESF
ER RS R SBETEN  WERREETTE
B FT 1 2 1848 AE I ot FE MR BR SRR RO (B B A o

@) BRXZETFEEREEIARERTRERT
o MRTER (BEBUR—REF) 2EER
AR - RE D RITHREFF RN ER B T A3
NEEEFBRZEERFZREHERT

B EF G BR
AEBZBRREBRELBRASIERTEBMN
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Impairment assessment policies (Continued)

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the risk management department
is responsible in developing and maintaining the processes for
measuring ECL, the impairment requirements under HKFRS
9. The ECL are assessed by the Group on annual basis. The
Group applies simplified approach to measure ECL on accounts
receivable (except for margin clients); and general approach to
measure ECL on accounts receivable for margin client and other
financial assets accounted for at amortised cost. Under the
simplified approach, the Group measures the loss allowance at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL. Under the general approach,
financial assets migrate through the following three stages
based on the change in credit risk since initial recognition: Stage
1:12-month ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired and
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired.

Definition of Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 are as below:

Stage 1:  Exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
that are not credit-impaired upon origination, the
portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the
probability of default events occurring within the
next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2. Exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but
are not credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting
the remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continueq)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Impairment assessment policies (Continued)

Stage 3:  Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have
occurred. For exposures that have become credit-
impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest
revenue is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision)
rather than the gross carrying amount.

For such financial assets classified as Stages 1 and 2, the
management assesses loss allowances using the risk parameter
modelling approach that incorporates key parameters,
including PD, LGD and EAD. For credit-impaired financial assets
classified as Stage 3, the management assesses the credit loss
allowances by estimating the future cash flows expected to
arise from the financial assets.

The measurement of ECL adopted by the management involves
judgements, assumptions and estimations as follows:

o Determination of the criteria for significant increase in
credit risk;

° Selection of the appropriate models and assumptions; or

. Establishment of relative probability weightings for
forward-looking scenarios.

SRITHEH(EZ)
HEEREEEERKE (£)

=& mfe R (&)
BEFFIEEE (&)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Measurement of ECL

The ECL are measured on either a 12-month or Lifetime basis
depending on whether a significant increase in credit risk
has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is
considered to be credit-impaired.

PD represents an estimate of the likelihood of default of a
borrower on its financial obligation over a given horizon, i.e. over
the next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime. For margin
clients, the Group determines PD by the internal credit ratings.
For other financial assets at amortised cost, the external credit
ratings and related PD are taken into consideration.

LGD represents an estimate of the loss on default. For margin
clients, LGD is determined based on factors including the
realisation value of collateral and the estimated volatility. For
other financial assets at amortised cost, LGD is determined
based on assessed publicly available information from credit-
rating agencies.

EAD represents the amounts expected to be owed at the time of
default over the next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on
the Group'’s historical experience and credit risk assessment,
including forward-looking information. Margin clients use the
number of days past due and loan-to-collateral value (“LTV")
to determine significant increase in credit risk. Other financial
assets use number of days past due as determinant of credit
risk. Credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly if the
credit rating has significantly deteriorated at the reporting date
relative to the credit rating at the date of initial recognition.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Forward looking information

The estimation of credit loss under all stages is taking into
consideration of forward looking information. The Group
identifies the key economic driver impacting credit risk and ECL
to be the growth rate of domestic GDP. The Group applied the
probability weighted scenarios for incorporating the forward
looking information. The growth rate of domestic GDP has
been used in determining the probability-weighting of each
of the optimistic scenario, base case scenario and pessimistic
scenario. These probability-weighted ECLs are determined by
running each scenario through the relevant ECL model and
multiplying it by the appropriate scenario weighting.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group's liquidity position is monitored on a daily basis
by management and is reviewed monthly by the Directors.
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities as at 31 December 2019, the
amount of HK$665,766,000 (2018: HK$859,553,000). The table
has been drawn up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. The interest payments are computed using
contractual rates or, if variable, based on the prevailing interest
rate at the end of each reporting period.
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. — = —
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 6. €I A (&
Financial risk management objectives and HMERKBEEEEREE (£
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEBELRERE (&)
Weighted  On demand Total
average and 3 months undiscounted carrying
interest rate orless  3-6months  6-12 months 12 year 25years  Over5years  cash flows amount
RERR
nE  R=fREA FHE
Ra:Fik Wa ZEXBR AET-EA —-EmE MERE BFNLE REREEE KEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FhR FhR FhR FhR Fhr Fhz T#R T#R
Financial liabilities EREE
At31 December 2019 RZF-AF+ZA=1-B
Accounts payable FERER - 155,160 - - - - - 155,160 155,160
Other payables and accrual expenses EhERRSRESER - 38,779 - - - - - 38,779 38,779
Amount due to Director Efi-2825E - 51,395 - - - - - 51,395 51,395
Amount due to Director Efi-2825E 5.125% 57,897 - - - - - 57,897 57,897
Borrowings &g
~Variable rate -38 5% 609 609 1232 2,450 50,967 - 55,867 49,000
-Fixed rate -ER 8.80% 5,056 5111 264,916 = = = 275,083 255910
Corporate bonds ARfES 7.03%11.57% - - 2,030 12,634 17,288 2,002 33,954 29,621
Lease liabilities BEARE 5.125%-6.290% 670 670 1276 2,487 1,038 = 6,141 5769
309,566 6,390 269,454 17,511 69,293 2,002 674,276 643,531
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  and 3months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate orless 36months  6-12months 1-2 year 2-5years  Over5years cash flows amount
RERR
mE  R=BRR FHE
% WA ZEREBR AET=EA —ZMmE BERE LENE ReRELE FaE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR FAL FAL FAL
Financial liabilities
At31 December 2018
Accounts payable EIES - 303524 - = S S = 303524 303524
Other payables and accrual expenses HibEME R ER - 2,393 - - - - - 2,393 2393
Amount due to Director E-28%03 - 19,703 - - - - - 19,703 19,703
Amount due to Director ER-2EFHA 5.125% 65,788 - - - - - 65,788 65,788
Borrowings B8
- Variable rate -%8 5125% 859 839 67,131 S S & 68829 66,021
- Fixed rate X8 8.8% 5056 5056 10,166 213769 5 = 294,047 254,509
Corporate bonds DAES 1.0%
11.99% S S 1470 1470 18,843 4,275 26,058 19,560
Convertible bonds TERES - 104,055 - - - - - 104,055 104,055
525,378 5895 78767 275239 18,843 4275 908,397 859,953
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair values

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. The Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair
values.

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

SRTIR (&)
AP

BHHAFEHEZERABREBE A
AFE

TREENERABZIAFERARTE
BAERURBASREINET EFRR
REMBBERNREHERAI RS HE
EMEBRABNREERLRAFERE-

KERENFETABZAEELHEER LM
BEZAFE

AN B HREN S - AFEFERER
FEFEBARBEZABREELATE
AERABBHEAERRBIEENSRARE
B _RAFE=H FBWOT:

s FERBABEBNERNAEAHA
BBz HRBEEXRBERNERMSEZ
WE(RERE) :

s FABABRBNEEXRRBZEER
FMEABRBARE (F-AME
TRIRERIN) R

s FEMBABEBNEELREBEZIAA

liability. B ABE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B EBZ® B=M aH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—-NF+=-A=+—H
Investment in equity BEATEFAEMEE
instrument at FVTOCI WAZBRARTERE 1,224 - - 1,224
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+=-A=+—8
Investment in equity BEATEFAEMEZE
instrument at FVTOCI WAZBRATAKE 1,566 - - 1,566
Convertible bonds AR ES - 104,055 - 104,055
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7.

REVENUE 7. WEHF
2019 2018
—E-AFE —ZZEN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Continuing operations BERSEER
Revenue from contracts with EEBU B RS ERE 155 EE R
customers within the scope of REZEMIRBERES 2
HKFRS 15, disaggregated by major BEPEAHMBA:
products or services lines:
Trading Business: BHo%E%:
Sales of electronic products HEEFEM 508,799 896,098
Financial Business: DRI
Commission and brokerage income GRS E SR PN 5,727 13,703
Advisory and consultancy fee BAEME 3,108 1,220
517,634 911,021
Revenue from other sources outside the — #E & /8 81 15 T & 2 B 551557 5 & Hh
scope of HKFRS 15: KA E AR 2 W E
Financial Business: EEER:
Interest income arising from SRMEBEE 2T BWA
financial business 8,377 9,173
Property investment: MERE
Rental income e WA 11,995 22,281
20,372 31,454
538,006 942,475
At a point in time BE—RHEE 517,634 910,471
Over time B& 5 - 550
517,634 911,021
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REVENUE (Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

(1)

()

3

(4)

Dealing in securities and futures

The Group provides broking and dealing services for
securities and futures dealing. Commission income is
recognised at a point in time on the execution date of the
trades at a certain percentage of the transaction value
of the trades executed. The Group also provide handling
service for securities, futures, customer accounts. Fee
income is recognised when the transaction is executed.

Corporate finance advisory

The Group also provides corporate advisory services to
corporate clients for their corporate actions. The Group
considers that all the services promised in a particular
contract of being a corporate advisor are interdependent
and interrelated and should be therefore accounted for as
a single performance obligation. As there is enforceable
right to payment for the Group for the performance of
services completed up to date based on the contracts
with customers regarding sponsor or corporate advisory
services, the revenue is recognised over time.

Investment advisory services

The Group provides investment advisory services on
diversified and comprehensive investment products to
customers. The customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefit provided by the Group, accordingly,
the revenue is recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time. Investment advisory fee income is
charged at a fixed amount per month for managing the
investment portfolio of each client.

Sales of electronic products
Revenue from trading of electronic products are

recognised at a point in time when the goods have been
delivered to the customer’s specific location.
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8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hfttg A
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Continuing operations FEREEL
Interest income from bank RITHREHA 50 29
Sundry income HIFRA 522 232
Handling charge income FEEWA 590 1,464
Dividend income &% 2 WA - 86
1,162 1,811
OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES Hith W= ESHE
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Continuing operations BESEXER
Gain (loss) of early redemption of REEOMBRES K= (B1E)
convertible bonds 2,072 (267)
Net exchange gain FE 5,k 2 05 B8 4,388 5,003
Fair value change on convertible bonds ~ AJ# IR E%H 2 XA FEEZ S = 3,655
Impairment loss on property, Y- BB RE&E 2 REEE
plant and equipment (17,679) -
(11,219) 8,391
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on the nature of the products provided and services
rendered.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group is
currently organised into the four operation and reportable
segments — (1) trading business, (2) mineral mining, oil and gas
business (3) financial business and (4) property investment.
These revenue streams are the basis of the internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the Board of Directors in order to allocate resources to
segments and to access their performance.

Trading business - sales of electronic products
Mineral mining, oil -

and gas business

exploration and production of
mineral, oil and gas

Financial business - provision of financial service,
including stockbroking, futures
and options broking, mutual funds,
insurance-linked investment
plans and provision of corporate
financial services and immigration
consultancy services, and
securities margin financing

Property investment - rental income
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

10. &

qHER (&)

THRAEEDBREREEZ DN -

BE-_Z-hAF+-A=1T-HLEE

Mineral
Trading mining, oil and Financial Property
business  gas business business investment  Consolidated
23 8
EHEK BREHR SRER WERE RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TET
REVENUE [
Segment revenue SEKE 508,799 - 17,212 11,995 538,006
RESULTS E4
Segment (loss)/profit N (BB)/ &7 (256) (47) (10,188) 996,859 986,368
Corporate administration costs A RI{TEE (53,517)
Impairment loss on other HiERER 2 RERBE
receivables (4,487)
Gain of early redemption of REBRAARES 2 Wm
convertible bonds 2,072
Profit before taxation FELEEB L RBANET
from continuing operations 930,436
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2EEHR (&)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) PEWREREE(FE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_Z—N\F+ZA=1+—HILFE
Mineral
Trading  mining, oil and Financial Property
business gas business business investment Consolidated
-
BHED HRER SRED MERE 4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT FET THT THT
REVENUE i
Segment revenue Gy lle 896,098 = 24,096 22,281 942,475
RESULTS ES
Segment profit/(l0ss) AR/ (BE) 6,556 (2,105) (4,355) 294,427 294,523
Corporate administration costs A E{THE A (44,611)
Loss on redemption of BRASARESRCEBE
convertible bonds (266)
Fair value change of MhRESR 2 ATEES
convertible bonds 3,655
Profit before taxation BECEEB ZBRBARA
from continuing operations 253,301
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the BiED i,\ SRR EAEE SRR
same as the Group's accounting policies. Segment profit/ Ren¥EuF(BR)ELES EE UNCIES
(loss) represents the financial results by each segment without HRERBATENE U BEE - ERME
allocation of corporate administration costs. This is the measure EEE2RER AN UDEER KX
reported to the Board of Directors for the purposes of resource 3 o

allocation and performance assessment.
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 EER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities THEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities T RAEBSBEERBEZDIT:
by segment:
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—-hE+=-A=+-—8H
Mineral
Trading mining, oil and Financial Property
business  gas business business investment  Consolidated
23 8
EHEK BREHR SRMER WERE RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T THx T

ASSETS EE
Segment assets NEEE 74,713 4 204,501 4,392,106 4,671,324
Unallocated assets REIBEE 741
Consolidated total assets REEERE 4,672,065
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities AEAE 67,293 499 159,205 378,954 605,951
Unallocated liabilities REBERE 393,789
Consolidated total liabilities REBEESE 999,740
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

10. 28EHR (&)

THEERKE (&)

hY

—NE+ZA=T-RALFE

At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-NF+ZA=+—H
Mineral
Trading  mining, oil and Financial Property
business gas business business investment Consolidated
Wik
EGES S BRER SERER MERE ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TET FHEL TEL
ASSETS EE
Segment assets NEEE 195,153 6 257,055 3,557,883 4,010,097
Unallocated assets REIBEE 23,319
Consolidated total assets GEEERE 4,033,416
LIABILITIES =
Segment liabilities SEEE 189,224 591 202,233 94,792 486,840
Unallocated liabilities REBEE 476,805
Consolidated total liabilities RAEBEES 963,645
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and RERSERRESEERTESEMS

allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
bank balances and cash for administrative purpose and
other assets including other receivables, prepayments

and deposits of head office.

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments, other
payables and accrued expenses in relation to corporate

administration costs.

BRAETTERAZ 2 RIT/EFRREUR
i@¥b¥$&’iﬁ{ﬁi§fg (B HE MU AR

CFANE

RERZE) I FREEED

M%Mi“ﬁ°

MERBEESETEENHE HARF
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 HER (&
Other segment information Hih o EE R
Mineral
Trading  mining, oil and Financial Property
business  gas business business investment Total  Unallocated  Consolidated
R
2558 BRER SRER NERE RS AAR ga
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn FiEn TEn TEn FiEn TEn
Continuing operation RELEXE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T-hE
TZA=+-RBLEER
Amounts included in the measure of HENERR (B3
segment profit oss) or segment assets: PEEESALEE:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% BERRERE 13 - 301 4,588 4,902 107 5,009
Depreciation of right of use assets FREEENE 179 - 2,301 - 2,480 - 2,480
Finance costs HBER - - 4,696 - 4,696 25,936 30,632
Interest income FEBA (47) = (8,377) @ (8,427) = (8,427)
Reversal of loss allowance BEERER - - 17 - 17 (4,487) (4,470)
Mineral
Trading  mining, oil and Financial Property
business gas business husiness investment Total Unallocated Consolidated
Bo%% BRER SRER nERAE af AAR )
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS' HK$'000 HKS'000
T TEL T THL Fir T TEL
Continuing operation RELEEK
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZZ-\F
TZA=T-HLEE
Amounts included in the measure of SENREN (BR)%
segment profit loss) or segment assets: PREEHAZEE:
Amortisation & - 1,401 - - 1401 - 1401
Depreciation ik 4 - 316 4,390 4710 21 4971
Finance costs §IHER - - 4976 - 4976 25,240 30216
Interest income HMEKA (17) - (9,174 (12 9,203) - 9,20)
(Reversal)/Adition of loss allowance (BR)/ENEEEE 629 - (37 - 592 - 592
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10.

Geographical information

All of the activities of trading business are based in China. The
activities of mineral mining is based in Kenya, while oil and
gas business are based in Tunisia and Madagascar. All of the
activities of the financial business are based in Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue from continuing operations and its non-
current assets, other than deposit paid for acquisition of
a subsidiary, financial assets at FVTOCI, statutory deposits
and loan receivables, by geographical location of the assets
regarding its operations are detailed below:

PHEER ()
i & & R

B 5%z — I EBEES LT - RBE
BEARTET MEREHEREATR
BEMMIETT - SRMEHZ —DEDES
AT -

BRE RN B A RN 23S RATE
HARMEEMAZSHEE ATHER
BRESN ARBZAE 0B EE S
HAEH 2 B EEEES L WERHIERD
AERFENT

Revenue Non-current assets
U % FRBEE

2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-AE ZE-N\F ZEB-RFE ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET TER FET
Hong Kong N 17,212 24,096 5,971 756
PRC H 517,844 916,330 2,339,517 1,577,583
Madagascar S MnET N 2,950 2,049 110,742 114,856
538,006 942,475 2,456,230 1,693,195
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continueq) 10. 2EEHR (&)
Information about major customer FEEFZEH
Revenue from customers of the year from continuing WTABE-_ZE—NEFER_E—N\F+=
operations ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 contributing A=+—BLFELRERBEKZEE10%
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are generated from LIMBEEARBES  HBELEEB 2
mining business as follow: P
2019 2018
—ZE—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Customer A BFEHF 287,166" 807,6620
Customer B P Z 130,6427 -
Customer C PR 59,3020 -
There is no other single customer contributing over 10% of total HE_Z— N EFEkZZ—-—N\F+ZH
revenue from continuing operations of the Group for the years —t+t—HALtFE YEEME-KXFERMAK
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. EERELEEBBUE10%A L -
1 Revenue from trading business L REEHEBz W

11. IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 11. IR A ECSREEZR

AT AMORTISED COST, NET BEEEFE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Continuing operations FEREEK
Accounts receivable arising from: AT S IBFTE & 2 EUBR 3K
— cash clients —-He®EP (14) (6)
—margin clients —REBEESEF (2) 31
— trading business — B HEK - (629)
Loan receivables FERE R 33 12
Other receivable E e UK BR 3K (4,487) =
(4,470) (592)
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12. FINANCE COSTS 12. IBER
2019 2018
—E-AE —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FET
Continuing operations FEREEL
Interest on: I TEIEHNE
Corporate bonds YNSEEE- 2,061 1,718
Borrowings BE 25,116 25,014
Amounts due to directors JERTEEHRIE 3,237 3,484
Lease liabilities HEARE 218 -
30,632 30,216
13. TAXATION 13. BB
Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and FEBRmkEMEENRKR ZAFTIIE:
other comprehensive income represents:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Continuing operations BEREEK
Current tax — enterprise income tax BVERRR I — F A {b PTG T B 1
provision for the year 16 1,835
Deferred tax — origination and RERIE-ERNEE s EERED
reversal of temporary difference 252,937 71,830
252,953 73,665
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13. TAXATION (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 as the relevant group
entities have no assessable profits or the assessable profit is
wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both
years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. No provision for profits
tax is made in other jurisdictions as the subsidiaries operating in
other jurisdictions have no assessable profits for both years.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

“NEFTZA=+—-RLEE

13. BiE (&)

HRBE-_Z-AFR-_FT-N\F+_A
=+—H ti&*ﬁﬁ%%@%%ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁm
a8 |+ 3 R% BB AR I 2 2 AR Al B TR B
BB RYERZMEFEHERBNE
i o

REBEREARANBEBARERMABH A
RUEEMBRE) REEMETEZE
HeiED) PEMBARNMEFE ZRES
25% °

R E A AR R E £ 2 BRZ AR A
BRTHEAE AREEM B EERZEE
2 B 1 B B AR A R 00 AT AR PR AR AR
Al A BT R E M RUARE R 2 RIS -

FEHERGABEREMEEKERZ
B AT IBE BRI T

2019 2018
—E-h#F —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation B 754 AT 930,436 253,301
Taxation charge at the Hong Kong INEABMEHE16.5%1E
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% ZBHIEH 153,522 41,795
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBHA
for tax purpose 2B E (35) (29)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses REERGET B EE
not recognised 2GR 1,525 820
Tax effect of expenses not deductible R
for tax purpose 2B e 12,079 4,752
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 7 HE fth R A#E @ & & NS
operating in other jurisdictions TRAMEzZE 85,862 26,327
Taxation for the year FEHIA 252,953 73,665
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14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Continuing operations
Profit for the year has been

arrived at after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration
Amortisation
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Staff cost, including Directors’
remuneration
Contributions to retirement benefits
scheme

Cost of inventories recognised as expense

Loss from error trades

Interest income on bank deposits
(included in other income)

Operating lease in respect of
office premises

Expenses related to short-term leases —

office premises

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

14. FE&RF

FREEER
FEEN IR (FEA) THIRHE:

ZEE B 2
B
ME WERREBITE

EREEENE
BEIRA (BRESEHE)

BRI ET &R

HRRAXZFERAR
R 5 E1E
RITFRZHBWA
(FEAEMUA)
BRMAEMRZELERN

ERERHECER -
MREYE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
1,456 1,350

= 1,401

5,009 4,971
2,480 =
33,453 32,705
706 726
506,450 887,269
= 2

(50) (29)

= 5,868

3,117 =
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 15. ERIEREHEK

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the directors
resolved to dispose of the Group's operation in mineral mining
operation in the PRC. Negotiations with several interested
parties have subsequently taken place. The asset and liabilities
attributable to the business, which are expected to be sold
within twelve months, have been classified as a disposal group
held for sales and are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position (see below). The net proceeds of
disposal are expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the
relevant assets and liabilities and accordingly, no impairment
loss has been recognised. The disposal was completed on 24
July 2019, on which date loss control, passed to the acquired.

The loss for the period from the discontinued mineral mining
operation in the PRC is set out below. The comparative figures
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income have been restated to re-present the
mineral mining operation in the PRC as a discontinued operation.

BE-FT-\F+_A=+—RHLFE"
ETRBHEAKERTEZRBEES -
HEBERZZRAEB 2 ALETHER %X
BRIGZEEREBE (BHHERt _EAR
HE)EHBARFELEZHEMAR A B A
EHEEMBRRARAEBE2S (RTX) -
HEMSREFEBRHEEEREER
BEZEEE Bit WERRREEIS-
ZEHEER - T-AFEA-THEHAR
-EBRRIEFRECEBREWET -

ERIEEZEPERBER 2 MAERET
mT ARSI EMEEKERZ LRE
FERKEY BRTBZRBERGENRZ

2019 2018
—E-hFE —EFN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss of mineral mining operation R/ FARPERZ RIEER
in the PRC for the period/year 28 = (403)
Loss on disposal of mineral mining HERPE  REEE 2 EE
operation in the PRC (note 45) (K a#45) - (20,502)
- (20,905)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 15. CRIEREXER (&)

The results of the mineral mining operation in the PRC for the RZE—-—N\F—-—A—HEZZE—\FtA
period from 1 January 2018 to 24 July 2018, which have been TN HBAEARE s RIEER  EE (B
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and A EEREMEEEKERA) AT :

other comprehensive income, were as follows:

Period ended

24 July

2018

HE

—E-N\F

+tA=Z+mA

1EEARE

HK$'000

T

Revenue L& S
Cost of sales $HE A =
Gross profit EF =
Other income HEaug A -
Other gain or loss Hip sk & 18 =
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER =
Administrative expenses THRER (403)
Loss from operation KBS (403)
Finance cost B8 A =
Loss before taxation R B AT BT 18 (403)
Taxation g =
Loss for the year FAEE (403)

Loss for the year from discontinued operations BEARIEEEERK 2

including the following: FREBBEBENTEIE:
Depreciation e =
Amortisation i =
Interest income FEHA =
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS

16. EERTETHAEME

2019
—E-hF
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
other benefits
benefits scheme Total
Fees HeR EKEF  remuneration
He Hi @ F HE L A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER THER
Executive Directors BITES
Hui Chi Ming FE - 1,200 18 1,218
Neil Bush JERefft - 600 - 600
Chui Say Hoe A - 660 - 660
XuJun Jia ez - 1,200 18 1,218
CaoYu Ex - 1,200 18 1,218
Lam Kwok Hing ERE - 2,808 18 2,826
Nam Kwok Lun ERfm - 984 18 1,002
Ren Qian (5] - 600 - 600
Independent Non-Executive ~ BYE#HTES
Directors
Ng Chi Kin David (Note a) mEE (ffza) 76 - - 76
Chen Wei-Ming Eric (Note b) BRIEEA (Hf7h) 19 - - 19
Kwan Wang Wai Alan (Note ¢) BRE (Mitc) = = = -
Yim Kai Pung (Note a) ERAENS (fritd) 43 - - 43
Ngan Kam Biu, Standford (Wote ¢)  2B3& 5% (H7:2e) 120 - - 120
Chan Tsang Mo (Note /) BRIER (Mztf) 102 - - 102
Tam Chak Chi (Note g) BE2 (Hizg) 44 - - a4
Ma Kin Ling (Note f) S (Hih) 77 - - 77
481 9,252 90 9,823
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

16. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

16. EERTETHRAEMNE (2)

2018
—E-N\F
Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefits
other benefits scheme Total
Fees Hek ERER remuneration
itk H iz F REL:E BaEe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET FTAT TET
Executive Directors HITES
Hui Chi Ming TS - 1,200 18 1,218
Neil Bush fefdefmft - 600 - 600
Chui Say Hoe TRIEAN = 660 - 660
Xu Jun Jia Tk - 1,200 18 1,218
CaoYu EF - 1,300 18 1,318
Lam Kwok Hing ERE = 2,808 18 2,826
Nam Kwok Lun EffR - 984 18 1,002
Ren Qian 51 - 600 - 600
Independent Non-Executive BIUEHITES
Directors
Ng Chi Kin David (Note &) mEE (ffza) 91 - - 91
Chen Wei-Ming Eric (Note b) BRE® (M5th) 91 - - 91
Kwan Wang Wai Alan (Note ¢) L& (fiztc) 22 - - 2
Yim Kai Pung (Note d BRAENE (f752d) 91 - - 91
Ngan Kam Biu, Standford (Note ) EBSR % (#fite) 67 - - 67
Chan Tsang Mo (Note 1) BRIER (H7Ef) > = - -
362 9,352 90 9,804
Note a:  Mr. Ng Chi Kin David resigned as independent non-executive director of Hiita: BEBEER_ZT-NAFNATAEEHEIERR
the Company on 19 August 2019. AIBIEMITESE -
Note b: Mr. Che Wei-Ming Eric resigned as independent non-executive director of Kb - BREBEER-ZZE—NF-_A=-THBEMEAR
the Company on 25 February 2019. NRBIEMITES -
Note c. Mr. Kwan Wang Wai Alan resigned as independent non-executive director HieFc: BREFERZZ-NFRAT—BEEIERA
of the Company on 11 June 2018. AIBFEITEE -
Note d: Mr.Yim Kai Pung resigned as independent non-executive director of the Hitd - BEBEER_Z-NFEATHBREERRA
Company on 10 May 2019. B IERITES
Note e:  Mr. Ngan Kam Biu, Standford was appointed as independent non- Hiite : B EAER-_T—N\FA+—BEZTA
executive director on 11 June 2018. BIEMITES -
Note f Mr. Chan Tsang Mo was appointed as independent non-executive Kt BRERAER-ZTE-—NF-_A-T+HBEZT
director on 25 February 2019. RBIEMITES -
Note g Mr.Tam Chak Chi was appointed as independent non-executive director Hiitg: BREZEERZZ-—NFNATNLBEZEA
on 19 August 2019. BAIFMITES-
Note h: - Mr. Ma Kin Ling was appointed as independent non-executive director on Hiith: BREXERZZ-NFRATHEZEARE

10 May 2019.

SMIMITES-
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16.

17.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continuea)

During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors has
waived any emoluments during the year (2018: Nil).

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of those persons’ other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group
included four (2018: four) Directors of the Company for the
year, details of whose emoluments are included in note 16. The
emoluments of the remaining one (2018: one) individual were as
follows:

17.

EERTEITHRAEME (&)

PRREFEERN  NEBBEREAESIN

G ARSI EMARNEEKEHBE

BEE- RNFEAN EZVERETANHNE
ZE-N\FE)o

AERATEEI N 2HE R REDE
MI—MARZFEALTERARARF REN
BRRZ BB EMRE X E
Wz -

REME

REER AEBZRAERSFHALE
EO& (22— N\F mOR)XRAEE H
FOBEHNME16 - B —R (ZE—N
Fi—R)ATZHMEMT:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries and other benefits HoREMEF 2,160 2,340
Contributions to retirement BRKEFIFT B3R
benefits scheme 18 18
2,178 2,358
The emoluments of one (2018: one) individual with the highest — R (ZE—NF:—R)EaH AT ZH
emolument is within the following band: SNFTINEER :
2019 2018
Emoluments band < & = —E-hEF —E-N\F
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
AE N
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t £2,500,0007% 7T 1 1
1 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—T—hFE+_A=+—HIFE

17. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 17. BEME (&)
During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to the REEFER - REEFER it A2
above-mentioned individuals as an inducement to join or upon EAENE - LAR S| E pi A AR & B ok in A B 3%
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. TERBERER(E
18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. BREF
From continuing operations FERE K
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to KRR ANBESRERBFIHE TS
the owners of the Company is based on the following data: BB E -
2019 2018
—E-hAE —ZT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Earnings: B
Profit for the year attributable to RAUETESREXRRF 2
owners of the Company for the AR AEIEFRR A
purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share 677,713 180,887
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BE#E L @R 2 £
— (Gain) loss of redemption of —BEARERES 2 (W) EE
convertible bonds (2,072) 267
— Fair value change on —AMRESF AT EES
convertible bonds - (3,655)
Profit for the year attributable to RARTESRE SRR
owners of the Company for the RATHEB ANEEFERRF
purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share 675,641 177,499
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

From continuing operations (Continued)

18. BREF (&)

Number of shares
R EE
‘000 ‘000
TR T AR
Number of shares: PSR -
Weighted average number of AUETESREREF 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of LB INAE I B
calculating basic earnings per share 4,000,000 3,516,367
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: &7 #58 Li@mpik v P&
— Convertible bonds — AR ES 123,807 377,739
Weighted average number of RBUAstEBRESRN 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of AR NAE T8
calculating diluted earnings per share 4,123,807 3,894,106
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 18.
From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to owners

BREF (&)

FHERERBREALE

ARBHEBEANEBERFBELLEEBRDEL
REXB 2 SRERNRBEFRN TR T

of the Company is based on the following data: HIRRTH
2019 2018
—E-NF ZT-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Earnings: Bax
Profit for the year attributable to RAUGTESRERZF 2
owners of the Company of the KRBHEE AEEFERRF
purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share 677,713 159,982
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: JE7& #58 X@ps v 2
— (Gain) loss of redemption of —EERRES 2 (W) BE
convertible bonds (2,072) 267
— Fair value change on — AR ESF 2 AT EEY
convertible bonds - (3,655)
Profit for the year attributable to AU ESRESRT 2
owners of the Company for the RAFEE NS FERR T
purposes of calculating diluted
earning per share 675,641 156,594
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18. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 18. BRERN (&)

From continuing and discontinued operations

FERERBRCRUERERK

(Continued) (#&)
2019 2018
—E-hnF  —EF)\F
‘000 ‘000
TR F A&
Number of shares: RHEE :
Weighted average number of RAUGTESRERZF 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of LB IE
calculating basic earnings per shares 4,000,000 3,516,367
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: 7B #s L@k 2 522 ¢
Convertible bonds AR AR &5 123,807 377,739
Weighted average number of RBUAFTEEREERN 2
ordinary shares for the purposes of LB InRE I B
diluted earnings per share 4,123,807 3,894,106
From discontinued operations ERIEEEXR
For the year ended 31 December 2018, basic and diluted loss BE_ZT-\F+_A=+—HBILLFE-

per share for the discontinued operation is HK$0.0100 and
HK$0.0100 per share respectively, based on the loss for the year
from the discontinued operation of approximately HK$403,000
and the denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted
loss per share.

19. DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. ME- -BEREE
Leasehold Computer Furniture Motor
improvements  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Property Total
REMEEE EHRE HAREE HE VIES &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAL FAT FAT FAL FAL
cosT B
At 1January 2018 RZE-N\5—F—-8 1,535 6,257 1,758 1,800 130,000 141,350
Additions BN - 53 93 916 - 1,062
Acquisition of a subsidiary W —FHHREAR - 2 - - - 2
Exchange adjustment R N () (24) (34) - (63)
At 31 December 2018 and RZB-N\F+ZA=T—HBK
at 1 January 2019 —ZT-NF—-A—H 1,535 6,331 1,827 2,682 130,000 142,375
Additions B - 187 120 4 = 31
Exchange adjustment B 5% - 2 o (18) = (25)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-AE+-A=+-A 1,535 6,520 1,938 2,668 130,000 142,661
DEPRECIATION e
At 1January 2018 RZZE-N\5¥—F—8 1,181 5,712 1,622 1,428 10,835 20,778
Provided for the year FEEE 106 199 86 247 4333 4,971
Exchange adjustment B 5 AR - @ (19) 1 = 22)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ-NF+ZA=+-HEK
at 1January 2019 —E-NE-f-H 1,287 5,909 1,689 1,674 15,168 25,727
Provided for the year EEEE 104 206 63 303 4,333 5,009
Impairment AE - - - - 17,679 17,679
Exchange adjustment Rk - 3 () (1) = )
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+-R 1,391 6,118 1,741 1976 37,180 48,406
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2019 R-ZF-AE+-A=+—A 144 402 197 692 92,820 94,255
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+=A=+-8 248 422 138 1,008 114,832 116,648
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method at the WENEGEIRATFERETIR:

following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 20% — 33'/3% HEMERE 20% — 33'/3%
Computer equipment 20% — 50% EN B 20% - 50%
Furniture and fixtures 20% — 40% B REE 20% — 40%
Motor vehicles 20% — 30% RE 20% - 30%
Property 2% — 5% S 2% — 5%
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21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

21. BEWHE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2018 RZE—NF—H—H 598,151
Acquired on an acquisition of a subsidiary FAUEE — B HT B A B &S 607,695
Addition R 6,628
Fair value change NEEE 289,004
Exchange adjustment bE 5 B (84,931)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+=ZA=+—H 1,416,547
Addition R 1,671
Fair value change NEEED) 1,011,747
Exchange adjustment bE 5 & (42,368)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NAF+ZA=+—H 2,387,597

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

Investment properties comprise of (a) a commercial units
located in the Beijing, PRC and (b) commercial units and car
parking spaces located in Zhanjiang, PRC.

Property-located in Beijing, PRC

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2019 have been determined based on a valuation
carried out on that day by InsideOut Due Diligence Inc., an
independent qualified professional valuer that is not connected
with the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the “Comparison
Approach”, where the value is assessed by assuming sale in
their existing states with the benefit of vacant possession and
by making reference to comparable sales evidence as available
in the relevant market.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Property-located in Zhanjiang, PRC

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2019 have been determined based on a valuation
carried out on that day by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer that is not connected
with the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the “Direct Comparison
Method”, where the value is assessed by reference to the
comparable properties of sales evidence as available in the
relevant market and have also taken into account the expended
construction costs as well as the costs that will expended to
complete the developments.

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above
comprise:

Properties in PRC: R Y
Medium-term lease RHIEE

21.

REME (&)
Y% — LA P EE DT

AEER-_Z-NAFT_A=+—RH2ZEK
EMERAVET REARK BN EEEE B
VRERBXGLEMBRRITERARR
BEHZEEEE-

RPEDRIEELBE] EE MEEBE
T2REREMSABZAELBRMEHE
BEMAE  TEAMEXHZEERAR

FRBRX 2 A -
LIRE Y 2 A E B
2019 2018
—e-nFE T )\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
2,387,597 1,416,547

The fair value measurements for all of the Group's investment
properties are categorised as level 3. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of the investment
properties as at 31 December 2019 are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements
are categorised level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements is observable.

AEERBRENFZAFEFEESE
BEZM - TREHRUMUEETREYERN
—E-NE+ZA=+—-HZATEZE
B USRIR G RMTRAA B ARE) -
REREAFEFEGABBEBZAIERE
EOBAVEFEMBRAFESRAE=
4 o
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21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 21. REWE (&)
Fair value Fair value
as at asat  Valuation Relationship of
Fair value 31 December 31 December  technique & Significant unobservable
Properties hierarchy 2019 2018 key input unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
RZB-1% RZZ-\§
+ZA=t+-B2 TZA=t-HZz HEEHR EXRTER FIRRRARE
LES ATEER A¥E ATE FERAUE BAUE AATEZBE
Property - located in Beijing, PRC  Level3 HK$515,451,000 HK$570,646,000  Direct comparison method and Price per square foot, using market Anincrease in the price per square foot
investment method direct comparable and taking willincrease significantly the fair
into account location and other value
The key input is price per square individual factors such as age
foot and location of the property,
approximately RMB87,000 per
square foot and approximately
RMB900,000 per car park space as
at 31 December 2019
NE-R =R 515,451,000 570646000 ERLBEREAL HRTSERTELEMET RitE  §THRER ABAR ENATE
FELR BT iy REMERIAR (FimmEangsk
FERAEEA b8 Btz GTARER BIR
SYARER ZE-NE+ZA=H-RETA
RH AR 87,0007 R BEENL
A& H900,0007T
Property - located in Zhanjiang, ~ Level3 HK$1,872,146,000 HK$845,901,000  Direct comparison method and Market unit rate, taking into account Asignificant increase in the market
PRC investment method the recent transaction prices for unit rate used would result in a
similar properties adjusted for significant increase in fair value,
The key input is price per square nature, location and conditions and vice versa.
foot of the property, which RMB8,871
per square metre (“sqm’) as at
31 December 2019.
Expected developer profit margin Asignificant increase in the expected
at 15% as at 31 December 2019. profit would result in a significant
decrease in fair value, and vice
Versa.
mE-R £=5 1,872,146,000 845901000 ERUBERREE THEE (B RANDERNEE  FREZTHEEARLARERA
HERT B BT B hERKRIELBE S TEAREM R2HARe
TERABBRETHRER RHER) RZF-NETZA

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
transfers between level 1 and level 2, or transfers into or out of

level 3.
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22. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS 22. FREEE
Office
BAE
HKS
BT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 RZE—-NF—HA—8BK
—N\F+ZA=+—H -
Adjustments upon application of HKFRS 16 JERBE B BHREERE 165018 2 R 7,039
At 1 January 2019 (restated) B’\\_ —NEF—A—8 (&E75) 7,039
Addition AR 6,903
Disposal & (6,725)
Exchange adjustment HE 5, 5 B (6)
At 31 December 2019 —hEFE+=ZA=+—H 7,211
Accumulated depreciation i?’r?ﬁ’%
At 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 RZE-NF—-—HA—8BK
—E2-N\F+ZA=+—H -
Adjustments upon application of HKFRS 16 ERB A ERELERE165 % 2 FHE 5,765
At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZE—NF—A—8 (K&F7)) 5,765
Charge for the year FRZH 2,480
Disposal e (6,725)
Exchange adjustment ME W )
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hhF+=ZA=+—8” 1,518
Net carrying amount; BREFE:
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB-NAF+=A=+—H 5,693

At 31 December 2018

R_E—NF+_-_A=+—H =

For both years, the Group leases an office for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 2 to 3 years.

RMEFERN AEEEERAZANE
B VBEEHRRA2EIFZHESN -

Certain leases of equipment were accounted for as finance HE-Z-—NF+A=1T—HLFE"
leases during the year ended 31 December 2019 and carried ETREHREARIVERERE FEN

interest ranged is 5.125%-6.290%. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the

contract is enforceable.

F5.125% % 6.290% ° M & 16 5 ) 1% & Bl &
ERERE B RETRE MGG - 1
BETHHLFE T AIEHEARNRER
AEERBAMANTERLERE S LR R H
TR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 23. B EE
Mineral Trading
mining rights rights Total
BRuERE R HE &H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET T
cosT R
At 1 January 2018, 31 December R=—E—N\F—HF—QH-
2018 and 31 December 2019 ZE-)\F+ZA=1+—HK
—E-NF+=ZA=1+—H 12,012 50 12,062
AMORTISATION By
At 1 January 2018 RZE—NF—H—H 10,611 50 10,661
Provided for the year FERE 1,401 - 1,401
At 31 December 2018, RZE—NF+=ZA=+—8"
1 January 2019 and 31 —E-AF-H—HBHEK
December 2019 —E-AE+ZA=+—8H 12,012 50 12,062
CARRYING VALUES RHEE
At 31 December 2019 RZE—-—NF+A=+—8H = = =
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+ZA=+—8 - - -
Trading rights represent two trading rights in the Stock Exchange ROGEEBRFACMBRZEREEHE
and one trading right in Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited. RGMBBR ARG 2 —EXFHE-
Trading rights were amortised over nine years. RGERNFEH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 23. |MLEE (&)
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had one mining right RZE-—NF+_A=1T—H FTEER
under the Licence 253 in respect of Kenya Mine 253, an area of BB BRI E2535E 5 2 5525358 7F
approximately 1,056 square kilometers situated in Kitui District AERE —BEREE ZBRESMAREREE
Eastern Province, Kenya. B #B & B 4 55 4 & (Kitui District Eastern

Province) * EIF&#J1,056F 5 A E ©

24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 24. EEFHIAEE
The following is deferred tax liabilities recognised and LWTRRE8E-Z—-—N\F+H="+—H
movements thereon during the year ended 31 December 2018: IFERRAZEEHBEEREZE:
Fair value

Fair value  adjustments
changes arising from
on investment acquisition of

properties  subsidiaries Total
BB AT
REME ELXZAYE

AP ESEH Az it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FEL

At 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF—H—H 32,605 420 33,025

Credit to profit or loss BAER 72,251 (420) 71,831
Exchange realignment fE 5 R (2,632) - (2,632)

At 31 December 2018 and RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H

at 1 January 2019 k=ZF-NF—H—H 102,224 - 102,224

Charged to profit or loss REEZME 252,937 - 252,937
Exchange realignment BE 5 AR EE (5,934) - (5,934)

At 31 December 2019 RZE—-AF+=-A=+—H 349,227 - 349,227
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated REMESHKE ANEENRESAHEHG
unused tax losses of approximately HK$87,125,000 (2018: B 18 49 587,125,000 T (— & — )\ F:
HK$77,881,000) available for offset against future profits. No 77,881,00078 7T ) AT LK 88 R AR S A o R A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such PARPIBE B IER T M Al AR R S R 8) A
unused tax losses as it is not probable that taxable profit will be FRISE R S Bt E i R B AR S B 1B RE
available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. RIEEFIBEEE -BBEBIERALE -

Tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

25. INVESTMENT IN EQUITY INSTRUMENT 25. RAFEFAHMBEBAZR
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER AITEHKRE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Investment in equity instrument at fair value through other EAFEFAEMEEMBAZKRAT AR
comprehensive income comprise: EBE:
2019 2018
—E-AE —ZT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
Listed investment: EmRE:
— Equity securities listed on Hong Kong —REBBRT LT RAES
Stock Exchange 1,224 1,566
1,224 1,566
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BRSmE 29!
Current assets MENEE = =
Non-current assets FEMBEE 1,224 1,566
1,224 1,566
26. STATUTORY DEPOSITS 26. EE®RE
2019 2018
—E-hAE —Z-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Deposits with: TR THIA R 2 FIE
The Stock Exchange of BEEBERSHBRAR
Hong Kong Limited 230 275
The Securities and Futures Commission  #F5 NS EREREE S 2,100 2,100
Hong Kong Securities Clearing BEEPREEBRAA
Company Limited ("HKSCC") ([BAEE]) 200 200

Reserve Fund Contribution to HongKong &EEEIE 4 EHR A R
Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation  ([HERE&ZE N A]1])
Limited (“HKFECC") 2 REESER 1,500 1,500

4,030 4,075
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

27. LOAN RECEIVABLES 27. EWRER
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Fixed-rate loan receivables LAThRE E BT YIE
denominated in functional ZEBEWE
currency of Hong Kong dollars 1,992 20,506
Carrying amount analysed RAREmE 2 REE
for reporting purposes: Pakik
Current assets (receivable RBEE (AJEWME
within 12 months from AR+ —@AR
the end of the reporting period) B - 7,513
Non-current assets (receivable FEREBEE (JARSE
after 12 months from the end B BERBR+—@A%
of the reporting period) B 1,992 12,993
1,992 20,506
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_T—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

27.

28.

LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Loan receivables with a carrying value of approximately
HK$1,992,000 is secured by properties located in Hong Kong.
The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the property in the
absence of default by the customer.

The effective interest rates (which are equal to contractual
interest rates) on the Group’s loan receivables was 8.5% per
annum (2018: 6.5% to 8.5%). Interest rate term is fixed at the
time when entering into loan agreement. The period of the loan
was 5 years (2018 1 year to 4 years).

27.

FEWER (&)

AR B ) 731,992,000/ 7T 2 & B 5K BA iz
REBZMEFEER EEFPABENZIE
AT AEBTSHEXBRERZME -

AEERPERZERNX (ZREH
FE)RBF8S (ZT—NF:65%%
8.5% ) o | T R TR 5T 3L B 5K 1 4 B B
T BEXHBARF (ZT—N\F: —FEDO
F)-

PROPERTIES FOR SALE 28. SEWE
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Properties under development for sale HEERPYME 1,809,871 1,846,586
As at 31 December 2019, the Group has five lands located in RZE—NEF+_A=+—H ZxE£EBHEE

Zhanjiang Economic and Technological Development Zone in
Guangdong Province, the PRC. The Group plans to develop
residential properties, serviced apartments for sales and the
relevant development plan had been approved by authority in
PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 29. FEUWERTK
2019 2018
—B-AF —TN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHEIT
Accounts receivable consist of: FEWEERBIETAIER :
Accounts receivable arising from BFEME 5HEBETES 2 IR
business of trading electronic products 24,786 179,912
Accounts receivable arising from VISR B ETEATE £ 2 IRUBR X
business of properties investment 368 10,031
Accounts receivable arising from the BEEBFEBMEE ZEBERR
business of dealing in securities:
— Cash clients —HERF 7,060 10,674
Less: Loss allowance for ECL Mk BEEEBBBEEE (11) (©)
7,049 10,668
—Hong Kong Securities Clearing —BAPREEERAF
company Limited ("HKSCC") ([BEEE]) 540 2,614
Accounts receivable from Hong Kong EEHEANERIELEZ
Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation — [EWE B EEEBR AR
Limited (“HKFECC") arising from the ([HAE®E AR ER
business of dealing in futures contracts 1,368 1,844
Loans to securities margin clients BTEAFREBFSEFPZEX 72,395 68,646
Less: Loss allowance for ECL ek - FEHEEBE CBIEEE (34) (32)
72,361 68,614
Accounts receivable arising from the B 75 B IR A R TS P EE A 2 FEURBR 5K
business of advisory for financial
management 212 6
106,684 273,689
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29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

An average credit period for accounts receivable from trading
business is 30 days. The accounts receivable from the business
of trading natural resources and petrochemical aged within 90
days.

Accounts receivable from the business of
trading electronic products

A credit period based on dates of delivery of goods for accounts
receivable from trading of electronic products is 90 days. The
aged analysis of accounts receivable arising from trading of
electronic products is as follow:

29. EWBRR (&)

KEEFEBZRYERZFHEERR
0H - RERARERMAERESIEBLZ
JE UL BR 3R 2 BR ik AR90B Y

REEFTEREZ R Z2RUURN

KEEFEMRBI ZRUERRINER
BEECZEERROB -RKEEFERE
P RRYBRRZ RN

2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

0-90 days 0&E90H 24,786 148,003
91-180 days 91%180H = 31,909
24,786 179,912
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Accounts receivable from the investment
property business

The average credit period for accounts receivable from
investment property business is 30 days. The aged analysis of
accounts receivable arising from investment property business
is as follow:

29. FEWERRX (42)

REREWMERER 2 BWRA

KERENFEEGZREERZ FHEE
HIZ30R - REREMERL 2 AR Z
FRiR D ATEAT

2019 2018

—g-nE —T-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T TR

0-90 days 0Z290H 368 3,105
91-180 days 912180H = 4,280
181 -270 days 1812270H = 2,646
368 10,031

Accounts receivable from cash client, HKSCC,
HKFECC

The settlement terms of accounts receivable from cash clients,
HKSCC, HKFECC are usually one to two days after the trade
date. Except for the accounts receivable from cash clients as
mentioned below, the accounts receivable from HKSCC and
HKFECC aged within 30 days.

REREEF BRGERPERAE
DA Z BW R

ReRFP BAGERMEEERRER
RRZRAREHRBTRXZIBHE—ER
B o B T XAt EUCR & & P RRRAN - B
ERREELMERHERRRAZERERE R
30HA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-Z

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Accounts receivable from cash client, HKSCC,
HKFECC (Continued)

The Group offsets certain accounts receivable and accounts
payable when the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the balances and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the balances simultaneously.

Loans to securities margin clients are repayable on demand and
bear interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by OCBC Wing
Hang Bank Limited plus 3% equivalent to 8.25% per annum for
both years. In the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is
disclosed as the aged analysis does not give additional value.
The loans are secured by pledged marketable securities at fair
value of approximately HK$236,963,000 (2018: HK$196,132,000).
The average percentage of collateral over the outstanding
balance as at 31 December 2019 is ranged from 136% to 6,223%
(2018: 100% to 6,465%). The fair value of pledged marketable
securities of the individual margin clients is higher than the
corresponding outstanding loans. The Group is permitted to
sell or repledge the marketable securities if the customer
default the payment as requested by the Group. The Group had
provided the loss allowance for securities margin clients with
reference to the portfolio held and the subsequent settlement of
each customer.

Accounts receivable from the business of
advisory for financial management clients

The Group does not provide any credit term to its advisory for
financial management clients. The aged analysis of accounts

“NEFTZA=+—-RLEE

29. BEUWERRK (#£)

maiﬁﬁﬁﬁ El%nﬂ k& HEII‘E%
DR ZEWIRR (&)

BAKEE /A FOR A ITR A H A AR
WHEAFBEEEE KRR RERE
AREBEGHEEE TRKERRMEMER-

o>

BTEFREGEPZERANREXRKE
BERBEBKFRITBERAFMABRES K
BB E 3% (M EF FIEERF X
825% )it B -BEERA BARKRESTIL
BEEE AMIERLELEMAMKRE-E
AR 1B #9236,963,0008 70 (—ZF — N\
£ :196,132,000% 7T ) 2 BRI R BE 51
BR-R-_ZT-NF+A=+—H KE
BESHZBERR 2 FHEAS LN F136%F
6,223% ( —F— \F : 100%%£6,465% ) ° {H
MREeEP BB RBES 2 A TE
BRERRERER AEEEENTFH
K$'§lﬁﬁg3ﬁ%1ﬂ EHEERARBE
BH - AEEC2ERBFRBCEFLHA
Z&é%ﬁ’m\&,ﬁ\fﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ/ﬁ HESFREBD
ERGHREEEE-

REMBEBLZRAEBREFZEW
/E\'EZFA

AEEYBAMBEERHXAEFTELREM
ERAEER MBERBRAEXBEFELZ

receivable arising from the business of advisory for financial EWBRR 2 R D ITIAT -
management clients is as follow:

2019 2018
—E-RFE ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FHT
0-90 days 0ZE90H - -
More than 90 days 90H A £ 11 6
11 6
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Accounts receivable from the business of
advisory for financial management clients
(Continued)

The settlement terms of cash clients are usually one to two days
after the trade date. The aged analysis of accounts receivable
arising from cash clients is as follows:

29. FEWERRX (42)

REMBEBEZAXRBEF 2EBW
R (&)

HeEF s AENAYATSAME—2
WA BeEFEEY MIKER S B A
m

Accounts receivable from cash clients EWREEFERA
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
0-90 days 0Z90A 7,049 9,050
91- 180 days 91Z180A - 1,618
7,049 10,668

OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND
DEPOSITS

30. HttBWARR ANTRERES

2019 2018

—E-hAE T )\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Other receivables H A fE U BR 5K 16,529 18,993
Advance to suppliers arising from HESGEGEEZ

trading business ) L 72 R 3K 46,278 10,882

Rental and other deposits HekEmize 12,893 13,091

Prepayments TEfTRIE 363 196

76,063 43,162
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31. PLEDGED FIXED DEPOSITS, BANK 31. EEHEHER RITEER

BALANCES AND CASH
Pledged fixed deposits (general accounts)

The pledged fixed deposits represented the amounts pledged to
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.
The pledged fixed deposits carry interest rates at 0.225% (2018:
0.225%) per annum and will be released upon the expiry of the
relevant banking facilities. Included in pledged fixed deposits
(general accounts) is approximately HK$5,264,000 (2018:
HK$5,251,000) which is denominated in US$, a currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entity.

Bank balances (trust and segregated
accounts)

From the Group’s ordinary business, it receives and holds
money deposited by clients in the course of the conduct of the
regulated activities. These clients” monies are maintained in one
or more segregated bank accounts and bear prevailing market
deposit rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.1% (2018: 0.01% to 0.1%)
per annum. The Group has recognised the corresponding
accounts payable to respective clients. However, the Group
does not have a currently enforceable right to offset those
payables with the deposits placed.

Bank balances (general accounts) and cash

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and short-term
bank deposits carrying prevailing market deposit rates at 0.01%
(2018: 0.01%) per annum with an original maturity of three
months or less. Included in bank balances (general accounts)
and cash are approximately HK$5,801,000 (2018: HK$5,791,000)
and HK$2,098,000 (2018: HK$4,542,000) and which are
denominated in US$ and RMB respectively.
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BE
EEAEHER (—REF)

EEAEHTFEREANBAEE —RKIE
TREMMBITIEL Z2EREE - 2 HE R
TEHEFERZHE BT F0.225% (ZF— N\
F:0.225%)  NBEBRTRLE B HHE R
BReFFABEBESRTER(—RERP)ZH
5,264,0007% 7T ( = F — J\F : 5,251,00078
TN RAEBEERE 2 e B XTI
K

RITERF (EERBLKRF)

AEBMR B EEHEITZESEE MU
VRHEBEPZER ZERPZHREBEFEA—
Bk Z @B IRITIRP WIRRITH BT K
MENFEE001%E0.1% ( T — N\
0.01%F0.1% )T B - A& B EREN B
B 2R - AT - A& B3R IR I /& ]
WMITENBFRIREZSEMAERER

RITERF (—RRF)REE

HEeEPEAEEFE 2R RIRRT
TR ERMNEREF001% (2T — N\ F:
0.01%)stEBEREBMAA=M@ALIUT
ZRHBRITER - GFARITET (—RE
F)RB4E 245,801,000 T (=T — )\
15,791,000 7T ) %2,098,000%8 7T (= F
— )\ : 4,542,000 70) D AIAET R AR
BTG -
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32. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

32. BFERR

2019 2018
—E-AFE ZZ=—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHEIT
Accounts payable from trading of BEFEREHEBMELEBFER
electronic products 60,180 186,705
Accounts payable from properties YT E FTE A RN IRR
investment 6,500 6,636
Accounts payable arising from the BEEBFEBMELRNENR:
business of dealing in securities:
- Cash clients —-Re®P 79,890 95,250
- HKSCC —EBBHEE 1,399 1,116
Accounts payable to clients arising BEENEENEBMELEZ
from the business of dealing in FERT R PR
futures contracts 2,139 2,968
Amounts due to securities margin clients ERZEHFREES TP RIE 5,052 10,847
Accounts payable arising from the W E IR A E S TE AR
business of advisory for
financial management - 2
155,160 303,524

The settlement term of accounts payable to cash clients and
HKSCC is two days after the trade date and aged within 30 days.

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of dealing
in futures contracts are margin deposits received from clients
for their tradings of futures contracts on HKFECC. The excess
of the outstanding amounts over the required margin deposits
stipulated by HKFECC are repayable to clients on demand. In
the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is disclosed as the
aged analysis does not give additional value.

Amounts due to securities margin clients are repayable on
demand. In the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is
disclosed as the aged analysis does not give additional value.

The accounts payable amounting to approximately
HK$83,766,000 (2018: HK$104,231,000) were payable to clients
or other institutions in respect of the trust and segregated bank
balances received and held for clients in the course of the
conduct of regulated activities. However, the Group does not
have a currently enforceable right to offset these payables with
the deposits placed.

BNREXPLBEAGEERRZEELR
RRXSABEMB AR A/0EA -

BEENERNXBMELZERNERPEN
DRIRBEEELATEEHNEANRE
FURzFREE REERHABLNEE
ERAMARERBEZBBANEREE
ETEP -EERA ARKERINTLEER
- B I B R DA -

BNEFRBE TP HAARBRKEEE -
EERS ARKKOMTETE  FLI
ER UL VE BRI EE

RETIHRETHAERRET I
EEARBYRITEEMENTEFSRHEM
Wi~ B BR N4 583,766,000 T (=&
— J\4F 104,231,000 70) c A KAEEH
W EA]NITREFAGTRIRHEZ SR
BRI -
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32. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (Continued) 32. BRI (&)

Accounts payable from trading of electronic REEFEMESEBZEFENR

products

KEETEMEHEHZ BMNRFTIZWR
BHIZSIZBREBEDATANT

The aged analysis of amounts payable from trading of electronic
products presented based on the receive date is as follow:

2019 2018
—®-nE T N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FHT
0-90 days 0Z90H 53,027 186,217
90 - 180 days 901808 2,200 488
180 - 365 days 180%365H 4.876 _
over 365 days 365H A £ 77 _
60,180 186,705

Accounts payable from properties investment REMERE ZEBLERX

The aged analysis of accounts payable from properties
investment is a follows:

KEMEREZBNERRZEEROITAT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

0-90 days 0290H - 206
90 — 180 days 902 180H 6,500 6,430
6,500 6,636
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33. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 33. Hitt BRI REFER
EXPENSES
2019 2018
—E-hEFE ZZEN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Other payables H b~ 308 25,742 21,480
Accrued expenses EEtE A 13,023 4,899
Receipts in advance from B 5 %1% EGRIE
trading business 14 14
38,779 26,393
34. LEASE LIABILITIES 34. HEE®E
The exposure of the Group's lease liabilities are as follows: AEEHEABEZRBRMONT
2019
—B-NF
HK$'000
FHERT
Current ED 2,377
Non-current EME 3,392
5,769
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34. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

34. HEAEB (£&)

Present
Minimum value of
lease lease
payments liabilities
B HE
HEFR BEEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Minimum lease payment due: RATRERHz EEERNK:
— Within one year ——FNRN 2,618 2,377
- more than one year but not more than ——FREMFEA
two years 2,487 2,369
—more than two years but not more than ~ —MFEBERFENRN
five years 1,036 1,023
6,141 5,769
Future finance charges KRR E R (372)
Present value of lease liabilities HEARRE 5,769
Amounts due for settlement within one year —F RIS N2 RE (R RBEE
(shown under current liabilities) HTAIR) (2,377)
Amounts due for settlement after one year — 418 5| 817 1+ 2 5718 3,392
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35. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 35 EHEE
2019 2018
—E-NF Z-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Trading electronic products EFEMES 6,643 -
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TRINTHRAFERRBO U S o B4
in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities HEHNABERNBATHBAENNENEE
and how much relates to performance obligations that were BB
satisfied in prior periods.
Trading
electronic
products
ETERES
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and RZE-NF—H—81"
1 January 2019 —E-N\E+A=+—8K
—ZE-NF—HA—H -
Revenue recognised that was included inthe T AFEMA XN B EEHNCERRE
contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the year
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of NTEEmMEEZEHEEEM
—receipts in advance of trading electronic —EFERE S 2TBRGIR
products 6,643
At 31 December 2019 RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H 6,643
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36. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 36.

Amounts due to Directors of which approximately
HK$51,897,000 (2018: HK$65,789,000) are unsecured, interest
bearing at Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Wing Hang Bank
Limited (2018: Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Wing Hang
Bank Limited) per annum and are repayable on demand. The
remaining balance are unsecured, repayable on demand and
non-interest bearing.

37. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 37.

The movement of the derivative components of the convertible
bonds for the year is set out below:

BNESERE

e E F IR E F4951,897,0008 7T (—F
— J\%F : 65,789,000/ 7T ) /& S K 1 - 1= oK
FRITBRENFTEREZNE(ZZT—N
FOKFRITHRENBTEREBNR)EF
AR RAREREER SR T BB EERR
AIMBREERTER

R ES

ENARRESTETADS 2 BHHI
mF

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

At 1 January n—H—8H 104,055 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries gLy =N - 1,232,547
Redemption B (101,983) (89,734)
Conversion 2§21 - (1,035,103)
Fair value change NEBEED - (3,655)
Loss on redemption EoEE (2,072) =
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—H - 104,055
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37. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

On 28 February 2018, the Group issued convertible bonds with
a principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000 with conversion price
of HK$0.7 per share (the “CB2018") as part of the consideration
for acquisition for New Guangdong Merchants Investment
Holding Group Limited. The CB2018 does not bear any interest.
The convertible bonds are denominated in Renminbi and are
unsecured. The holders of the CB2018 will be able to convert the
outstanding principal amount in whole or in part into ordinary
shares of the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.7 per
conversion share until the maturity date (i.e. 27 February 2018).
The Company has an option to early redeem the CB2018 at
any time before the maturity date at 100% of the outstanding
principal amount of the CB2018. At the date of issue, both the
debt component and derivative components are recognised at
fair value. In subsequent periods, the entire convertible bonds
are designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are remeasured to their fair value as at the end of the
reporting periods and changes in fair values are recognised in
profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the principal amount
of RMB836,023,184 were converted into 1,478,719,115 ordinary
shares of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the principal amount
of RMB91,173,000 were early redeemed.

37. AR ESR (&)

R-ZZE-N\F_A-+N\B XEEETA
28/ A K %1,000,000,0007T R E AT
BO7ET 2 IR ES ([ZF— \Frk
BES]D (ERRBHERRERKREE
BERARZEDRE — T N\FrABREE
HFAMEEAFE o AR RESFAA R
BEREER - ERHE (-2 N\F_H
ZHERA - N\FARBRESF R
B A RESIR BRI IR (0.7/8 TT 2 2B
BEMRBOREELASRERLSARAE
B AR AR EAEDIM A RIERIR —F
—N\FABEREFZE2BREENSHERER
BO - N\FrEEHF RETAH,
BERE D ROTE T A IR N FERER -
RIZEHRE 2T EBREFRETAER
FESABD ERAE URHEHRE
MABERELQTE MAFEZHAINES
M FERR

HE-_Z—-N\NE+_-_A=+—81t&F
B R4 % A R1836,023,184L B ik A&
1,478,719,1150& A~ 7] & 3@ A% -

BE-E-NF+-A=T—BALFE &
THEAR91,173,0007c 2R ATE D ©
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37. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The following assumption were used to calculate the fair value

of the convertible bonds as a whole:

Spot price (HK$)
Conversion price (HK$)
Dividend yield

Time to maturity (year)
Risk-free rate

Volatility

REE(ET)
BRE (&)
BB e am R
2Hes ) (5F)
5 3L ) K
B

The Binomial valuation model has been used to estimate the
fair value of the derivatives. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value of the derivatives are based on the
director’s best estimate. Changes in variables and assumptions
may result in changes in the fair value of the derivative.

37. JRRESR (&)
ERANTEREBERGETRRES R
mAT(E:

At

31 December
2019
R-ZE—h&F
+=—A=+—8

0.96
0.70
0%
4.16
2.853%
36%

ERA_RAGMEELARGENTETA
ZRHE ARFAEITETAREZEE
MBJRLVENEF 2 REMR -BERRR
ZEPRIRERTATAZAFEELE
o

38. BORROWINGS 38. 88
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Borrowing BE 304,910 320,530
Secured HiKH 255,910 254,509
unsecured 44 49,000 66,021
304,910 320,530
Current portion BIHEAER 255,910 66,021
Non-current portion JEEVHAEE 49,000 254,509
304,910 320,530
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38. BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group's borrowings are repayable as follows:

38. fBE (&)

AEBZEEEEENT

2019 2018

—E-hEFE ZZEN\HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FHET

Within 1 year —FR 255,910 66,021
After 1 year but within 2 years —EMF - 254,509
After 2 years but within 5 years MERF 49,000 -
After 5 years hFE = -
304,910 320,530

The movement of borrowings is as follows: BEEZFHWNT:

2019 2018

—E-hFE ZZE-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

At 1 January ®n—H—H 320,530 311,005
Proceeds from new borrowings FEEMENRIE 99,000 36,000
Accrued interests FERTF & 25,116 25,014
Interests paid 2RFE (23,715) (21,489)
Repayment BN (116,021) (30,000)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 304,910 320,530

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has borrowing of
approximately HK$255,910,000 (2018: HK$254,509,000) which
was secured by the entire registered capital of Beijing Yinghe
Property Development Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, and guaranteed by Guangdong Hoifu
Wai Yip Investment Management Limited and the personal
guarantee from Dr. Hui Chi Ming. The borrowing is fixed-rate
interest at 7% for the first year and 8% for the period after 1
year. The effective interest rate of the borrowing is 8.8% per
annum.

RZE—-—hFE+ZA=+—H X&H
2 18 & #)255,910,0008 7T ( — T — )\ & :
254,509,000/ 7T ) YA AR EBEEE 2 EHE
REtRBNMEMESLREFABERARZE
HEMEAEER YIAERIEEERE
EEBR AT RS HBIET 2 EABRRERE
RABEEREFREEMERI%T B - M—F
& 1Z8%ET B - BB 2 B F & %58.8% °
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38. BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has borrowing
HK$49,000,000 (2018: 66,000,000) was unsecured which
borrowed from Asia Tele-Net and Technology Corporation
Limited ("ATNT"), a company incorporated in Bermuda with
its shares being listed on the Stock Exchange in which two
Directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun, have
controlling interests. The borrowing is fixed-rate interest at Hong
Kong Prime rate of 5% (2018: 5.125%) per annum.

39. CORPORATE BONDS

Unsecured corporate bonds E|ILIB R RES

38. fEE (&

RZB-NAF+ZRA=+—R XrEEZE
£49,000,0007% 7t ( == — J\ £ : 66,000,000
B REER R MNBEENEARDA
(TEME®]) (—ARBEREEMARILZA
ACEBRORBRALET MEETERE
FAEMERRE RS LR R IR - %
EERBEREBETEFMNER (ZF—N
F:5.125% )5t R e

39. AEIfEZ

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
29,621 19,560

The Group's corporate bonds are repayable as follows:

AEBZEEEABBESFMNT

2019 2018

—E-hE —Z-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 1 year —ER - _
After 1 year but within 2 years —EWF - -
After 2 years but within 5 years MERF 27,785 16,249
After 5 years AFi& 1,836 3,311
29,621 19,560
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39. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued) 39. ARMESH (&)
The movement of corporate bonds is as follows: NEEFEEHHT
2019 2018
—E-AF ZZ=—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
As at 1 January ®n—A—H 19,560 19,312
Proceeds from new borrowings FEBEMSHRIE 8,000 -
Accrued interests FEETAIE 2,061 1,718
Interests paid BAF A - (1,470)
As at 31 December R+=ZRA=+—H 29,621 19,560
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group issued HE_Z-NF+ZA=+—HLEFE &
bonds with a principle amount in a total of HK$8,000,000 carried EE 3BTRS EEA $£8,000,00058 T 2 B % -
interest at 7% per annum. The bonds are unsecured with BEFEIBTB - BHFAEERT mEHAH
maturity date falling on 3 years of the issue date. ABBETHERFIMIFER -
No addition bonds were issued during the year ended 31 HEZZ—)\F+ZA=+—RHLEFE I
December 2018. mEITEMBIMES -
The effective interest rate of the bonds is ranging from 7.03% to BEH 2 BEBEFFENF7.03%=11.57% °

11.57% per annum.
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40. SHARE CAPITAL 40. IR
Number of
shares
B#HEE
‘000 HK$'000
T FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREBEI0E L Bk
Authorised: JETE
At 31 December 2018 and 2019 RZE-—NFRZ_ZE-NIF
+=-—A=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITERHTE:
At 1 January 2018 RZE—NF—H—H 2,521,280 252,128
Conversion of convertible bonds (Note) — & r] R &5 (#/aF) 1,478,720 147,872
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 RZE—NF+ZHA=+—H"
and 31 December 2019 —E-NEF-A—HK
—E-AF+-_A=+—H 4,000,000 400,000
Note: Kiat -

On 9 April 2018, 30 April 2018 and 9 May 2018, the bondholder of the CB
have converted the CB with the aggregate principal amount approximately
of RMB112,495,000, RMB423,558,000 and RMB299,970,000 respectively at
conversion price of HK$0.7 per share into 200,000,000, 750,000,000 and
528,719,115 ordinary shares of the Company respectively.
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RZZE—N\FONAAB - \FRA=+BK=Z
—N\FERANR - TRREFZE ANRRRESR.7HET
AR £ 854 AR 112,495,000 A KR #423,558,000
7T R AR #299,970,0007t 2 AT IR E 5 » Bl ik A
200,000,0008% * 750,000,0008% }528,719,1150% A8 2 7] &
AR
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The details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that
have material non-controlling interests shown as below:

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

FERER

B A B AR 2 AR ANE
AR ZHEIRMT

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interests
principal and voting rights held (Loss)/Profit allocated
place of by non-controlling to non-controlling Accumulated
Name of business interests interests non-controlling
Subsidiary HMR LI FERERFEZ AEFIEERELR interests
HEARERE TEEEME FIERERRIREELLA Z (518) &7 R FERER
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hAFE —T-N\F ZB-hAFE ZT-N\F =ZB-hFE —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET FER FHET
RYTANERZEFE PRC/PRC
BRAR ([AVEREFL Y HE/FEH 40% 40% (19) 2,193 4,289 2,706
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests
BRFERERZ
BRIFEERME AR (211) (1,786) 660 381
(230) 407 4,949 3,087

* Incorporated in May 2018

fRZFE-NFRARMAET
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41. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 41. FeiER#ER (Z)

summarised financial information in respect of each of the ERABERFERERCAEESHE
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests NAEIZ B EMBEREINOT o« LT ZE
are set out below. The summarised financial information below BERBEBENR MK 2 HE-

represented amounts before intragroup eliminations.

As at 31 December W+=-—BA=+—H
AIREEF
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&xT FH T
Non-current assets ERENEEE 23 37
Current assets RBEE 74,481 195,039
Current liabilities mEAE (67,143) (189,201)
7,361 5,875
Equity attributable to KARHEAE A

owners of the Company G 3,072 3,169
Non-controlling interest FEI= P = 4,289 2,706
7,361 5,875
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For the year ended 31 December

41.

RS (E)
BE+-A=+—BHLEE

ABEES
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Revenue Y g 508,799 896,098
Other income E A 57 26
Expenses g (508,909) (890,643)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE (E18) & (53) 5,431
Other comprehensive FEEMEEMS N
expenses for the year (116) (223)
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income  FE £ mH
for the year (X)) WzmietE (169) 5,258
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: FE1E (B1B) s F)
owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ RSN (32) 3,288
Non-controlling interests eI (21) 2,193
(53) 5,481
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income  fE{5 & m
attributable to: (ZH) s
Owners of the Company VINNEIEZZE N (95) 3,169
Non-controlling interests FEIZ e = (74) 2,089
(169) 5,258
Net cash inflow from: KRB TNEFIEZ
WEMANFE:
Operating activities KR E (4,208) 3,195
Investing activities wEES = (42)
Financing activities RbEEB) 1,656 617
Net cash (outflow)/inflow B R/ mRAFHE (2,552) 3,770
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42. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

42. BEMEHN
REBER/EBEA

RBEMRE AEBARBEENEZT
Al EESHARETHA - E TR SO R R &K

operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as MEMK:
follows:

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FHET
Within one year —FR 2,483
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRF (BREEREMF) 654
3,137

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises. Leases are mainly negotiated for
an average term of two years and rentals are fixed over the
relevant lease term.

The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments

for future minimum lease income under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as

REBOFBREARERBAEDEREN
2% HOXTBRFHMFHER  mA
HAZHEEEE -

REBERHEA
RBEHRE AKERBEEME 2 A

EHREEY ETIBMcARKERE
WA

follows:
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE—)N\HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx FHET
Within one year —FR - 8,560
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRF (BIEEREMTE) = =
- 8,560

Operating lease income represent rentals receivable by the
Group for its office premises. Leases are mainly negotiated for
an average term of two years and rentals are fixed over the
relevant lease term.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Mandatory provident scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”)

The Group has operated a pension scheme under the rules
and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance after the implementation of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately in an independently managed fund. The Group
has followed the minimum statutory contribution requirement
of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income with a
cap of HK$1,500 (2018: HK$1,500) per employee per month. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARIES NOT
CONSTITUTING A BUSINESS

EREBESEFEHERRAF

On 28 July 2017, the Group has entered into a sale and
purchases agreement with Hoifu Group Investment Holdings
Limited (now known as Hong Kong Finance Holding Limited),
a company wholly owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, an executive
director and controlling shareholder of the Company pursuant
to which the Group agreed to acquire and Hong Kong Finance
Holding Limited agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of
New Guangdong Merchants Investment Holdings Limited (“New
Guangdong”) and its shareholder loan, at the consideration
of RMB1,100 million settled by cash of RMB100 million and
issuance of zero-coupon convertible bonds with principal
amount of RMB1,000 million. The acquisition was completed on
28 February 2018.

New Guangdong Merchants Investment Holdings Limited
is an investment company. The principal assets of its active
subsidiary, ER B E &= FHEHRR A& (formerly know as &
RYEREREBRAT) (BRBELE"), comprise 5 land
parcels located in the PRC.

43.

44.

RN E
BEMAREE ([BREFTE )

REsIMtAB e EENETE  ~EEE
B 5E &l 1 A TE 2 5T EE 0 2 37 8 R
BMRKRESEE cRIBEEFEICEE D
FRBUEEESARE AKEDETHR
EEERFBATE REEBEEBBRKA
S%TEH R - LR AT R E TH A1,5007
T (ZF—/)\F 11,5008 70) - RN EE
IR P 18 2 HOBR ©

s B8 — FE B B 2 B I AR R — I/

25
ERBESEFEHERRALF

RZZE—+F+A=Z+/\B  AEEEHS]
BEEBREERARA A (3RFHong Kong
Finance Holding Limited * — 8 B8 AR X B %)
NTEERERBRRFEHEL 2 ERGZ
RENFIVEEHZE B AEBERE K
8 M Hong Kong Finance Holding Limited[&
BEHEVERKREEREEER AR ([H#
B E2HERTRAREBRRER K
& A& AR #1,100,000,0007C * LB & AR
#100,000,000T R #EITAR R B AR
1,000,000,0007T 2 Z EF] WA ELFEE - 3%
WEEEERZ-ZE—\F_AZTN\BZX
B o

HEERARREEERAN A MRE
AF - ERMB AR R S EE
ERAT (MBERABREBEAERA
A) (REE8SE]) 2 EAERET
OB 2 3 o 2 M 38 -
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44. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARIES NOT 44. WiE—EM B AR TEK —E
CONSTITUTING A BUSINESS (Continuea) R (#&)
BERABBSEZERFEMESRR AT (Continued) ERBESHEEHERRAT

(#)
This acquisition of subsidiaries has been accounted for as BRBERBARCEREEWRE AR It
acquisition of assets as & 5 /& & ¢ % principally engaged THRERBESIEFTENHEWELR.
in property holding and does not have operations at the BRAUHE A A E S o

acquisition date.

The identifiable net assets acquired are as follows: iRl Rl EE 2 FEI T :
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment L E NN 26
Investment properties REME 607,695
Properties for sales HEME 1,992,457
Other receivables, deposits and prepayment  H b JEURBR 7K - 12 & M FEfT 7008 12,755
Bank balances and cash RITEFNMES 419
Trade and other payables B 5 KA b FETBR R (1,740)
2,611,612
Satisfied by: ATHFHZAT:
Cash consideration paid in prior year FFENRERE 118,757
Issue of shares BITIRGD 1,232,547
1,351,304
Net cash flow effect arising RABBELECZESREFEY
from the acquisition:
Total cash consideration paid BENRERRE =
Bank balances and cash acquired FrgRTHEFERIRE (419)
@19
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45. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 45.

On 24 July 2018, the Group disposed 100% equity interest
in Swan Moment Group Limited and its subsidiaries which
engaged in trading business to an independent third party for
the consideration of HK$160,000,000. The net assets of the
subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follow:

HEHE QR

RZZE—N\EtA=-+MNA KEBRBL
F=FHEWREEHETH 2 Swan Moment
Group Limited X £ B A 5l 2 & & Ik 4&
K& A160,000,0007 7T - A H & B HT - BB
NAlZEBEFENT:

Consideration received 2R E HK$'000
FHET
Cash received ERE 160,000
Analysis of assets and liabilities REEBHZEEREBZON:
as at the date of disposal:
Property, plant and equipment W B REE 41,505
Intangible assets mEEE 41,336
Lease premium for land TS 6,768
Inventory & 60,344
Other receivables, deposits and prepayment i B U BR 5 ~ &2 & K FA T 5KI8 171,156
Bank balances and cash RITEFLRRE 1,250
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H Ath FE T BR X (131,815)
Amount due to Director B —REERIE (387)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEMIEAE (11,135)
179,022
Loss on disposal: HEZER:
Consideration received ERRE 160,000
Net assets disposed of EHECEEFEAE (179,022)
Non-controlling interest R M 17,655
Cumulative exchange gain ZETIE H s (19,135)
(20,502)
Net cash flow effect on HENBARZRERERESE
disposal of subsidiaries
Cash consideration received EWEeRE 160,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposal of TEReREREF AR (1,250)
158,750
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with related parties

Save for disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties:

(@ During the year, the Group received commission income
and other securities dealing income from securities and
futures dealing of approximately HK$16,000 and HK$Nil
separately (2018: HK$6,000 and HK$1,000 separately) from
Director Mr. Nam Kwok Lun and his close family (2018: two
directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun).

(b) During the year, the Group received commission
income and other income from securities dealing of
approximately HK$7,000 (2018: HK$8,000) from ATNT, in
which two Directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam
Kwok Lun, have controlling interests.

(c) At 31 December 2019, an executive Director, Mr. Nam
Kwok Lun, advanced approximately HK$51,897,000 (2018:
HK$65,789,000) to the Group. During the year, the Group
paid finance costs of HK$3,237,000 (2018: HK$3,484,000)
to the executive Director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun.

(d) At 31 December 2019, an executive Director, Dr. Hui Chi
Ming, advanced approximately HK$57,395,000 (2018:
HK$19,702,000) to the Group. It is unsecured, repayable on
demand and non-interest bearing.

(e) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
made minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of office premises of approximately
HK$2,520,000 (2018: HK$2,526,000) to Gahood Holding
Company Limited, a company indirectly wholly-owned by
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, an executive Director of the Company.
The transaction also constitutes a continuing connected
transaction under Appendix 14A of the Listing Rules.
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

46. BEALR S (&)

BEALRS (&)

(H  In February 2018, the Group acquired the entire interest H RZZ2E—NEFEZA AEEREFHER
in New Guangdong Merchants Investment Holdings WEERBRARREMB AR ([#
Limited and its subsidiaries (“New Guangdong Merchants BERsED 22D REAR R
Group") for a consideration of RMB100,000,000 in cash A R #100,000,0007T X B Hong Kong
and issuance of RMB1,000,000,000 convertible bonds Finance Holding Limited (71 %8 [ &= &
from Hong Kong Finance Holding Limited (formerly EREERERAT] —HALRQT
known as Hoifu Group Investment Holdings Limited), a FREFRIERRETSHELT2EEET Y
company wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, a Chairman A RA])EFEFT 2 A K #1,000,000,0007T A
and controlling shareholder of the Company. The principal BRESF FEREECFBZEEDE
assets of New Guangdong Merchants Group comprise 5 F AL FA A B A i o
land parcels located in the PRC.

(@ At 31 December 2019, the Group advanced ® RZE—NF+ZA=+—80 F&H
HK$49,000,000 (2018: HK$66,000,000) from related EREEATDMNECETBERA G
company, PAL Finance Limited (“"PAL"), in which two (TEMEZE]) (KEBMBESER
directors of the Group Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam BaAe RER ML AR LiEHER)
Kwok Lun, having controlling interest. During the year, the ZEFA49,000,00078 7T (—ZZF— \F:
Group paid finance costs in total of HK$2,927,000 (2018: 66,000,000 70) cF N NEBZFF
HK3,538,000) to PAL. TN B ERE 152,927,000

T (ZZF— \£F :3,538,00087T) °

Ccompensation of key management personnel FEEBEAES ZHMH

The remuneration of Directors during the year were as follows: FREFZHeHOT:

2019 2018

—EBE-hE —ZT-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Short-term benefits 52 EREF 9,732 9.714
Post-employment benefits RIREF 90 90
9,822 9,804

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

EEMemFHEESREANALT ZRR
LMiZBEEE -
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47. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

“NEFTZA=+—-RLEE

47. MEFHMEE Z2ER YR

TRFAVNAKERETHMEEZABLZ
ZH(BRRENIFRCEY) BRELH
EEZABBEIRTRERNEE LR

RRERERNBERKAEREZNRS

>~ =
/}ILE °©

Amount
Lease due to Corporate Convertible
liabilities Directors bonds bonds Borrowings
HERE ENESHE ARESH ARRES e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT T THT TR THr
At 1 January 2018 —“E-N\F—-R—H = 85,305 19,312 = 311,005
Changes from financing ARERSRELE
cash flows
Addition b - - - - 36,000
Interest paid ERHE - (3,298) (1,470) - (21,489)
Redemption/Repayments BE /8% - - = (89,734) (30,000)
Other changes Hit 28
Acquisition of a subsidiary YebE — R B DA - - = 1,232,547 =
Fair value adjustments NTEFE = S = (3,655) -
Conversion into shares B aRH - - - (1,035,103) =
Exchange adjustments B 5 R = = = = =
Interest expenses FIBHX - 3484 1,718 = 25,014
At 31 December 2018 AZZ-N\F
+-A=+—H - 85,491 19,560 104,055 320,530
Adjustment upon application of B & /B KR & £
HKFRS 16 F165BzRE 1,377 - - - -
At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZZ-NE—A—H
(E5]) 1,377 85,491 19,560 104,055 320,530
Changes from financing BERSRELE
cash flows
Addition P = 20,564 8,000 - 99,000
Interest paid ERHE (218) - - - (23,715)
Redemption/Repayments [{EVg -5 (2,507) = - (101,983) (116,021)
Other changes HEmg
Fair value adjustments RTERE = = = = =
New leases entered FETY 6,903 = = = =
Exchange adjustments ERRAE @) = = - =
Interest expenses FERX 218 3,237 2,061 - 25,116
Gain on early redemption of RABETARES 2
convertible bonds - - - 2,072) -
At 31 December 2019 “T-NE+ZA=1+—H 5,769 109,292 29,621 = 304,910
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

48. T ENE LA

The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Name
8

Karl Thomson
Financial Group Limited
BREEREEERAR

Karl-Thomson Securities
Company Limited
BEEFBRAR

Karl-Thomson Commodities
Company Limited
BEERBEERLA
Karl Thomson
Finance Limited

BEAHERAA

Karl Thomson Credit Limited
BEEHERLA

Karl Thomson Investment
Consultants Limited

REREBERERAT

Country/
place of
incorporation
TR
A%/ t%

British Virgin
Islands ("BVI")
RERAES
([RBAXES])
Hong Kong
BE
Hong Kong
BE
Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

Principal
place of
business

TRERMY

Hong Kong

i

A

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

A

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

BEBAR
HRRE/
EMER

HK$10

1057

HK$11,000,000
11,000,000 7T
HK$5,000,000
5,000,000/ 7T
HK$20,000,000
20,000,0007% 7

HK$10,000
100007 T

HK$5,000,000

5,000,000/ 7T

TREJESRRAUAKREXEXREEAR
ITBREZARRENBRAR -EERA
RUEMHBARZHBESRERRNT

]§ °
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Group
rEERE
ERTRAAELH
2019 2018
ZE-hE  —F-)\%
% %
BAtt BAL
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities
TETEER

Investment holding

REARK

Securities dealing
and broking
BHEEREL

Futures and
options broking
HE R SELL

Securities margin
financing

Money lending
fBE

Broking of mutual funds
andinsurance-linked
investment plans
and products

BEES RS
REFEIRERER
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48. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 48. TEMB LT (£)
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
Country/ share capital/ nominal value of
place of Principal registered capital issued share capital
incorporation place of ERTR held by the Group
Name Rt business BRRE/ rEEEE Principal activities
2R 2%/ %% FTEEERY ZREA ERTRAEELS TEER
2019 2018
ZZ-AE ZT-NE
% %

ks ARl

Karl Thomson Financial Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$600,000 51 51 Corporate finance advisory
Advisory Limited
BREREREERAA BE 0 600,000/ 7T TEREER
Hong Kong Finance Energy BVI Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Trading in natural resources
International Trading RBRUES B 1007 7T ARERES
Company Limited
Hong Kong Finance Resource BVI Hong Kong US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Group Limited
BB HEREEARARA RBRUES b 1005 7T RERR
Shiny Future Holdings Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding
BESBERAA BB 0 10087 REER
Hoifu Group Investment Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100 100 Investment holding
IEEERERRA RBRIES i 1005 7T RERR
Madagascar Northern Petroleum BVI Madagascar US$100 100 100 Qil and gas exploration
Company Limited and production
SEMFMLSERERAR KERAHE FEMA 1005 7T BERRARRARREE
Zhen Hua Company Limited Kenya Kenya KES100,000 60 60 Minerals exploration and
production
REERRA BRS BRD 1000008 e E%£L RERAREE
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48. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 48.
Issued and

fully paid

Country/ share capital/

place of Principal registered capital

incorporation place of ERTR

Name B A business BRRER/
E4 AR/ % FTEEERY aHER
Societe Hoteliere Tananarivienne Madagascar Madagascar MGA600,000,000
600,000,000

SEM&M SEMEM SEMA N

MEZE

ERENEE PRC PRC RMB22,000,000
FRREERAR H i AR 822,000,007
ANMEEXHEEERAA™  PRC PRC RMB5,000,000
HE e AR5,000,0007

EREBRRFE PRC PRC RMB1100,000,000
REBRAR H i A #100,000,0007

The Company directly holds the interest in Karl Thomson
Financial Group Limited and Hoifu Energy Holdings Limited.
All other subsidiaries shown above are indirectly held by the
Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
end of the year or at any time during the year.

* Wholly foreign owned enterprises

*x Private Limited Liability companies

TEMBEAR (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Group
rEERE Principal activities
BRTRAAELA TEER
2019 2018
ZE-hE  ZEF)\%
% %
Batt B

100 100 Property holding
nERE

100 100 Property investment
NERE

60 60 Trading of electronic products
EFEMES

100 100 Property investment
NERE

ARAEEFAEREEREEERAAR
SERRIERBR AR 2 M LA
BEAMME AR 2 Rl A QR FER
EO

RAFEEREHFRNEARERE - HBRA
BEEREHRBFEZBEBES-

* SNEBAEDE

o ABRAR
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49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Outbreak of novel coronavirus

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus in late December 2019,
has adversely impacted global economic activity in the period
subseqguent to the reporting date. Given the widespread nature
of the outbreak, the relative impact to the Group's operation
cannot be reliably quantified or estimated as at the date of this
report. The Company continues to closely monitor the situation.

Proposed acquisition

On 8 March 2020, the Group conditionally agreed to acquire
100% of the issued share capital of Dongguan Sanhe Industrial
Investment Limited (the “Target Company”) and its subsidiary
(the “Target Group”) at the total consideration of RMB1.0 billion,
which will be satisfied as to (i) RMB330 million by cash; and (ii)
RMB670 million by the issue and allotment of the new shares
of the Company (the “Consideration Shares”) at the issue price
of HK$0.85 per Consideration Share by the Company to the
vendors.

The Target Group is principally engaged in industrial investment,
property investment and real estate investment. The Target
Company owns the land use rights of three parcels of land (the
“Lands”) for villa use granted on a term expiring in August 2068.

The Lands are located in Shuidong Development Zone, Maogang
District, Maoming City, the PRC (# B % 44 71 % 78 & 7K 58 79 8%
[@ ) with a total site area and total planned gross floor area of
approximately 166,000 sg.m. and 414,000 sg.m. respectively.
The Lands are expected to be developed for high-end sea-view
villa and serviced apartments project.

Details of the proposed acquisition were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 13 March 2020.
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 50. &P T] 2 MR R TR
THE COMPANY

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E— N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHEB AR Z&RE 539,830 539,830
539,830 539,830
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a) ~ FEWB B A BIBRE (Aita) 1,485,947 1,486,081
Other amounts receivable, HEM AR B RIERES
prepayments and deposits 15,175 15,119
Bank balances (general accounts) WITETF (—RERP) KRS
and cash 167 291
1,501,289 1,501,491
Current liabilities REAE
Amount due to subsidiaries (note a) FENH B A RIFIA (Hita) 554,101 448,291
Other payables and accrued expenses Hib I RA N IERE A 20,226 2,814
Amount due to a Director (note b) JE—REERIE (H15ED) 43,946 41,764
Borrowings BE 255,910 -
874,183 492,869
Net current assets RBEEFE 627,106 1,008,622
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBEE 1,166,936 1,548,452
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Corporate bonds NGIIEE= 28,048 18,447
Convertible bonds (rote ¢) AR &S (i itc) - 104,055
Borrowings BE - 254,509
28,048 377,011
Net assets EEFE 1,138,888 1,171,441
Capital and reserves R #
Share capital A& A 400,000 400,000
Reserves (note ¢) & (Batc) 738,888 771,441
Total equity HE AR 1,138,888 1,171,441
The Company's statement of financial position was approved KRR ZHMBERRAER T _FTFHH
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 May TZPREEESHERIRETIR  WHAT
2020 and are signed on its behalf by: RREZE:
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, 6Bs., JP Dr. Chui Say Hoe
HE#®EIcess, P #HitFE L
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
s s
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

@

230

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free, and
recoverable/(repayable) on demand.

The amount due to a Director is unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong
Prime Rate quoted by Wing Hang Bank Limited (2018: Hong Kong Prime
Rate quoted by Wing Hang Bank Limited) per annum and are repayable on
demand.

The convertible bonds was issued as a part of consideration to acquire a
subsidiary from a controlling shareholder, Dr. Hui Chi Ming.

50. XD Rz FBMR K ()

@ ERS (D WERATREREER 28 REE
SR (R) «
0 EN-REFREASER BAFROFEE

AREENE (ZZ—N\F OkFRITABE AR
BEANE)GFFERNELEHEE -

AR 25 T 1B A TR P2 R SR A 25 84 18 L UGB —
MMBRRZBOREMET-

Movement in reserves

@ REEZEH

Capital
Share  Contributed redemption Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
B3 RE BEREH ELABEERE Rt g8 &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FAET FET
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-NF—HA—H 691,085 372,031 5,587 (974,305) 94,398
Loss and total FEBEBREZEX N
comprehensive FEE]
expenses for the year - - - (210,189) (210,189)
Conversion of convertible BRI R E S
bonds 887,232 - - - 887,232
At 31 December 2018 RZT—N\F
and at 1 January 2019 +ZA=+—HER
—ZE-NF—HA—H 1,578,317 372,031 5,587 (1,184,494) 771,441
Loss and total FEBEREZEX
comprehensive g
expenses for the year - - - (32,553) (32,553)
At 31 December 2019 RZT—NF
—A=+—H 1,578,317 372,031 5,587 (1,217,047) 738,888
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Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E-hF ZEFE-RF ZETE—+tF ZT-N\F ZEB-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHT FHER

RESULTS £
Revenue Was 38,329 31,329 97,065 942,475 538,006

(Loss)/Profit before taxation B& & Bl
(F518) %A (15,247) (39,609) 94,478 253,301 930,436
Taxation 1A (12,262) 673 (31,896) (73,665) (252,953)

(Loss)/Profit for the year BEGEERZ
from continuing FE (&8
operations il (27,509) (38,936) 62,582 179,636 677,483

(Loss)/Profit for the year ERIEEEER 2

from discontinued FE (&8

operation i ) (6,865) 42,081 (100,079) (20,905) —
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE (E8), 55 (34,374) 3,145 (37,497) 158,731 677,483
Loss per share BlREE
From continuing and FECEEBR

discontinued operations ERIEEEER

—Basic — &R HK$(0.0225) HK$(0.0026) HK$0.0046 HK$0.0455  HK$0.1694

(0.0225)& 7T (0.0026)%7C  0.00467 7T 0.04557%87C  0.16947%8 T

From continuing operations 48 48 & ¥ 7%
- Basic — &R HK$(0.0225) HK$(0.0027) HK$0.0246 HK$0.0514  HK$0.1694
(0.0225)% 7T (0.0027)7%7Cc  0.0246/8 7T 00514%7C  0.16947%8 T
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T FIEHBRE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8~
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E—RF ZE—RF ZZT—+tF ZT-NF ZEB-IEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET FHT FHER
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets EERE 892,438 1,350,270 1,655,970 4,033,416 4,672,065
Total liabilities BEERH (372,032) (445,863) (797,611) (963,645) (999,740)
520,406 904,407 858,359 3,069,771 3,672,325
Equity attributable to iNNETEZZ =N
owners of the Company JE{G = 380,104 771,836 836,492 3,066,684 3,667,376
Non-controlling interests ~ JEIZ A AE 25 140,302 132,571 21,867 3,087 4,949
Total equity e AARE 520,406 904,407 858,359 3,069,771 3,672,325
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